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Overview

(i) These financial statements are General Purpose Financial Statements and cover the consolidated operations
for Tweed Shire Council.

(ii) Tweed Shire Council is a body politic of NSW, Australia - being constituted as a Local Government area
by proclamation and is duly empowered by the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) and known 
as "LGA" or "the Act".

Council's Statutory Charter is detailed in Paragraph 8 of the LGA and includes giving Council;

the ability to provide goods, services & facilities, and to carry out activities appropriate to the current & future
needs of the local community and of the wider public,

the responsibility for administering regulatory requirements under the LGA and

a role in the management, improvement and development of the resources in the area.

A description of the nature of Council's operations and its principal activities are provided in Note 2(b).

(iii) All figures presented in these financial statements are presented in Australian Currency.

(iv) These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Council on 17 October 2013.
Council has the power to amend and reissue these financial statements.
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Introduction 
 
Each yea r, individual L ocal Gove rnments a cross 
NSW a re required to prese nt a set  of audited  
Financial Statements to their council and community. 
 
What you will find in the Statements 
 
The finan cial statement s set out the finan cial 
performance, financial p osition an d cash flo ws of 
Council for the financial year ended 30 June 2013. 
 
The format o f the finan cial stateme nts is sta ndard 
across all NSW councils and complies with both the 
accounting and reporting requirements of Australian 
Accounting Standards a nd req uirements a s set 
down by the NSW Division of Local Government. 
 
About the Councillor/Management Statement 
 
The Financial Statements must be certified by senior 
staff as "pre senting fairly " the Coun cil's fina ncial 
results for th e year, and a re required to be adopte d 
by Council - ensuri ng both responsi bility for and 
ownership of the Financial Statements. 
 
About the Primary Financial Statements 
 
The finan cial stateme nts i ncorporate fi ve "prima ry" 
financial statements: 
 
1. The Income Statement 
 

Summarises Council's financial performance for the  
year, listing all income and expenses. 
 
This statem ent al so displays Council's o riginal 
adopted bud get to provid e a com parison b etween 
what was projected and what actually occurred. 
 
2. The Statement of Comprehensive Income 
 

Primarily re cords cha nges in the fair values of  
Council's Infrastructure, Property,  Plant an d 
Equipment. 
 
3. The Statement of Financial Position 
 

A 30 Jun e snap shot of Coun cil's fina ncial po sition 
indicating its Assets, Liabilities and “Net Wealth”. 
 
4. The Statement of Changes in Equity 
 

The overall  chan ge for the year (i n dolla rs) o f 
Council's "Net Wealth". 
 
 

 
5. The Statement of Cash Flows 
 

Indicates wh ere Coun cil's ca sh came from and  
where it was spent. 
 
This statement also di splays Co uncil's ori ginal 
adopted bu dget to provid e a comparison between 
what was projected and what actually occurred. 
 
 

About the Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
The Notes to the financial statements provide greater 
detail and ad ditional information on th e five primary 
financial statements. 
 
About the Auditor's Reports 
 
Council's fin ancial state ments are required to be 
audited by external a ccountants (th at gene rally 
specialize in Local Government). 
 
In NSW, the Auditor provides two audit reports: 
 
1. An opinion o n whethe r th e financial statements 

present fai rly the Co uncil's financial performance 
and position,  

 
2. Their ob servations on th e cond uct of  the Audit 

including co mmentary on  the Council's fina ncial 
performance and financial position. 

 
Who uses the Financial Statements? 
 
The finan cial statement s are pu blicly available  
documents a nd mu st be  pre sented at a Cou ncil 
meeting bet ween seve n days an d five wee ks after 
the date of the Audit Report. 
 
Submissions from the public can be made to Council 
up to seve n days su bsequent to the public 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
Council i s required to f orward an audited set o f 
financial sta tements to  the Divisi on of Lo cal 
Government. 
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Tweed Shire Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Statement by Councillors and Management
made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended)

The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:

 The Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) and the Regulations made thereunder,

 The Australian Accounting Standards and professional pronouncements, and

 The Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these Financial Statements:

 present fairly the Council’s operating result and financial position for the year, and

 accords with Council’s accounting and other records.

We are not aware of any matter that would render the Reports false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 17 October 2013.

Barry Longland Michael Armstrong 
MAYOR COUNCILLOR

Troy Green Michael Chorlton 
ACTING GENERAL MANAGER RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
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Tweed Shire Council

Income Statement
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$ '000

Income from Continuing Operations

Rates & Annual Charges
User Charges & Fees
Interest & Investment Revenue
Other Revenues
Grants & Contributions provided for Operating Purposes
Grants & Contributions provided for Capital Purposes

Total Income from Continuing Operations

Expenses from Continuing Operations
Employee Benefits & On-Costs
Borrowing Costs
Materials & Contracts
Depreciation & Amortisation
Other Expenses
Net Losses from the Disposal of Assets

Total Expenses from Continuing Operations

Operating Result from Continuing Operations

Net Operating Result for the Year

Net Operating Result attributable to Council

Net Operating Result for the year before Grants and
Contributions provided for Capital Purposes

Original Budget as approved by Council - refer Note 16

158,335        

4a

5,570            

177,803        

43,112          
14,105          
43,734          
38,167          

19,468      

4e

Budget (1)

4c

3e,f

13,647          

19,468          

19,468            

15,735          
4d

4b

5

33,843          
11,829          
2,396            

26,367          

10,933          
2,414            

46,051          

181,623        

20,202          
23,859          

2013

6,089         

7,698         

34,749       

1,854         
16,215       

3b

Notes

3a

3d
3c

3e,f

(1)

(8,957)    

(16,655)        

(8,957)          

13,589       
46,900       

85,185       

160,747     

(8,957)        

-                 

151,790     

45,737       

39,644       
14,877       

6,651            

(13,082)           

169,491        

12,132          

12,132      

12,132            

Actual 
2012

(4,391)             

79,509          

40,078          
46,941          

Actual 
2013

14,035          

25,214          

85,683          
37,177          
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Tweed Shire Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$ '000

Net Operating Result for the year (as per Income statement)

Other Comprehensive Income:

Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the Operating Result 

Gain (loss) on revaluation of I,PP&E
Total Items which will not be reclassified subsequently
to the Operating Result

Amounts which will be reclassified subsequently to the Operating Result
when specific conditions are met

Other Movements in reserves (enter details here)
Total Items which will be reclassified subsequently
to the Operating Result when specific conditions are met

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to Council

20

Notes

20b (ii)

(866)              

2013

109,241        

12,132        

Actual 

120,507        

108,375      

120,507    

Actual 

-                    

23,486        

2012

23,486          

19,468        

(866)             -                   

109,241       23,486         

42,954      

42,954          
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Tweed Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position
 as at 30 June 2013

$ '000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Investments
Receivables
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Investment Property
Intangible Assets
Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net Assets

EQUITY
Retained Earnings
Revaluation Reserves
Council Equity Interest
Non-controlling Interests

Total Equity

6b

8

7

Notes

2,647,728     
-                    

2,873,447   

13,353          

6b

8

10

139,375        

2013

2,734,072     

10

10

20

10

20

7,653            

2,647,728 

2,522,360     

1,207,322     

-                    

135,797        

65,380          

730               

2,987            

Actual 

7

14
9

37,727          

460               

1,224,315     

187,992        187,733        

226,283      

38,550          

6,074            

2,522,360 
225,719      

2,647,728 

95,715          

181,458        
5,219            

1,315,038     

182,028        

2,612,846     

21,908          

13,019          
96,942          

22,071          

25

10

2,522,360 

1,423,413     

10

2012
Actual 

2,261            
807               1,667            

2,542,307     

66,781          

2,748,643   

13,756          

486               

9,024            
15,770          16,721          

6a 19,275          

754               
1,327            

2,662,274     

1,507            

3,102            

1,276            
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Tweed Shire Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$ '000

Opening Balance (as per Last Year's Audited Accounts)

a. Correction of Prior Period Errors
Revised Opening Balance (as at 1/7/12)

b. Net Operating Result for the Year

c. Other Comprehensive Income
 - Revaluations : IPP&E Asset Revaluation Rsve
 - Other Movements (enter details here)

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income (b&c)

Equity - Balance at end of the reporting period

$ '000

Opening Balance (as per Last Year's Audited Accounts)

a. Correction of Prior Period Errors
Revised Opening Balance (as at 1/7/11)

b. Net Operating Result for the Year

c. Other Comprehensive Income
 - Revaluations : IPP&E Asset Revaluation Rsve
Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income (b&c)

Equity - Balance at end of the reporting period

Equity

23,486      

2,479,406 -                

2,503,002 

2,479,406 
(23,596)     

-                

-                

Interest

-                

19,468      

Earnings

Non-

Notes

2013

-                20b (ii)

4,861        20 (c)

1,207,322 

12,132      

1,212,183 

20b (ii)

-                
-                

12,132        

2012

-                19,468      

1,211,450 

1,291,552 

1,291,552 
-                

Earnings (Refer 20b) Interest

23,486      23,486      
-                
-                

23,486        42,954        

2,522,360 

20b (ii)

1,315,038 

Retained
Notes

1,187,854 
20 (c) (23,596)     

1,224,315 

(23,596)     

1,207,322 1,315,038 -                

108,375      

2,647,728 

19,468        

120,507      

(866)          
-                
-                

108,375    

1,315,038 

109,241    

-                

109,241    

-                

Interest(Refer 20b)

2,527,221 

2,522,360 
4,861        

42,954        -                 

2,522,360 

-                

23,486      

19,468      

2,503,002 

23,486      -                

1,423,413 

Reserves Council controlling

23,486      

-                

-                

-                

109,241    
(866)          

108,375    

2,527,221 

(866)          
108,375    

Council controlling
Interest

4,861        -                

-                

-                

12,132      

2,522,360 

Equity

Non-

120,507      

2,647,728 

12,132      

-                 

Total

Retained Reserves Total
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Tweed Shire Council

Statement of Cash Flows
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$ '000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts:
Rates & Annual Charges
User Charges & Fees
Investment & Interest Revenue Received
Grants & Contributions
Bonds, Deposits & Retention amounts received
Other
Payments:
Employee Benefits & On-Costs
Materials & Contracts
Borrowing Costs
Other
Net Cash provided (or used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Receipts:
Sale of Investment Securities
Sale of Investment Property
Sale of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Deferred Debtors Receipts
Payments:
Purchase of Investment Securities
Purchase of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Purchase of Interests in Joint Ventures & Associates
Net Cash provided (or used in) Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Receipts:
Proceeds from Borrowings & Advances
Payments:
Repayment of Borrowings & Advances
Net Cash Flow provided (used in) Financing Activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

plus: Cash & Cash Equivalents - beginning of year

Cash & Cash Equivalents - end of the year

Additional Information:

plus: Investments on hand - end of year

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments

Please refer to Note 11 for additional cash flow information

(13,589)         (14,050)         (13,359)         
(56,311)         
(44,232)         

258               -                    

181,771    

162,496        

(44,226)      

6,060            

19,275      

13,019          

6,256          

(2,692)        

175,342    

13,020      

(5,602)           

9,035            

4,123          

3,985          

162,322        

(13,964)         
11b

108               
3,668            

53,174        44,420        

156,000        170,654        

(154,330)       

1,759            

(46,552)         
(170,216)       

(50,242)         
(20)                -                    

(44,558)      

9,725            

(8,752)           

(45,737)         

35,478          

Budget 

85,185          

-                    
23,912          

2013

34,899          
6,089            

(45,875)         

(7,094)           

1,854            

-                    
-                    

30,691        
(16,047)         

11a

-                    

89,698      

(9,406)        

(434)           

99,104          

(39,663)      

11a

6,660            

(41,956)         

129               
2,293            

-                    

-                    

Actual 

86                 143               

40,627          

(15,129)         

10,569          
32,658          
12,613          

(43,627)         

2,948            

34,653          

77,994          

(44,948)         

9,375            

Notes

86,070          

2012
Actual 

2013

6b
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Contents of the Notes accompanying the Financial Statements

Details

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Council Functions / Activities - Financial Information
Council Functions / Activities - Component Descriptions
Income from Continuing Operations
Expenses from Continuing Operations
Gains or Losses from the Disposal of Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets
Investments
Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments - Details
Receivables
Inventories & Other Assets
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Externally Restricted Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Payables, Borrowings & Provisions
Description of (and movements in) Provisions
Statement of Cash Flows - Additional Information
Commitments for Expenditure
Statement of Performance Measures:
13a (i)   Local Government Industry Indicators  (Consolidated)
13a (ii)  Local Government Industry Graphs     (Consolidated)
13b      Local Government Industry Indicators   (by Fund)
Investment Properties
Financial Risk Management
Material Budget Variations
Statement of Developer Contributions
Contingencies and Other Liabilities/Assets not recognised
Controlled Entities, Associated Entities & Interests in Joint Ventures
Equity - Retained Earnings and Revaluation Reserves

Financial Result & Financial Position by Fund
Events occurring after the Reporting Period
Intangible Assets
Reinstatement, Rehabilitation & Restoration Liabilities

Additional Council Disclosures

Council Information & Contact Details

n/a  -  not applicable

2(a)

3
2(b)

6(b)

5

58

43

44
46

53

51
52

49

23

26

Note

14

10(a)
10(b)

17

6(a)

4

6(c)

11

Page

1

25

19

15
16

20

21

57

56

50

18

12
13

10
32
33
34

7
8

9(a)
9(b)

27

40

44

54

76

61

85

84
83

59
58

60

77

66

82

68

80

78
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The principal accounting policies adopted by Council 
in the pre paration of the se con solidated financi al 
statements are set out below in order to assist in its 
general understanding. 
 
Under Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs), 
accounting p olicies a re defined a s th ose sp ecific 
principles, ba ses, conventi ons, rul es a nd pra ctices 
applied by a repo rting entity (in this ca se Council) in 
preparing and presenting its financial statements. 
 
The Local Government Reporting Entity 
 
For th e p eriod 1  July 20 12 to 30 June 2 013, th e 
Tweed Shire Council had its principal business office 
at the T weed Civic Centre, T umbulgum Road, 
Murwillumbah NSW 24 84. Tweed Shire Cou ncil is 
empowered by the LGA and its Ch arter is spe cified 
in Section 8 of the Act. 
 
A descriptio n of the  nature of t he Council's 
operations and its pri ncipal activities a re provided in 
Note 2(b) of t hese statements. Tweed Shire Council 
is classified as a "not-for-profit" entity as define d by 
Australian Accounting Standards. 
 
The G eneral Purpo se Finan cial Statement s 
incorporate t he asset s and liabilities of all entities 
controlled by Cou ncil (the parent ent ity) and the  
results of al l controlled entities for t he finan cial 
period end ed 30 Jun e 2013. They  include the  
consolidated fund an d oth er entitie s th rough which 
Council controls resources to carry on its functions. 
In the process of repo rting Council as a  single unit,  
all transactions and balances between activities (for 
example, loans and transfers) have been eliminated. 
 
(a) Basis of preparation 
 
(i) Bac kground 
 
These finan cial statem ents are g eneral pu rpose 
financial stat ements which have bee n prepa red in  
accordance with; 
 
 Australian Acco unting Stand ards an d 

Interpretations issued by the Australi an 
Accounting Standards Board, 

 

 the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) 
& Regulation, and 

 

 the Lo cal Government Code of A ccounting 
Practice and Financial Reporting. 

(ii) Compliance with International Fi nancial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) 

 
Because AASBs are sector neutral, some standards 
either: 
 

(a) have lo cal Australi an conte nt a nd 
prescription that is specific to the Not-For-
Profit se ctor (incl uding L ocal Government) 
which are not in compliance with IFRS, or 
 

(b) specifically exclude application by Not  
for Profit entities. 

 
Accordingly i n prepa ring t hese finan cial stateme nts 
and a ccompanying n otes, Co uncil ha s been  un able 
to c omply fully with International Acco unting 
Standards, b ut has com plied fully wi th Australia n 
Accounting Standards. 
 
Under the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) 
and Regul ation and L ocal Governm ent Cod e of  
Accounting Practice & Fin ancial Reporting, it shoul d 
be n oted t hat Coun cils in NSW only have  a 
requirement to comply with AASBs. 
 
(iii) New and amended standards adopted b y 

Council 
 
None of the new stan dards a nd am endments to  
standards that are mandatory for the first time fo r the 
financial year begin ning 1 July 2013 affected any of  
the amounts recognised in the current period or any 
prior period and are not likely to affect future periods.  
 
(iv) Early adoption of Accounting Standards 
 
Refer further to paragraph (ad) relating to a summary 
of the effect s of Standa rds with fut ure o perative 
dates. 
 
(v) Basis of Accounting 
 
These finan cial statements have been p repared 
under the historical cost convention except for: 
 
(i) financial assets an d liab ilities at fair value  

through profit or loss, available-fo r-sale financial 
assets and investment propertie s whi ch are all 
valued at fair value, 
 

(ii) the write do wn of any Asset on the basi s of  
Impairment (if warranted) and 
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
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(iii) certain cl asses of Infra structure, pro perty, 
plant & equipment that are accounted for at fair 
valuation. 

 
The accrual ba sis of accounting h as al so be en 
applied in their preparation. 
 
(vi) Changes in Accounting Policies 
 
Council’s accounting policies have been consistently 
applied to all  the years p resented, unless otherwise 
stated. 
 
(vii) Critical Accounting Estimates 
 
The preparation of fin ancial statements requires the 
use of certain critical accou nting estimate s (in 
conformity with AASBs). 
 
Accordingly this requires management to exercise its 
judgement in  the pro cess of applying the Cou ncil's 
accounting policies. 
 
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated 
and a re b ased on hi storical exp erience a nd othe r 
factors, in cluding exp ectations of future  events that  
may have a financial imp act o n the  e ntity and that  
are b elieved to be  rea sonable unde r the 
circumstances. 
 
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 
 
Council m akes e stimates an d assumptions 
concerning the future. 
 
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, 
seldom equal the related actual results. 
 
The e stimates a nd a ssumptions t hat have a  
significant ri sk of causing a mate rial a djustment to  
the carrying amounts of  assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year are set out below. 

 
(i) Estimated fair value s of infrast ructure, 

property, plant and equipment. 
 

(ii) Estimated tip remediation provisions. 
 
 
 
 
 

Critical judgements in applying the entity's 
accounting policies 
 
(i) Impairment of Receivables - Council has made 

a significant judgement about the impai rment of 
its receivables in Note 7. 

 
(ii) Projected De veloper Contributions - Coun cil 

has used significant ju dgement in d etermining 
future Sec tion 94 of the EPA Ac t 1979 (EPA) 
income and expenditure in Note 17. 

 
(b) Revenue recognition 
 
Council reco gnises reven ue wh en th e amount of 
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that 
future e conomic be nefits will flow to t he entity and 
specific criteria have be en met for each of the  
Council’s activities as described below. 
 
Council b ases any e stimates o n hist orical re sults, 
taking into consideration the type of  custome r, th e 
type of tra nsaction and the specifics of ea ch 
arrangement. 
 
Revenue i s mea sured at the fair value of th e 
consideration received or receivable. 
 
Revenue is measured on major income categories as 
follows: 
 
Rates, Annual Charges, Grants and Contributions 
 
Rates, annu al cha rges, grant s and contributions 
(including developer contributions) are recognised as 
revenues when the  Council obtains control over the  
assets comprising these receipts. 
 
Control over assets acquired from rates and annual 
charges i s o btained at th e comm encement of the 
rating year as it is an e nforceable debt linked to th e 
rateable p roperty or, where ea rlier, up on receipt of  
the rates. 
 
A provisio n for the imp airment on rate s re ceivables 
has not been established as unpaid rates represent a 
charge agai nst the rateabl e property that will b e 
recovered when the property is next sold. 
 
Control ove r gra nted a ssets is normally obtaine d 
upon their recei pt (or acquittal) or upon earli er 
notification t hat a grant has b een secured, and i s 
valued at their fair value at the date of transfer. 
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Revenue from Contributions is recognised when the 
Council e ither ob tains control o f the  contribution or 
the right to receive it, (i) it is proba ble that the 
economic benefits comprising the contribution will 
flow to the Council and (ii) the a mount of the  
contribution can be measured reliably. 
 
Where g rants or co ntributions re cognised a s 
revenues during the financial year were obtained on 
condition tha t they be expende d in a parti cular 
manner or u sed ove r a particul ar pe riod and tho se 
conditions were u ndischarged at bala nce date, th e 
unused g rant or contrib ution is di sclosed in Note  
3(g). 
 
Note 3(g) also discloses the amount of unused grant 
or co ntribution from prior years that was expen ded 
on Council’s operations during the current year. 
 
A liability is reco gnised in respect of re venue that is 
reciprocal in nature to th e extent that the re quisite 
service has not been provided as at balance date. 
 
The Council has obligations to provide facilities from 
contribution revenues levi ed on devel opers u nder 
the provisions of S94 of the EPA. 
  
Whilst Council generally incorporates these amounts 
as pa rt o f a D evelopment C onsents O rder, su ch 
developer contributio ns are o nly re cognised a s 
income upon their physical receipt by Council, due to 
the possibility that indivi dual Development Consents 
may not be acted up on by the applicant and  
accordingly would not be payable to Council. 
 
Developer contributions m ay only be e xpended for 
the purp oses for whi ch the contrib utions were 
required but  the Coun cil may apply contributions 
according to  the prio rities e stablished in work 
schedules. 
 
A detailed  Note rel ating t o devel oper contributions 
can be found at Note 17. 
 
User Charges, Fees and Other Income 
 
User charges, fees a nd other in come (in cluding 
parking fee s and fine s) a re re cognised as revenue 
when the service has been provided, the payment is 
received, o r when the  pe nalty ha s b een a pplied, 
whichever first occurs. 
 

A provision for the impairment of these receivables is 
recognised whe n coll ection in full is no lon ger 
probable. 
 
Sale of In frastructure, Proper ty, Plant a nd 
Equipment 
 
The profit or loss on sale of an a sset is determined 
when control  of the asset  has i rrevocably passed t o 
the buyer. 
 
Interest and Rents 
 
Rents are re cognised a s revenue on a pro portional 
basis when t he paym ent is du e, the value of the  
payment is notified, or the payment  is received, 
whichever first occurs. 
 
Interest Income from Cash & Inves tments is 
accounted for using the Effective Interest method in  
accordance with AASB 139. 
 
(c) Principles of Consolidation 
 
These financial statements incorporate (i) the assets 
and liabilitie s of Coun cil and any Entities (or 
operations) that it controls (as at 30 June 2013) and 
(ii) all  the related operating results (for the fin ancial 
year ended the 30th June 2013). 
 
The financial statements also include Council’s share 
of the assets, liabilities, income and exp enses of any 
Jointly Controlled Operations unde r the 
appropriate headings. 
 
In the process of reporting on Council’s activities as a 
single unit, all inter-e ntity year end balan ces an d 
reporting period transactions have been eliminated in 
full between Council and its controlled entities. 
 
(i) The Consolidated Fund 
 
In accordance with the p rovisions of S ection 409(1) 
of the LGA, all money and prope rty received by  
Council is he ld in th e Council’s Consolidated Fun d 
unless it is required to be held in the Council’s Trust 
Fund. 
 
The Co nsolidated Fun d and othe r e ntities throu gh 
which the Council control s resources to  ca rry on it s 
functions have bee n in cluded in  the fina ncial 
statements forming part of this report. 
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The following entities have been included as pa rt of 
the Consolidated Fund: 
 
 General Purpose Operations 
 Water Supply 
 Sewerage Service 
 Tweed Coast Holiday Parks 
 
Council does not have any minority intere st in oth er 
entities. 
 
Council is a member of the Far North Coast Weeds 
but has no equity in its operation. 
 
(ii) The Trust Fund 
 
In accordance with the provision s of Section 4 11 of 
the LGA, a se parate and di stinct Trust Fu nd i s 
maintained to accou nt for all mon ey and p roperty 
received by the Council in tru st which m ust be 
applied only for the pu rposes of or i n accordance 
with the trusts relating to those monies. 
 
Trust monie s an d prop erty subj ect to Cou ncil’s 
control have been included in these statements. 
 
Trust mo nies and  prope rty held by Co uncil but not 
subject to  the control of Co uncil, have been 
excluded from these statements. 
 
A sepa rate statement of monie s held in the Tru st 
Fund is available for inspection at the Council office 
by any person free of charge. 
 
(iii) Joint Ventures 
 
Introduction 
 
Council's objectives can in some cases be be st met 
through the use of separate entities and operations. 
  
Generally, th ese types of ope rations and e ntities 
could rang e from  100%  ownershi p and control 
through to lo wer levels of ownership and control via 
co-operative arran gements with ot her Councils, 
bodies and other outside organisations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Section 358 of the Local Government Act 
1993 restricts councils in forming or 
participating in the formation of a 
corporation or other entity without first 
obtaining the consent of the Minister for 
Local Government. The restriction also 
extends to acquiring a controlling interest 
in a corporation or other entity. 
 
An entity for the purpose of section 358 of 
the Act means any partnership, trust, joint 
venture, syndicate or other body (whether 
or not incorporated). It does not include 
any such entity that is of a class 
prescribed by the Local Government 
(General) Regulation 2005 as not being 
within this definition. To date, the 
Regulation has not prescribed such a 
class. 
 
It should be noted that the restrictions on 
the formation of corporations and other 
entities does not prevent a council from 
being a member of a co-operative society 
or a company limited by guarantee and 
licensed not to use the word "limited" in  
its name. 

DLG Circular 07-49 
 

 
At pre sent Council has intere sts in  the follo wing 
entities:- 

 
Richmond Tweed Regional Library (RTRL) 
 
The Richmond-Tweed Re gional Lib rary was 
established i n Ja nuary 1 971, when Lismore City 
Council and Ballina S hire Council sign ed a n 
agreement to devel op a  joint fre e public lib rary 
service. Th ey were qui ckly joine d by  Byron Shire 
Council and Twee d S hire Council, and the  
Richmond-Tweed Regi onal Library  Service was 
created. 
 
Currently the Regional Libra ry serv es a rapi dly 
growing regional p opulation of approximatel y 
215,000, ove r 5 0% of whom a re registered library  
members. 

 
Lismore City Council is the 'Executive Council' of the 
Richmond Tweed Regional Library. 
 
Richmond Tweed Regional Library is not a se parate 
legal entity and a s su ch all financial  repo rting i s 
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consolidated with the Financial Statements prepared 
by Lismore City Council. 

 
Far North Coast Weeds (FNCW) 
 
Far No rth Coast Co unty Council, trading as Far 
North Co ast W eeds ( FNCW), wo rks with a  wide 
range of st akeholders t o comb at th e spread  of 
noxious we eds in the Northe rn Rive rs regio n of 
NSW. 
 
FNCW is the Local Co ntrol Authority re sponsible for 
administering the Noxiou s Weed s Act 1993 in th e 
region. 
 
FNCW in cludes all of  Tweed, B yron, Ballina , 
Lismore City, Richmond Valley and Kyogle shires. 
 
Far North Coast Weeds (FNCW) has six councillors, 
one appointed by each of its constituent councils. 
 
The delegate from ea ch cou ncil is a cou ncillor of 
FNCW a nd does not spe cifically repre sent the 
interest of t heir own council, but represents the  
interests of the county district. 
 
North East Weight of Loads Group (NEWLOG) 
 
The aim s a nd obje ctives of NE WLOG are to 
preserve the  ro ad system asset  and  p romote road  
safety, by enco uraging h eavy vehicle s to com ply 
with weight regulations on local and classified roads. 
 
The mem ber Coun cils a re Twe ed, Byron, Ballina, 
Kyogle, Rich mond Valley,  Lismo re Cit y, Claren ce 
Valley and Tenterfiel d Coun cil and t he Gro up is 
administered by Ballina Shire Council. 
 
NEWLOG i s a coop erative that reli es o n in come 
from contributions from  memb er Councils, a 
contribution from the RTA and income from fines. 
 
Arrangements - Control and Influence 
 
Arrangements  

 
Associated Entities & Joint Venture Entities 

 
Arrangements in the fo rm of a se parate entity that 
deploys the  resources of t he operation itself; under 
'associated entities', a pa rty significantl y influence s 
the operations but does not cont rol them, whil st for 
joint venture  entities; a party jointly controls the  
operations with other parties. 

Joint Venture Operations 
 
Arrangements that  do  not comp rise an  a ctual 
individual entity which can depl oy the resources of  
the individu al parti cipants; unde r joint venture  
operations, a party jointly controls the operations with 
the other parties involved. 
 

Definitions (AASB 131) 
 
Control is the power to govern the 
financial and operating policies of an 
economic activity so as to obtain 
benefits from it. 
 
Significant influence is the power to 
participate in the financial and operating 
policy decisions of an economic activity 
but is not control or joint control over 
those policies.  
 
Joint control is the contractually agreed 
sharing of control over an economic 
activity and exists only when the 
strategic financial and operating 
decisions relating to the activity require 
the unanimous consent of the parties 
sharing control (the venturers). 
 
A joint venture is a contractual 
arrangement whereby two or more 
parties undertake an economic activity 
that is subject to joint control.  
 

 
Accounting Treatment 

 
Accounting treatment 
 
The accounting and reporting for the various entities, 
operations a nd a rrangements va ries i n a ccordance 
with accounting standards, depending on the level of 
(i) inte rest a nd (ii ) control and th e type (form ) o f 
entity/operation and th e overall materiality to  
Council's operations. 

 
Joint Venture Entities 

 
Equity Method - an inte rest in a join tly controlle d 
entity is initially recorded at cost and adj usted 
thereafter for the po st-acquisition change in th e 
venturer’s share of net assets of the jointly controlled 
entity. The profit or loss of  the venture r includes the 
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venturer’s share of the profit or loss of the jointly 
controlled entity.  
 
Joint Venture Operations 
 
Proportionate co nsolidation - a ventu rer’s sha re of  
each of the assets, liabiliti es, income a nd expenses 
of a jointly controlle d entity is combine d line by line 
with si milar items in  the ventu rer’s fina ncial 
statements or r eported as separate line items in the 
venturer’s financial statements. 
 
Associated Entities 
 
Equity Method - an interest in an associated entity is 
initially recorded at cost  and adjusted thereafter fo r 
the po st-acquisition chan ge in  the  ve nturer’s sha re 
of net assets of the jointly controlled entity. The profit 
or loss of the  venturer includes the ven turer’s share 
of the profit or loss of the jointly controlled entity.  
 
Additional Information 
 
Note 19 provides m ore i nformation in  relatio n to  
Joint Venture Entities , Associated Entities and J oint 
Venture Operations where applicable. 
 
(d) Leases 
 
All Leases entered into by Council are reviewed and 
classified on  inceptio n d ate as eithe r a Finan ce 
Lease or an Operating Lease. 
 
Finance Leases 
 
Leases of p roperty, plant and e quipment where the 
Council has substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance leases. 
 
Finance lea ses are ca pitalised at the lease ’s 
inception at t he lower of t he fair value  of the lea sed 
property and the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. 
 
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finan ce 
charges, are included in borrowings. 
 
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability 
outstanding and the recognition of a finance charge. 
 
The interest element of the finance charge is costed 
to the income statement over the lease period so as 

to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability for each period. 
 
Property, plant and equipment a cquired under 
finance lea ses a re d epreciated over th e sh orter of  
each leased asset’s useful life and the lease term. 
 
Operating Leases 
 
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and 
rewards of ownership are retained by t he lessor are 
classified as operating leases. 
 
Payments made under operating leases (net of an y 
incentives re ceived fro m the lesso r) a re cha rged to 
the in come statement on  a st raight-line ba sis ove r 
the period of the lease. 
 
Lease income from operating leases is recognised in 
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 
(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents includes; 
 
 ca sh on hand, 
 
 depo sits held at call with financial institutions, 
 
 other short-term, highly liquid investments with 

original maturities of three months or less that 
are readily convertible to known amounts of ca sh 
and whi ch a re subje ct to an insig nificant risk of  
changes in value, and 

 
 ban k overdrafts. 
 
Bank overd rafts are sho wn within b orrowings in 
current liabili ties on th e balan ce sheet but a re 
incorporated into Ca sh & Cash Equivalent s for 
presentation of the Cash Flow Statement. 
 
(f) Investments and Other Fi nancial 

Assets 
 
Council (in accordance with AASB 139) cl assifies 
each of its i nvestments i nto one of t he followi ng 
categories for measurement purposes: 
 
 financial assets at fair value through profit 

or loss, 
 
 loans and receivables,  
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 held-to-maturity investments, and 
 
 available-for-sale financial assets. 
 
Each classification depends on the purpose/intention 
for which the investment was acquired & at the time 
it was acquired. 
 
Management determin es each Investme nt 
classification at the time of initial recog nition and re -
evaluates this designation at each reporting date. 
 
(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit 

or loss 
 
Financial a ssets at fair va lue thro ugh profit or l oss 
include financial assets that are “held for trading”. 
 
A financial asset is classified in the “held for trading” 
category if it is acquired principally for the purpose of 
selling in the short term. 
 
Derivatives a re classified as held for trading u nless 
they are designated as hedges. 
 
Assets in thi s cate gory are pri marily classified as 
current assets as they are primarily held for tradi ng 
&/or are expected to be realised within 12 months of 
the balance sheet date. 
 
(ii) Loans and receivables 
 
Loans an d receiva bles are non d erivative financial  
assets with fixed or det erminable payments that are 
not quoted in an active market. 
 
They arise when the Council provides money, goods 
or services directly to a debtor with no intention (or in 
some cases ability) of selli ng the resulting 
receivable. 
 
They are included in current assets, except for those 
with maturiti es greate r than 12 mo nths after the 
balance sheet date which are classified a s no n-
current assets. 
 
(iii) Held-to-matu rity investments 
 
Held-to-maturity investments are no n-derivative 
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
and fixed maturities that the Council’s management 
has th e po sitive intention and a bility to hold to 
maturity. 

In co ntrast to the “Loans &  Re ceivables” 
classification, these investment s are gene rally 
quoted in an active market. 
 
Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in non-
current assets, except fo r those with maturities l ess 
than 12  mon ths fro m the reporting date, whi ch are 
classified as current assets. 
 
(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets 
 
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives 
that are eith er de signated in this cat egory or n ot 
classified in any of the other categories. 
 
Investments must be designated as available-for-sale 
if they do not have fixed maturitie s and fixed o r 
determinable payments a nd management intends to 
hold them for the medium to long term. 
 
Accordingly, t his cla ssification principally comprises 
marketable equity securities, but can include all types 
of financial assets that could otherwise be classified 
in one of the other investment categories. 
 
They are ge nerally in cluded in non-cu rrent asset s 
unless management int ends to di spose of the  
investment within 12  mo nths of  the balance sheet 
date or the term to maturity from the reporting date is 
less than 12 months. 
 
Financial Assets – Reclassification 
 
Council ma y c hoose to  re classify a  no n-derivative 
trading fina ncial asset o ut of the  h eld-for-trading 
category if the financial asset is no longer held for the 
purpose of selling it in the near term. 
 
Financial assets other than loans and receivables are 
permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading 
category o nly in ra re circumstances arising f rom a  
single event that is unu sual and hi ghly unlikely to  
recur in the near term. 
 
Council m ay also choose to re classify financia l 
assets that would meet t he definition of loans an d 
receivables o ut of the hel d-for-trading or available-
for-sale categories if it has the intention and ability to 
hold these financial assets for the fore seeable future 
or until maturity at the date of reclassification. 
 
Reclassifications a re m ade at fai r val ue a s of the  
reclassification date. Fai r value be comes the new 



 

  Financial Statements 2013_ 

 
 
Tweed Shire Council 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 
 
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 

 
  page 17 
 

cost or am ortised cost as appli cable, and  n o 
reversals of  fair value gains or l osses re corded 
before reclassification date are subsequently made. 
 
Effective interest rates for financial a ssets 
reclassified t o loan s an d receivable s and hel d-to-
maturity ca tegories are dete rmined at the  
reclassification date. F urther increases in estimates 
of cas h f lows a djust effective int erest rat es 
prospectively. 
 
General Accounting & Measurement of Financial 
Instruments: 
 
(i) Initial Recognition 
 
Investments are initially re cognised (and measured) 
at fair value, plus in the case of inve stments not at 
“fair value through profit or loss”, directly attributable 
transactions costs 
 
Purchases and sales of investments are recognised 
on tra de-date - th e dat e on which the Coun cil 
commits to purchase or sell the asset. 
 
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to 
receive cash  flows fro m the financi al assets h ave 
expired or h ave bee n tra nsferred an d the Coun cil 
has tran sferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership. 
 
(ii) Subsequ ent Measurement 
 
Available-for-sale finan cial assets a nd financial 
assets at fair value through profit a nd loss  are  
subsequently carried at fair value. 
 
Loans and  receivables and held-to-maturity 
investments are ca rried at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. 
 
Realised and  unre alised gains and l osses arising 
from changes in the fair val ue of the financial assets 
classified a s “fair v alue throug h pr ofit or lo ss” 
category are included in the income statement in the 
period in which they arise. 
 
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in 
the fair value  of n on m onetary securities classified 
as "available-for-sale" a re recogni sed in eq uity in 
the availab le-for-sale i nvestments revaluatio n 
reserve. 
 

When se curities cla ssified as "available-for-sale" 
are sold or impaired, the accumul ated fair value  
adjustments are included in the income statement as 
gains and losses from investment securities. 
 
Impairment 
 
Council a ssesses at each bal ance d ate whethe r 
there i s obje ctive eviden ce that a financial a sset o r 
group of financial assets is impaired. 
 
A financi al a sset or a group of finan cial assets i s 
impaired and  impairment losses are in curred only if 
there is o bjective evidence of impairme nt as a re sult 
of one or m ore events tha t occu rred after the initial 
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that l oss 
event (o r events) has an  impact o n the e stimated 
future ca sh fl ows of the finan cial asset  or gro up of 
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. 
 
In the case of equity securitie s cla ssified as 
available-for-sale, a sig nificant or p rolonged de cline 
in the fair value of a secu rity belo w its co st is 
considered i n dete rmining whethe r t he security i s 
impaired. 
 
If any such  evidence e xists for ava ilable-for-sale 
financial a ssets, the cumulative loss - mea sured as 
the differen ce between th e acqui sition co st and th e 
current fair value, less an y impairment  loss o n that 
financial a sset previou sly re cognised in p rofit an d 
loss - i s removed from e quity and re cognised in the  
income statement. 
 
Impairment losses reco gnised in  the income 
statement o n equity instruments are not reverse d 
through the income statement. 
 
If there is evidence of impairment for any of Council’s 
financial assets carried at  amortised cost (eg. lo ans 
and receivables), the amount of the loss is measured 
as th e diffe rence between the  a sset’s carrying 
amount a nd the pre sent value of esti mated future  
cash flo ws (e xcluding future credit l osses th at have  
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s 
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of 
the asset is reduced and  the amount of the loss i s 
recognised in profit or loss.  
 
If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable 
interest rate,  the di scount rate for measuring any  
impairment loss is the cu rrent effective intere st rate  
determined under the contract. 
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As a practical expedi ent, the g roup may mea sure 
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value 
using an observable market price. 
 
(iii) Types of Investments 
 
Council has an approved Investment Policy in ord er 
to undertake its investment of money in accord ance 
with (and to comply with) Section 625 of the LG A 
and S212 of the LG Regulation. 
 
Investments are placed and managed in accordance 
with the  Pol icy an d having p articular rega rd to  
authorised i nvestments prescri bed und er th e 
Ministerial Local Government Investment Order. 
 
Council m aintains it s investment Policy in 
compliance with the A ct and e nsures that it or its 
representatives exercise care, diligence and skill that 
a prudent person would exercise in investing Council 
funds. 
 
(g) Fair value estimation 
 
The fair val ue of fina ncial asset s a nd finan cial 
liabilities m ust be estimated for re cognition and 
measurement or for disclosure purposes. 
 
The fai r val ue of fin ancial in struments tra ded in 
active markets is ba sed on quoted ma rket prices at 
the balance sheet date. 
 
The fair valu e of financial  instrum ents that are not  
traded in an active market is dete rmined u sing 
valuation techniques. 
 
Council uses a va riety of method s an d ma kes 
assumptions that are b ased on ma rket con ditions 
existing at each balance date. 
 
Quoted m arket prices o r dealer quote s for si milar 
instruments are used for long-term debt instruments 
held. 
 
If the market  for a financi al asset is n ot active (an d 
for unli sted secu rities), th e Coun cil e stablishes fair 
value by using valuation techniques. 
 
These include reference to the fair val ues of recent 
arm’s lengt h transactio ns, involvin g the sam e 
instruments or othe r instrum ents that are  
substantially the same, discou nted ca sh flow 

analysis, and option pri cing models refined to reflect  
the issuer’s specific circumstances. 
 
The nominal value less estimated cre dit adjustments 
of trade re ceivables a nd payables are  assumed to  
approximate their fair values. 
 
The fai r val ue of  financi al liabilities f or disclosure 
purposes i s estimated by discounti ng the future 
contractual cash f lows at  the current market interest 
rate that is available t o the Co uncil for si milar 
financial instruments. 
 
(h) Receivables 
 
Receivables are initially re cognised at fair value a nd 
subsequently measu red at amortised cost, less any  
provision for impairment. 
 
Receivables (excluding Rates & Annual Charges) are 
generally du e for settlem ent no more than 30 day s 
from the date of recognition. 
 
The collectibility of receiv ables i s reviewed on an 
ongoing ba sis. Debt s which a re known to b e 
uncollectible are written  off in accorda nce wit h 
Council’s policy. 
 
A provision for impairment (ie. an allowance account) 
relating to re ceivables i s establi shed when there i s 
objective evidence that the Council will not be able to 
collect all amounts d ue accordi ng to the origin al 
terms of each receivable. 
 
The amo unt of the provision i s the differe nce 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated futu re ca sh flows, discounted at 
the effective interest rate. 
 
Indicators of impairment include; significant financial 
difficulties of  the debtor, probability that the debtor 
will enter bankruptcy or fi nancial reorganisation and 
default or d elinquency in payments (more tha n 30 
days overdue). Cash flo ws relating  to sho rt-term 
receivables are not discounted if  the effe ct o f 
discounting is immaterial. 
 
Impairment losse s are reco gnised in  the Income  
Statement within other expenses. 
 
When a re ceivable for which an  impairm ent 
allowance had be en reco gnised become s 
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uncollectible in a sub sequent period, it is written off  
against the allowance account. 
 
Subsequent re coveries of amo unts previou sly 
written off are credited against other expenses in the 
income statement. 
 
(i) Inventories 
 
Raw Materials and Stores, Work in Progress and 
Finished Goods 
 
Raw materia ls and sto res, work in p rogress an d 
finished go ods in respect of busi ness undertakings 
are all stated at the lo wer of cost and net realisable 
value. 
 
Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an 
appropriate pro portion of variabl e and  fixed 
overhead expenditure, th e latter b eing allocated on 
the basis of normal operating capacity. 
 
Costs a re assigned to in dividual items of inventory 
on the basis of weighted average costs. 
 
Net realisable value is th e estimated selling p rice in 
the ordina ry cou rse of b usiness le ss t he e stimated 
costs of co mpletion an d the estimated co sts 
necessary to make the sale. 
 
Land Held for Resale/Capitalisation of Borrowing 
Costs 
 
Land h eld for re sale i s st ated at the lowe r of co st 
and net realisable value. 
 
Cost is assigned by specifi c ide ntification a nd 
includes th e c ost o f a cquisition, a nd developm ent 
and borrowing costs during development. 
 
When devel opment i s completed borrowing co sts 
and other holding charges are expensed as incurred. 
 
Borrowing costs included in the cost of land hel d for 
resale are those costs that would have been avoided 
if the expenditure on  the acq uisition an d 
development of the land had not been made. 
 
Borrowing costs incurred while active developm ent 
is interrupted for extended periods are recognised as 
expenses. 
 

(j) Infrastructure, Prope rty, Plant and    

Equipment (I,PP&E) 
 
The use of an asset over its servi ce life requi res the 
injection of b oth capital funds to prolong its u se and 
maintenance expenditure  to keep t he asset in 
working order. 
 
As a gene ral guide, rep air and mainte nance of an  
asset i s a n expen se of  one  a ccounting p eriod, 
whereas a capital expen se changes or repla ces the 
service potential of the a sset an d i s expensed over 
the useful remaining life of the asset. 
 
Maintenance Expenditure on an asset 
Expenditure on  a ssets sh ould be  treate d a s 
maintenance expenditu re in th e followi ng 
circumstances: 
 

 It is part of an ongoi ng, regula r o r 
rotational maintena nce, repairs an d 
maintenance program. 

 It will not signifi cantly increase the 
service potential or useful life of the asset. 

 It relates to repair of l ocalised problems 
such as subsidence, breaking up, etc. 

 The basic qualities of the asset are n ot 
being upgraded. 

 Whilst relati ng to the acquisition or 
upgrading of an asset, it is not material to 
the total value of the relevant nature / type 
asset category 

 
Capital Expenditure on an asset 
Expenditure on assets should be classified as capital 
expenditure in the following circumstances: 

 It is expe cted to si gnificantly increa se 
the pra ctical cap acity or u seful life of th e 
asset. 

 It is an up grading of the basi c qualities 
of the asset. 

 It is a rene wal of an existing asset , 
which ha d reached th e point of bei ng 
unserviceable. 

 It is re construction of an  asset, which  
was destroyed. 

 It is  material to the total value of  the 
relevant nature/type asset category 

 
Initial Recognition and Capitalisation of Costs 
On initial recognition, an assets cost i s measured at 
its fair value. 
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Expenditure that is di rectly attrib utable to the  
acquisition should be capitalised when:- 
 

 It is probable that future (i.e. beyond the 
current finan cial ye ar) e conomic b enefits 
associated with the item will flow to 
Council; and 

 The cost of t he item can be measured 
reliably, and  this amount  (excludi ng any  
refundable taxes (GST etc)) is equal to or 
greater tha n the a sset capitali sation 
thresholds stated below.  

 
The initial cost of an  a sset sh ould inclu de the  
following items: 
 

 Any dire ctly attributable costs 
associated with bringin g the asset to the  
location an d condition n ecessary fo r it to 
be capable of ope rating in the  ma nner 
intended by Coun cil inclu ding; ini tial 
delivery and handling co sts; co sts of si te 
preparation; installation  and a ssembly 
costs. 

 Purchase price, including import dutie s, 
professional fees a nd non refundable 
purchase ta xes, after deducting tra de 
discounts and rebates. 

 The cost of  employee s/contract staff 
including: - design, survey, project 
management, supe rvision, an d 
construction staff and thei r associated on-
costs, set ea ch fina ncial year, to recove r 
workers co mpensation, supe rannuation, 
leave entitlements and training.  

 Fleet/plant hire co sts (p redominately 
internal hire rates set by Fleet Manager) 

 Initial esti mate of  costs of 
decommissioning, dismantling and 
removing the  item a nd restoring the  site 
on which it is located, where the Council is 
under an obligation to do so an d the 
amount can be reliably  measure d (i.e.  
make-good). 

 
Where settlement of any part of an asset’s cash  
consideration is deferred,  the amount s payable in 
the future are discounted to their present value as at 
the date of re cognition (i.e. date of exch ange) of the 
asset to arrive at fair value. 
 
The discount rate  used is the Council’s incremental 
borrowing rate, being  the  rate at which a  simil ar 

borrowing could be obtai ned from a n indepe ndent 
financier under comparable terms and conditions. 
Where i nfrastructure, property, plant a nd equi pment 
assets are a cquired for no cost o r fo r an a mount 
other tha n cost, the a ssets a re reco gnised in th e 
financial statements at th eir fair value  at acquisitio n 
date - bein g the amount that  the asset  could h ave 
been ex changed b etween kn owledgeable willin g 
parties in an arm’s length transaction. 
 
Capitalisation Procedures 
During the b udget process,  p roject ex penditure is 
identified and classified as a capital or operating item 
on the ge neral le dger. Capital or ope rating 
employee/plant cost s are  colle cted th rough we ekly 
timesheets allocations, whilst ot her co sts a re 
primarily captured using the purchasing system.  

 
At year end all proje ct expenditures wi th substantial 
transactions are re-evaluated to assess whether they 
remain a capital or o perating expense. (The se 
identified capital project expenditures can include the 
design and  survey co sts of future, yet to be 
constructed assets.) 
 
Asset capitalisation is finalise d upon th e 
commissioning of the asset. Capital costs in curred 
prior to commissioning, in prior financial periods, are 
held in the Works In Progress (WIP) accounts. 
 
Assets a re separated into  comp onent parts, where 
practical, a s each major part may ha ve a different 
useful life and require a different depreciation rate.  

 
Subsequent costs 
 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying 
amount o r recognised as a separate asset, a s 
appropriate, only when it  is probable that future  
economic benefits associ ated with the item will flow 
to Council and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. 
 
All repai rs and mainte nance are charged to th e 
income statement during the financial period in which 
they are incurred. 
 
Asset Revaluations (including Indexation) 
 
In accountin g for Asset  Revaluatio ns rel ating to 
Infrastructure, Property, and Plant & Equipment: 
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 Increases i n the carryi ng amo unts 
arising on re valuation a re credited to  the  
asset revaluation reserve. 

 To the extent that the increase reverses 
a decrease p reviously recognised via t he 
income s tatement, the inc rease is  firs t 
recognised in income statement. 

 Decreases that reverse previo us 
increases of the same asset are first  
charged a gainst revaluation reserv es 
directly in equity to  the extent of the 
remaining rese rve attri butable to the 
asset, with all  other decreases charged to 
the Income statement. 

 
Water and sewerage net work a ssets are in dexed 
annually betwee n full re valuations in accord ance 
with the latest indices provided in the NSW Office of 
Water - Reference Rates Manual. 
 
For all oth er a ssets, Council a ssesses at each 
reporting date whether there is any indication that a 
revalued a sset’s carrying am ount may diffe r 
materially from that which would be determined if the 
asset were revalued at the reporting date. 
 
If any such indication exists, Council determines the 
asset’s fai r value and revalues the asset to that 
amount. 
 
Full revaluations are undertaken for all  assets on a 
minimum 5 year cycle. 
 
Asset Classes 
 
Council will categorise Infrastructure, Property, Plant 
and Eq uipment into the fo llowing a sset cla sses a s 
required by the Local  Governm ent Code of  
Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting; 
 

 Plant and Equipment 
o (as approximated by depreciated 

historical cost) 
 Office Equipment 

o (as approximated by depreciated 
historical cost) 

 Furniture and Fittings  
o (as approximated by depreciated 

historical cost) 
 Operational Land (external valuation) 
 Community Land (external valuation) 
 Buildings – Speciali sed/Non Spe cialised 

(external valuation) 

 Other Structures (including tips & quarries) 
o (as ap proximated by d epreciated 

historical cost) 
 Investment Properties (external valuation) 
 Roads Assets incl. roads, bridges & fo otpaths 

(internal/external valuation) 
 Bulk Earthworks (internal/external valuation) 
 Drainage Assets (internal/external valuation) 
 Water a nd Sew erage N etworks 

(internal/external valuation) 
 Other Assets 
 (Artworks a s app roximated by  de preciated 

historical cost) 
 Reinstatement, Rehabilita tion and Re storation 

Assets (internal valuation) 
 
Capitalisation Thresholds 
 
Items of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 
are not capitalised u nless their cost of acq uisition 
exceeds the following; 
 

Land 
- council land  100% Capitalised  
- open space  100% Capitalised 
- land under roads  100% Capitalised 
 
 

Plant & Equipment 
- office furniture  > $5,000 
- office equipment > $5,000 
- other plant & equipment > $2,000 
 
Buildings 
- construction/extensions > $5,000 
- renovations   > $5,000 
 
- other structures  > $5,000 
- park furniture & equipment > $5,000 
 
 

Water & Sewer Assets 
- reticulation extensions > $5,000 
- other    > $5,000 
 
 

Stormwater Assets 
- drains & culverts  > $5,000 
- other    > $5,000 
 

 
Transport Assets 
- road construction & reconstruct     > $5,000 
- reseal/Re-sheet & major repairs:   > $5,000 
- bridge construction & reconstruct   >$5,000 
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Depreciation 
 
Depreciation o n C ouncil's infrastructure, property,  
plant and e quipment a ssets is calculat ed usi ng the 
straight line  method, with the e xception of  
water/sewerage above g round assets and transport 
assets, in  which case Coun cil u ses consumption 
based de preciation in order to all ocate an a ssets 
cost (net of residual values) over its estimated useful 
life. 
 
Land is not depreciated. 
 
Estimated useful lives for Council's I, PP&E include: 
 

Plant & Equipment 
- Office Equipment    10 years 
- Office furniture    10 years 
- Vehicles     2.5 years 
- Road Making equip.   5 - 10 years 
- Other plant and equipment   5 - 10 years 
 
 
Buildings (components) 
- Buildings : Floor          60 to 100 years 
- Buildings : Envelope  45 to 125 year 
- Buildings : Roof          40 to 90 years 
 
 
Stormwater Drainage 
- Drains   80 years 
- Culverts  80 years 
 
 
Transportation Assets 
- Sealed Roads Surface 20-25 years 
- Unsealed Road Surface 10 years 
- Concrete/paved Road 50 years 
- Road Pavement  40 years 
- Bridge : Concrete  80 years 
- bridges other   80 years 
- footpaths   50 years 
- kerb & guttering  50 years 
- traffic facilities   20 years 
 
 
Water & Sewer Assets 
- dams and reservoirs  100 years 
- PVC & other   70 years 
- pumps and telemetry 20 years 
 
 
  Other Infrastructure Assets 
- bulk earthworks  Infinite 
- flood control structures 80 years 

All asset re sidual value s an d u seful lives a re 
reviewed and adjusted (where appropriate), at each 
reporting date. 
 
An asset’s carrying amount is written d own 
immediately to its re coverable amount if the asset’s 
carrying am ount i s g reater tha n it s e stimated 
recoverable amount. 
 
Disposal and De-recognition 
 
An item of prop erty, plant and equipment i s 
derecognised upo n di sposal or when no fu rther 
future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal. 
 
Any gain or loss ari sing on de-re cognition of the 
asset (cal culated a s th e difference between the net 
disposal p roceeds a nd th e carrying amount of the  
asset) i s i ncluded in Council’s In come Statement i n 
the year the asset is derecognised. 
 
(k) Land 
 
Land (other than La nd und er Roads) i s in  
accordance with Part 2 of Cha pter 6 of the LGA  
classified as either Operational or Community.  
 
(l) Land Under Roads 
 
Council has elected to recognise land under roads in 
accordance with AASB 1051. Council used the 
"Englobo" va luation m ethod for l and under road s. 
This requires the calculation of an average Site value 
(SV) of the Council area on a dollar per square metre 
basis. The site value i s "the value  of t he underlying 
land assuming that any existing imp rovements have 
not been m ade. It also a ssumes that t he land i s not 
encumbered by any le ase, mortg age or othe r 
charge." - Australian P roperty Insti tute, 2004. 
Adjustment factors for 65% and  25 % re spectively 
have been applied for Englobo value and access and 
carriageway rights and  infrastructure (other users for 
carriageway reserve and infrastructure). 
 
Land under roads is lan d under roadways and road  
reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips 
and median strips.  
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(m) Intangible Assets - IT Development and 
Software 

 
Costs i ncurred in  a cquiring software and li censes 
that will contribute to futu re period financial benefits 
through reve nue ge neration and/o r cost red uction 
are capitalised to software and systems. 
 
Costs capitalised i nclude external direct cost s of  
materials a nd se rvice. No dire ct payrol l and p ayroll 
related costs of em ployees’ time  are capitalised to  
these projects. 
 
Amortisation is calculated  on a straight line b ases 
over periods generally ranging from 3 to 5 years. 
 
(n) Crow n Reserves 
 
Crown Re serves un der Coun cil’s care and control 
are re cognised a s assets of th e Council. While 
ownership of  the reserves remains with the Crown, 
Council retains op erational c ontrol of th e r eserves 
and is responsible for the ir maintenance and u se in 
accordance with the sp ecific purposes to which th e 
reserves are dedicated. 
 
Improvements on Cro wn Re serves are al so 
recorded a s assets, while mainten ance co sts 
incurred by Council and  reven ues relating to  th e 
reserves a re r ecognised w ithin C ouncil’s In come 
Statement. 
 
(o) Rural Fire Service Assets 
 
Under section 119 of t he Rural Fi res Act 1997, “all 
fire fighting equipment purchased or constructed 
wholly or from money to the credit of the Fund is to 
be vested in the council of the area for or on behalf 
of which the fire fighting equipment has been 
purchased or constructed”. 
 
At prese nt, the accou nting for such  fire fighting 
equipment i s not treated  in a  con sistent mann er 
across all Councils. 
 
Until such t ime a s di scussions o n t his mat ter h ave 
concluded and the legisl ation changed, Council will 
continue to a ccount for th ese assets as it has be en 
doing in p revious years, which is to in corporate the 
assets, their values and depreciation charges within 
these financial statements. 
 
 

(p) Investment Property 
 
Investment property comprises land and/or buildings 
that are pri ncipally held f or long -term rental yield s, 
capital g ains or both th at are n ot occupi ed by  
Council. 
 
Investment property is ca rried at  fair value , 
representing an o pen-market valu e dete rmined 
annually by external valuers. 
 
Annual changes in th e fair value  of  Investme nt 
Properties are recorded in the Income Statement as 
part of “Other Income”. 
 
Full revaluations of investment properties are carried 
out every year. 
 
(q) Provisions for close d own, restoration  

and for environmental clean-up c osts – 
including Tips and Quarries 

 
Close down, Re storation and  Reme diation costs 
include the  dism antling and demolition of  
infrastructure, the re moval of re sidual materials and 
the remediation of disturbed areas. 
 
Estimated cl ose d own a nd re storation co sts a re 
provided fo r in the  a ccounting pe riod when th e 
obligation a rising from  the rel ated distu rbance 
occurs, whether this occurs during the  development 
or d uring th e op eration phase, b ased on  the n et 
present value of estimated future costs. 

 
Provisions fo r clo se do wn and re storation co sts d o 
not inclu de any addition al obligatio ns whi ch are 
expected to arise from future disturbance. 
 
Costs are estimated on the basis of a closure plan. 
 
The cost estimates are calculated annually during the 
life of the operation to reflect known d evelopments, 
e.g. update d co st e stimates a nd revisions to th e 
estimated lives of ope rations, a nd are subje ct to  
formal review at regular intervals. 
 
Close down, Restoration and Remediation costs are 
a normal con sequence of tip and qu arry operations, 
and the m ajority of clo se do wn a nd rest oration 
expenditure i s incurred at  the end of the life of the 
operations. 
 



 

  Financial Statements 2013_ 

 
 
Tweed Shire Council 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 
 
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 

 
  page 24 
 

Although th e ultimate co st to be incurre d is 
uncertain, Coun cil estimates the re spective co sts 
based on fe asibility and engineering studies u sing 
current restoration standards and techniques. 
 
The amo rtisation or ‘un winding’ of the discount  
applied in  e stablishing t he n et p resent value  of 
provisions i s ch arged to  the in come stateme nt i n 
each accounting period. 
 
Other movements in the provisions for Close down, 
Restoration a nd Remedi ation cost s in cluding th ose 
resulting fro m new di sturbance, u pdated cost 
estimates, chang es to the estimate d lives of 
operations a nd revisio ns to disco unt rates are  
capitalised within pro perty, plant and  equipm ent. 
These co sts are then depreciated over the live s of  
the assets to which they relate. 
 
Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically 
over the life of the ope ration, rather than at the time  
of clo sure, provision i s mad e for t he e stimated 
outstanding continuous rehabilitation work at e ach 
balance shee t date a nd th e cost i s charged to the  
income statement. 
 
Provision is made for the estimated present value of 
the cost s o f environ mental cl eanup obligatio ns 
outstanding at the b alance sheet date. These co sts 
are charged to the income statement. 
 
(r) Impairment of Infrastructure, Pro perty, 

Plant and Equipment Assets  
 
All Coun cil's Infrastru cture, Prope rty, Plant and 
Equipment is su bject to  a n ann ual assessment of  
impairment. 
 
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed 
for imp airment wh enever events o r changes i n 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may 
not be recoverable. 
 
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by 
which the a sset’s carrying amo unt excee ds it s 
recoverable amount. 
 
The recoverable amount is the  higher of an asset’s 
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 
 
For non-cash generating a ssets of Co uncil such as 
roads, drains, and public buildings etc - value in use 
is re presented by the “de prival value ” of the asset 

which is a pproximated as it's written do wn 
replacement cost. 
 
Other assets are  teste d for imp airment wh enever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. 
 
(s) Control of Infrastru cture, Pro perty, 

Plant and Equipment 
 
In accordance with AASB 116 the cost of an item of 
property, pla nt and e quipment is recognised a s a n 
asset if, and only if: 

a) it is prob able that future  econ omic b enefits 
associated with the item will  flow to   the 
entity; and 
 

b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
 

An asse ssment of contro l of the asset is req uired 
where it i s un certain as to whether the  future 
economic benefit associated with the item will flow to 
the entity (Council).  
 
The following test is applied: 
 
1. Council can deny or regulate access of others to 

the asset. 
 

2. The a sset is held to m eet the obje ctives o f 
Council. 

 
3. Council enjoys the majo rity of risks an d benefits 

relating to the asset. 
 
(t) Non-Current Assets (or Di sposal 

Groups) “Held for Sale” & Discontinued 
Operations 

 
Non-current assets (o r disposal  group s) are  
classified as held for sale and stated at the lowe r of 
either (i) their carrying amount and (ii) fair value less 
costs to  se ll, if their carrying am ount will b e 
recovered principally th rough a sale tra nsaction 
rather than through continuing use. 
 
The exceptio n to this i s plant an d m otor vehi cles 
which are turned over on a regular basis. Plant and  
motor vehi cles are retai ned in Non Current Assets 
under the  classification o f Infrastructu re, Prope rty, 
Plant and Eq uipment - u nless the asse ts are to be  
traded in afte r 30 Jun e and the repla cement assets 
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were already purchased and accounted for a s at 30 
June. 
 
For any assets or disposal groups classified as Non-
Current Assets “held for sale”, an impai rment loss is 
recognised a t any time w hen the asset’s ca rrying 
value is greater than its fair value less costs to sell. 
 
Non-current assets “h eld for sale” a re not 
depreciated or amortised while they are classified as 
“held for sale”. 
 
Non-current assets classified as “hel d for sale ” are 
presented separately from  the othe r a ssets i n the  
balance sheet. 
 
(u) Pa yables 
 
These a mounts represent liabilities and i nclude 
goods and services provided to  the Council prior to 
the end of financial year which are unpaid. 
 
The amounts for good s and services are unsecure d 
and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. 
 
(v) Borrow ings 
 
Borrowings are initially recogni sed at fair value, net  
of transaction costs incurred.  
 
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost. 
 
Amortisation results i n a ny differen ce between the  
proceeds (n et of tran saction cost s) an d the  
redemption amount being recognised in the Income  
Statement ov er th e p eriod of the  bo rrowings using 
the effective interest method. 
 
Borrowings are removed  from the balan ce sh eet 
when th e ob ligation sp ecified in  th e c ontract is 
discharged, cancelled or expired. 
 
Borrowings are classified as  current liabilities unless 
the Co uncil has an unconditional right to defe r 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 
the balance sheet date. 
 
(w) Borrow ing costs 
 
Borrowing costs are expensed. 
 
 

(x) Provisions 
 
Provisions fo r legal cl aims, servi ce warrantie s and  
other like liabilities are recognised when: 
 
 Council has a prese nt legal o r constructive  

obligation as a result of past events; 
 
 it is more li kely than not that an outflow of 

resources will be re quired to settle the o bligation; 
and 

 
 the amount has been reliably estimated.  
 
Provisions a re not recogn ised for future operating  
losses. 
 
Where there are a nu mber of similar obl igations, the 
likelihood th at an outflow will be  requi red i n 
settlement is determined by considering the class of 
obligations as a whole. 
 
A provision is recognised even if the li kelihood of an  
outflow with respect to a ny one item in cluded in the  
same class of obligations may be small. 
 
Provisions a re measure d at the present value of 
management’s be st e stimate of the  expenditu re 
required to settle the p resent oblig ation at the  
reporting date. 
 
The di scount rate u sed t o determi ne the pre sent 
value refle cts cu rrent ma rket asse ssments of th e 
time value of money a nd the ri sks sp ecific to the  
liability. 
 
The increase in the p rovision due to th e passage of 
time is recognised as interest expense. 
 
(y) Emplo yee benefits 
 
(i) Short Term Obligations 
 
Short term  employee b enefit oblig ations in clude 
liabilities for wages and salari es (including non-
monetary benefits), ann ual leave and  vesting sick 
leave expect ed to be set tled within the 12 month s 
after the end of the reporting period. 
 
Leave liabiliti es a re re cognised in the provisi on for 
employee benefits in respect of employees’ services 
up to th e reporting d ate with  othe r short term  
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employee b enefit oblig ations di sclosed und er 
payables. 
 
These p rovisions are m easured at t he am ounts 
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.  
 
Liabilities fo r non vestin g sick leave a re recognised 
at the time when the leave is taken and measured at 
the rate s p aid or payable, and a ccordingly n o 
Liability has been recognised in these reports. 
 
(ii) Other Long Term Obligations 
 
The liability for all long se rvice and annual leave in  
respect of services provided by employees up to the 
reporting date (whi ch i s n ot expe cted t o be settled 
within th e 1 2 month s after the e nd of t he reporting 
period) are recognised in the provision for employee 
benefits. 
 
These liabiliti es are measured at the present value 
of the expect ed future p ayments to be made u sing 
the projected unit credit method. 
 
Consideration is give n to expected future wage and 
salary levels,  experie nce of employee  depa rtures 
and periods of service. 
 
Expected future payments are then discounted using 
market yields at the reporting date based on national 
government bond s with  terms to maturity and  
currency th at match  a s clo sely as po ssible th e 
estimated future cash outflows. 
 
Due to  the nature of whe n and  ho w L ong Se rvice 
Leave can b e taken, all Long Se rvice Leave for 
employees with 4 or more years of service has been 
classified a s Cu rrent, as it has been deem ed tha t 
Council do es not h ave t he u nconditional right to  
defer settlement beyond 12 months – even though it 
is not anti cipated that all employees with more th an 
4 years servi ce (as at repo rting date) will apply for 
and ta ke th eir le ave e ntitlements i n the next 1 2 
months. 
 
(iii) Retirement benefit obligations 
 
All employees of the Council are entitled to be nefits 
on retirement, disability or death.  
 
Council contributes to various defined benefit plans 
and defin ed contri bution plans on behalf of its 
employees. 

Defined Benefit Plans 
 
A liability or asset in respect of d efined b enefit 
superannuation plans would ordinarily be recognised 
in th e balance sh eet, an d me asured as  th e pr esent 
value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting 
date pl us unrecognised actu arial gains (l ess 
unrecognised actua rial losses) less the  fair value of  
the superannuation fund’s asset s at that date and 
any unrecognised past service cost. 
 
The present value of the  defined benefit obligation is 
based on expected future payments which arise from 
membership of the  fun d to th e re porting date,  
calculated an nually by ind ependent a ctuaries u sing 
the proj ected unit credit method. Con sideration i s 
given to exp ected future  wag e a nd salary level s, 
experience o f employee  departures a nd p eriods o f 
service. 
 
However, when this inf ormation is not reliabl y 
available, Council can account for its obligations to  
defined b enefit plans o n the sa me basi s a s its 
obligations to defined contribution plans – i.e. as a n 
expense when they become payable. 
 
Council is pa rty to an  Industry Defined Benefit Pla n 
under the  Local Government Superann uation 
Scheme, named th e “Lo cal Governm ent 
Superannuation Scheme – Pool B” 
 
This Schem e has b een deemed to  be a “mult i 
employer fund” for the purposes of AASB 119.  
 
Sufficient inf ormation i s n ot available  to a ccount fo r 
the Scheme as a defined benefit plan (in accordance 
with AASB 119) because the ass ets to the sc heme 
are pooled together for all Councils. 
 
The last valuation of the Scheme was perfo rmed by 
Mercer Actuaries on 30/06/13 and covers the period 
ended 30/06/13. 
 
However the position is monitored annually and th e 
Actuary ha s estimated th at as at 30 June 20 13 the  
prior period deficit still exists. 
 
Effective from 1 July 2009, employers are required to 
contribute additional contributions t o a ssist in  
extinguishing this deficit. 
 
The amount of employer contributions to the defined 
benefit section of the Lo cal Governme nt 
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Superannuation S cheme and  recog nised a s a n 
expense an d discl osed a s pa rt of Supera nnuation 
Expenses at Note 4(a) for the year ending 30 Jun e 
2013 was $1,789,783 
 
The a mount of addition al co ntributions in cluded i n 
the total employer cont ribution advised a bove is 
$661,038. 
 
Council’s sh are of the  deficien cy cann ot b e 
accurately calcul ated a s the Schem e is a mutu al 
arrangement where assets and liabilities are pooled 
together for all member councils. 
 
The share of the deficit that can be broadly attributed 
to Cou ncil i s estimated t o be in th e order of $ 3.1 
million as at 30 June 2013. 
 
For thi s reason, no liabilit y for the deficiency has 
been recognised in these financial statements. 
 
Council has, however, disclosed a contingent liability 
in Note 18 to reflect the p ossible obligation that may 
arise should the Scheme require immediate payment 
to correct the deficiency.   
 
Defined Contribution Plans 
 
Contributions to Defin ed Cont ribution Plan s a re 
recognised as an expense as they become payable.  
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to 
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the 
future payments is available. 
 
(z) Emplo yee Benefit On-Costs 
 
Council ha s recognised a t year end the aggregate 
on-cost liabil ities ari sing from employee benefits, 
and i n pa rticular th ose o n-cost li abilities th at will  
arise when payment of cu rrent employee benefits is 
made in future periods. 
 
These am ounts in clude Supe rannuation an d 
Workers Compensa tion expenses which will be 
payable u pon the future payment of certain L eave 
Liabilities accrued as at 30/6/13. 
 
(aa) Self insurance 
 
Council does not self insure. 
 
 

(ab) Allocation betw een current and  non-
current assets & liabilities 

 
In the determination of whether an asset or liability is 
classified as current or no n-current, consideration is 
given to the  time when each asset or liability is 
expected to be settled. 
 
The asset or liability is classified as current if it is 
expected to be settled wi thin the next  12 month s, 
being the Council’s operational cycle. 
 
Exceptions 
 
In the case of liabilities where Council does not have 
the unconditional right to defer settlement beyond 12 
months (such as ve sted long service leave), th e 
liability is classified as current even if not expected to 
be settled within the next 12 months. 
 
In the ca se of inventories that are “held for tradi ng”, 
these are al so cla ssified as curre nt even if not 
expected to be realised in the next 12 months. 
 
(ac) Taxes 
 
Council i s lia ble to pay variou s taxe s and finan cial 
duties. Where this i s the case, they a re to disclo sed 
as a cost of operation s in  the sam e m anner a s all  
other costs. 
 
However, wh ere Cou ncil doe s not pay taxes which 
are ge nerally paid by private se ctor bu siness, su ch 
as income tax, these equi valent tax payments a re to 
be appli ed to all Co uncil n ominated bu siness 
activities an d reflecte d in the Special Purpo se 
Financial Reports. 
 
The Coun cil is exempt from both Commonwealth 
Income Tax and Capital Gains Tax. 
 
Council do es h owever ha ve to  c omply w ith b oth 
Fringe Benef its Tax an d Goods a nd Services T ax 
(GST). 
 
Goods & Services Tax (GST) 
 
Income, expenses and assets are all recognised net 
of the amou nt of GST, e xcept where the amount of 
GST incurred is not recov erable from the Australi an 
Tax Office (ATO). 
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In these ci rcumstances the GST is to be reco gnised 
as part of th e cost of a cquisition of the asset or as 
part of the revenue / expense. 
 
Receivables and payables within the Balance Sheet 
are to be stated inclusive of any applicable GST. 
 
The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable 
to the ATO is to be in cluded a s a current a sset o r 
current liability in the Balance Sheet. 
 
Operating cash flows within the Ca sh Flow 
Statement are to be on a  gross basis, i.e. they are 
inclusive of GST where applicable. 
Investing and Financing cash flows are to be treated 
on a net ba sis (whe re recoverabl e fro m the ATO),  
i.e. they are exclusive of GST. Instead, the GST 
component o f investing  a nd fina ncing activity ca sh 
flows which are re coverable from or payable to the 
ATO are to be classified as operating cash flows. 
 
Commitments and contingencies are to be disclosed 
net of the amount of G ST recovera ble from (or 
payable to) the ATO. 
 
(ad) New a ccounting sta ndards and UIG 

interpretations 
 
Certain new (or amended) accounting standards and 
interpretations have been publi shed that are not 
mandatory for repo rting perio ds ending 3 0 Ju ne 
2013. 
 
Council has not adopted any of thes e standards 
early. 
 
Council’s asse ssment of the impact of these ne w 
standards and interpretations is set out below. 
 
Applicable to Lo cal Gov ernment with 
implications: 
 
AASB 9 Financial Instruments, associated 
standards, AASB 2010-7 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards arising from 
AASB 9 a nd AASB 2012-6 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory 
Effective Date of AASB 9 and transitional 
disclosures (effective from 1 January 2015)   
 
AASB 9 Financ ial Ins truments addresses the 
classification, mea surement and  de -recognition of 
financial assets and financial liabilities. 

The standard is not appli cable until 1 Janua ry 2015 
but is available for early adoption. 
 
When ado pted, the standa rd will affect in particula r 
Council’s accounting f or it s ava ilable-for-sale 
financial assets, si nce A ASB 9 only  permits the 
recognition o f fair value gains and l osses i n othe r 
comprehensive income if they relate to equity 
investments that are not held for trading. 
 
Fair value gains and losses on available-for-sale debt 
investments, for example,  will therefore have to be 
recognised directly in profit or lo ss although there is 
currently a propos al by the IASB to int roduce a Fair 
value thro ugh Othe r Comp rehensive Inco me 
category for debt instruments.  
 
There will be no  impact on Council’s accounting fo r 
financial liabi lities, as th e new requirements only  
affect the a ccounting for financial liabil ities that are  
designated a t fair value throu gh p rofit or lo ss and 
Council does not have any such liabilities. 
 
The de-recognition rules have been transferred from 
AASB 139 F inancial Instrum ents: Recognition and 
Measurement and have not been changed. 
 
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 
2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from AASB 13 (effective 1 
January 2013) 
 
AASB 13 explains  how to meas ure fair value and 
aims to enhance fair value disclosures. 
 
Council has yet to determine which, if any, of its 
current measurement techniques will have to change 
as a result of the new guidance. 
 
It is therefore not possible to state the impact, if any , 
of the new rules on any of the amounts recognised in 
the financial statements. 
 
However, application of the new standard will impact 
the type of information disclosed in th e notes to th e 
financial statements. 
 
Council d oes not intend to adopt the new standard 
before its operative date, which means that it would  
be first applied in the an nual reporting period ending 
30 June 2014. 
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Applicable to Local  Gov ernment bu t n o 
implications for Council; 
 
AASB 2012-2 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Disclosures – Offsetting 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 
132 & AASB 7] (effective 1 January 2013) 
 
This Stan dard ame nds th e re quired di sclosures i n 
AASB 7 to  include information that will enabl e users 
of an e ntity’s fina ncial st atements to evaluate the  
effect or pot ential effe ct of netting arrangements, 
including rights of set-off associ ated with the entity’s 
recognised financial assets and recognised financial 
liabilities, on the entity’s financial position. 
 
This Standard also amends AASB 132 to refer to the 
additional di sclosures a dded to AAS B 7 by this 
Standard. 
 
The adoption of this st andard will not  change the 
reported fin ancial position and performance of th e 
entity, there are no i mpact on di sclosures a s the re 
are no offsetting arrangements currently in place.    
 
AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial 
Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 132] 
(effective 1 January 2014). 
 
This Standard adds appli cation gui dance to AASB 
132 to address inconsistencies identified in applying 
some of the offsetting criteria of AASB 132, including 
clarifying the  meaning of  “cu rrently has a legally  
enforceable right of set- off” and that some gross 
settlement systems may be considered equivalent to 
net settlement. 
 
The adoption of this st andard will not  change the 
reported fin ancial position and performance of th e 
entity, there are no i mpact on di sclosures a s the re 
are no offsetting arrangements currently in place. 
 
Applicable to Local Government but not relevant 
to Council at this stage; 
 
AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, 
AASB 11 Joint Arrangements, AASB 12 
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, revised 
AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements and 
AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint 
Ventures and AASB 2011-7 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards arising from 

the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements 
Standards (effective 1 January 2013) 
 
This suite o f five new and ame nded stand ards 
address th e acco unting fo r joi nt arrangements, 
consolidated financial st atements a nd asso ciated 
disclosures. 
 
AASB 10 replaces all of the guidance on control and 
consolidation in AASB  127 Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements, and Interpretation 12 
Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities. 
 
The core principle that a consolidated entity presents 
a pa rent an d its subsidiaries as if they  are a  si ngle 
economic e ntity remain s un changed, as do the 
mechanics of consolidation. Ho wever, the stan dard 
introduces a single definition of control that applies to 
all entities. 
 
It focuses on the need to have both power and rights 
or exposure to variable returns. 
 
Power is the current ability to direct the activities that 
significantly influence returns. Returns must vary and 
can be positive, negative or both. 
 
Control exists when the investor can use its power to 
affect the amount of its returns. 
 
There i s al so ne w g uidance on participating an d 
protective rights and on agent/principal relationships. 
Council does not expect the new standard to have a 
significant impact. 
 
AASB 11 introduc es a princ iples based approac h to 
accounting for joint arrangements. 
 
The focus i s no long er on the legal st ructure of joint 
arrangements, but rath er on how rights and 
obligations are shared by the partie s to the joint 
arrangement. 
 
Based on the assessment of rights and obligations, a 
joint arrange ment will be classified as either a joint  
operation or a joint venture. 
 
Joint venture s are a ccounted for usin g the equity 
method, a nd the choice t o p roportionately 
consolidate will no longer be permitted. 
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Parties to a joint operation will account their share of 
revenues, ex penses, asse ts and liabilit ies in mu ch 
the same way as under the previous standard. 
 
AASB 11 als o provides guidance for parties  that 
participate i n joint a rrangements but do not share 
joint control. 
 
Council's investment in th e joint venture partn ership 
will be  cla ssified as a joi nt venture under the n ew 
rules. 
 
As Coun cil already ap plies th e e quity method i n 
accounting f or this i nvestment, AASB  11 will not 
have any im pact o n the amounts recogni sed in it s 
financial statements. 
 
AASB 12 sets  out the required dis closures for 
entities rep orting under the two ne w standa rds, 
AASB 10 and AASB 11, and repl aces the disclosure 
requirements currently found in AASB 127 and 
AASB 128. 
 
Application of this standard by Coun cil will not affect 
any of the amounts recogni sed i n the finan cial 
statements, but will im pact the type of information 
disclosed in relation to Council's investments.  
 
Amendments to AASB 128 provide clarification that  
an entity con tinues to a pply the equity method a nd 
does not remeasure its retained i nterest a s p art o f 
ownership changes where a joint ventu re b ecomes 
an associate, and vice versa. 
 
The amendments also introduce a “partial disposal” 
concept. 
 
Council i s still assessi ng the i mpact of these 
amendments.  
 
Council does not expect t o adopt the new standards 
before their operative date. 
 
They would therefore be first applied in the fina ncial 
statements for the annual reporting period ending 30 
June 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Revised AASB 119 Employee Benefits, AASB 
2011-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 
2011) and AASB 2011-11 Amendments to AASB 
119 (September 2011) arising from Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements (effective 1 January 
2013) 
 
This revise d standa rd on  accountin g for employe e 
benefits re quires the  reco gnition of all r e-
measurements of define d benef it liab ilities/assets 
immediately in other comp rehensive in come 
(removal of t he so-calle d 'corridor' met hod) and  the 
calculation of a net intere st expen se o r income by  
applying the discount rate  to the net defined be nefit 
liability or asset. 
 
This replaces the expected return on plan assets that 
is currently included in profit or loss. 
 
The standard also introduces a number of additional 
disclosures f or defined b enefit liabiliti es/assets and 
could affe ct the timing  of the recognition of 
termination benefits. 
 
The amendments will have to be implemented 
retrospectively. 
 
Council does not recogni se defined b enefit a ssets 
and liabilitie s for the rea sons set ou t in Note 1 
paragraph (y) (iii) and so these changes will not have 
an impact on its reported results. 
 
Not applicable to Local Government per se; 
 
AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from Annual 
Improvements 2009–2011 Cycle (effective 1 
January 2013) 
 
AASB 1 - this  standard clarifies that an entity can 
apply AASB 1 more than once. An entity can elect to 
apply AASB 123 from the transition date or an earlier 
date. 
 
AASB 101 - clarifies that a third statement of financial 
position is required when the opening statement of  
financial po sition i s m aterially affe cted by a ny 
adjustments. 
 
AASB 116 - clarifies the classifi cation of servicing 
equipment. 
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AASB 132 and Interpretation 2 - clarifies that income 
tax relating  to di stributions to holders of an equity 
instrument a nd to transa ction cost s of an equity 
transaction shall be a ccounted for in  accordan ce 
with AASB 112 Income Taxes 
 
AASB 134 - provides cl arification about segment  
reporting. 
The amendments arising from this standard are not 
expected to change the reported financial position or 
performance of the Council. 
 
There ar e n o other standards that are not y et 
effective and that are expected to have a material 
impact on the entity  in  the curren t or futu re 
reporting p eriods a nd on fores eeable future 
transactions. 
 
(ae) Rounding of amounts 
 
Unless otherwise indicated, amounts in the fin ancial 
statements h ave be en rounded off to  the n earest 
thousand dollars. 
 
(af) Comparativ e Figures 
 
To ensure comparability with the current reporting 
period’s figures, some comparative period line items 
and am ounts may h ave bee n reclassified o r 
individually reporte d for the first time within these  
financial statements and/or the notes. 
 
(ag) Disclaimer  
 
Nothing cont ained within these  statements may be 
taken to be an admissi on of any li ability to any 
person under any circumstance. 
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117,973  
 Share of gains/(losses) in Associates &

 General Purpose Income 1

 Continuing Operations

63,650    
  Joint Ventures (using the Equity Method)

 Operating Result from

-             

 Economic Affairs

90,936     Total Functions & Activities

8,291      

62,875    60,854    

181,623  151,790  169,491  160,747  177,803  

-             
-             -             

7,041      7,948      

-             
-             

-             

7,953      8,050      

114,928  160,747  169,491  

Financial S
tatem

ents 2013

-             
12,306    

14,137    2,748,643 

(11,125)  
-             

2,873,447 

104,757    112,721    

2,748,643 

-                
-                

2,873,447 

-                

26,443    

-                
9,758      

22,614    

1,675      
751,858    

158,335  

-             
20           

158,315  

-             

(20)         

-             

12,856    (43,387)  

19,468    

(867)       
1,781      3,158      

-             1,250      

(69,811)  

(8,957)    

-             -             

12,132    

6,375      

62,875    60,854    63,650    

(14,176)  
1,081      

(16,888)  (14,425)  

5             

-             

(20,579)  
(317)       

(51,518)  

7,238        

7,364        
46             

143,509    (3,453)    (6,373)    

479         
(7,068)    

(897)       (555)       

104         
2,452      

8,441      
(223)       

1,439      
716         

-                
50,580      18,971      

143,725    
725           

9,593        
84,180      959         764         

(2,205)    
-             (1,307)    -             

7,809      
(1,013)    

775         -             
3,726      

Actual  
2013

163           
2012

245         228         4,309        

5,825      
514,321    

77,849      

644,402    
505,623    
638,025    363         

303         

(1,230)    
(1,812)    

1,069      
154         (3,700)    

(11,876)  
(4,188)    

Actual  

90,360      3,327        
859,709    

460,962    615         333         387,773    
2,415      1,425      

25,494    
(1,123)    

(11,755)  14,484     Transport & Communication 4,915      
 Mining, Manufacturing & Construction 1,108      1,292      

19,381    

22,087    23,407    22,875    
31,910    24,580    

31,136    

(4,581)    6,594      
792         

1,954      

10,800    

18,951    
23,469    24,990    

1,087      
25,609    

5,983      19,399    20,159    

3,732      5,581      

20,602    

6,235       Housing & Community Amenities 1,654      
 Water Supplies

 Recreation & Culture 2,511      

24,199    
 Sewerage Services 25,661    

23,354    21,864    
30,815    

4,526      

1,807       Community Services & Education 2,335      
(4,937)    23,188    

3,018      2,463      
19,666    26,039    24,055    

(881)       

345         1,571      

3,216      

1,660      

2,704      

(1,322)    1,652      

-             
2,582      17,982    

 Health
 Environment 18,251    

899         3,041      
338         341         

913         3,219       Public Order & Safety

 Governance
 Administration

(3,901)    
(11,959)  (17,208)  

1,229      

2013
Actual  

Original  
Budget  

2013
Actual  Budget  

(2,320)    3,118      
774         2,941      

-             -             
14,541    

3,700      
14,817    

4,188      3,901      

Operating Result from 
Continuing Operations

Original  
Budget  

Original  
Actual  

2013 20122013 2013
Actual  

2012
Actual  

2012 2013

$ '000 Income, Expenses and Assets have been directly attributed to the following Functions / Activities.
Details of these Functions/Activities are provided in Note 2(b).

Income from Continuing 
Operations

Expenses from Continuing 
Operations

Total Assets held 
(Current &                          

Non-current) Functions/Activities

20132012
Actual  Actual  Actual  

Grants included in 
Income from 
Continuing 
Operations
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Details relating to the Council's functions / activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:

GOVERNANCE

ADMINISTRATION

PUBLIC ORDER & SAFETY

HEALTH

ENVIRONMENT

COMMUNITY SERVICES & EDUCATION

HOUSING & COMMUNITY AMENITIES

WATER SUPPLIES
SEWERAGE SERVICES

RECREATION & CULTURE

MINING, MANUFACTURING & CONSTRUCTION

TRANSPORT & COMMUNICATION

ECONOMIC AFFAIRS

Noxious plants and insect/vermin control, other environmental protection, solid waste management, street
cleaning, drainage, stormwater management.

Costs relating to the Council’s role as a component of democratic government, including elections, members’
fees and expenses, subscriptions to local authority associations, meetings of council and policy making
committees, area representation and public disclosure and compliance.

Corporate Support and Other Support Services (not otherwise attributed to the listed functions / activities).

Fire protection, animal control, beach control, enforcement of local government regulations, emergency
services, other.

Inspection, immunisations, food control, health centres, other, administration.

Camping areas, caravan parks, tourism and area promotion, industrial development promotion, saleyards and
markets, real estate development, commercial nurseries, other business undertakings.

Administration, family day care, child care, youth services, other family and children, aged and disabled, migrant
services, Aboriginal services, other community services, education.

Housing, town planning, street lighting, other sanitation and garbage, public cemeteries, public conveniences,
other community amenities.

Public libraries, museums, art galleries, community centres, public halls, other cultural services, swimming
pools, sporting grounds, parks and gardens (lakes), other sport and recreation.

Building control, abattoirs, quarries & pits, other.

Urban roads, sealed rural roads, unsealed rural roads, bridges, footpaths, aerodromes, parking areas, bus
shelters and services, water transport, RMS works, other.
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations

$ '000

(a) Rates & Annual Charges

Ordinary Rates
Residential
Farmland
Business
Total Ordinary Rates

Special Rates
Sewerage Services
Main Street - Tweed Heads
Koala Beach
Total Special Rates

Annual Charges   (pursuant to s.496, s.496A, s.496B, s.501 & s.611)
Domestic Waste Management Services
Water Supply Services
Sewerage Services
Waste Management Services (non-domestic)
Waste Levy
Total Annual Charges

TOTAL RATES & ANNUAL CHARGES

Council has used 2011 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.

Notes 2013

798               
1,701            

3,930            

2012

91                 
67                 

2,702            
38,387          

4,480            

Actual 

41,547          

4,705            
2,789            

Actual 

19,627          

45,569          

7,975            

55                 

73                 
91                 

219               229               

8,463            

71                 

3,610            

79,509      

33,711          

21,086          
1,889            

49,041          

36,423          

85,683      

1,055            
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations (continued)

$ '000

(b) User Charges & Fees

Specific User Charges   (per s.502 - Specific "actual use" charges)

Domestic Waste Management Services
Water Supply Services
Sewerage Services
Waste Management Services (non-domestic)
Sanitary Services
Total User Charges

Other User Charges & Fees
(i) Fees & Charges - Statutory & Regulatory Functions   (per s.608)

Building
Private Works
Section 603 Certificates
Town Planning
Animal Control
Health Approvals
Total Fees & Charges - Statutory/Regulatory

(ii) Fees & Charges - Other (incl. General User Charges   (per s.608)

Beach Vehicles
Caravan Parks
Cemeteries
Parking Fees
Parks & Gardens
Pools
Saleyards
Sewer/Drainage
Sportsgrounds
Tweed Laboratory
Water Connection Fees
Other
Total Fees & Charges - Other

TOTAL USER CHARGES & FEES 37,177      33,843      

422               682               
179               

2,283            

55                 
1,181            

206               

12,584          

100               

2,153            

Actual 
2013

1                   
3,010            

12,627          
2,005            

-                    

1,542            

2012

14,712          

44                 

2,345            

41                 

32                 

538               

548               

252               172               

1,926            

29                 

9                   8                   

3,625            

7                   

22,658          19,333          

787               

6,182            

146               

249               
164               

556               

197               155               

1,023            

237               

12,174          

621               
95                 

114               

7,117            

5                   

968               

2,775            

Actual 

3,166            

Notes
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations (continued)

$ '000

(c) Interest & Investment Revenue (incl. losses)

Interest & Dividends
 - Interest on Overdue Rates & Annual Charges (incl. Special Purpose Rates)

 - Interest earned on Investments (interest & coupon payment income)
 - Interest on Deferred Debtors
Fair Value Adjustments
 - Fair Valuation managements in Investments (at FV or Held for Trading)
TOTAL INTEREST & INVESTMENT REVENUE

Interest Revenue is attributable to:
Unrestricted Investments/Financial Assets:
Overdue Rates & Annual Charges (General Fund)

General Council Cash & Investments
Restricted Investments/Funds - External:
Development Contributions
 - Section 94
 - Section 64
Water Fund Operations
Sewerage Fund Operations
Domestic Waste Management operations
Restricted Investments/Funds - Internal:
Internally Restricted Assets
Total Interest & Investment Revenue Recognised

(d) Other Revenues

Rental Income - Investment Properties
Rental Income - Other Council Properties
Fines - Parking
Fines - Other
Tweed Coast Holiday Parks Income
Other
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

323               
1,138            

3,769            

227               

4,773            

3,286            

94                 241               
361               

744               

10,933      

668               
35                 

402               

314               

2012
Actual 

448               

474               

628               

10,933          

611               

11,113          

612               

2013

-                    

Actual 

9,388            
629               

304               

14

Notes

314               

31                 

11,829      

11,829          

228               

1,629            

2,972            

453               

1,201            

629               

764               
434               

2,396        

507               

2,414        
590               
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations (continued)

$ '000

(e) Grants

General Purpose (Untied)
Financial Assistance - General Component

Financial Assistance - Local Roads Component

Pensioners' Rates Subsidies - General Component

Total General Purpose

Specific Purpose
Pensioners' Rates Subsidies:
  - Water
  - Sewerage
  - Domestic Waste Management
Water Supplies
Sewerage Services
Art Gallery
Bushfire & Emergency Services
Community Centres
Community Service
Cycleways/Walkways
Environment (incl. coastal/estuary management)

Library
Museums
NSW Rural Fire Services
Pedestrian Facilities
Positions Funded by Other Govt. Dept
Street Lighting
Transport (Other Roads & Bridges Funding)

Other Affordable Housing
Other Waste and Sustainability Improvement
Other
Total Specific Purpose
Total Grants

Grant Revenue is attributable to:
- Commonwealth Funding
- State Funding 6,078         

500            

17,636       

54              71              

7                

121            

567            

11,854       

9,637         

-                 

21,943       

-                 

-                 

-                 

21,943       4,500         

7,878         

5,782         

-                 

2012

4,978         

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

4,978         

-                 

2,415         

-                 

-                 
-                 
-                 

4,500         

2,085         

-                 

-                 

-                 

88              

1,342         

4,978         

1,728         

-                 

-                 

275            

3,129         
8,241         

2,430         

360            
373            

152            
893            

-                 

363            

1,225         
-                 

998            

-                 

-                 

12,306       
924            

2,470         

2,548         

-                 

32              

-                 

-                 

Capital Capital 

-                 

-                 936            
-                 

Operating 
2012 2013

231            

246            

-                 

-                 

9,758         

-                 

236            

-                 

-                 51              

764            

6,364         

Operating 
2013

-                 

56              

2,251         
-                 

245            

2,000         

-                 

240            

375            

-                 
-                 

-                 

200            

-                 
-                 

-                 

2,061         

734            

1,080         
343            

1,041         
-                 

457            
-                 
4                
-                 

15,865       

-                 

-                 

-                 

228            

458            -                 

4,500         

104            

4,000         
439            

17,636       
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations (continued)

$ '000

(f) Contributions

Developer Contributions:
(s93 & s94 - EPA Act, s64 of the LGA):
S 94 - Contributions towards amenities/services
S 64 - Water Supply Contributions
S 64 - Sewerage Service Contributions
Water S 64 - In Kind
Sewerage S 64 - In Kind
Total Developer Contributions

Other Contributions:
Art Gallery
Community Services
Dedications (other than by S94)

Dedications (other than by S94) - Roads

Dedications (other than by S94) - Drainage

Dedications (other than by S94) - Open Space

Dedications (other than by S94) - Land Under Roads

Environment
Govt Subsidy
Recreation & Culture
Roads
RMS Contributions (Regional Roads, Block Grant)

Sewerage (excl. Section 64 contributions)

Other
Total Other Contributions
Total Contributions

TOTAL GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS

2013

1,424         

Capital 

3,061         

2012

870            

-                 
-                 

754            

280            

-                 

-                 

-                 

12              

12,793       

-                 

-                 

148            

25,214    

130            
9,707         

4,424       

172            
-                 

23,859    

19,359     

6                

-                 

-                 

20,236     

-                 

6,316         
-                 -                 

Operating 

-                 
806            

1,443         

1,671         404            

5,119         

-                 

-                 4,680         

9,652         

269            

2,238         

-                 

-                 567            

Operating 

7,443         

-                 

-                 

160            

-                 

-                 

143            

-                 

135            

-                 

2,376         

-                 

-                 

17 -                 

35              
-                 

-                 116            

1,076         

-                 

1,729         3,565         

3,875         2,127         

2012

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 
-                 
-                 
-                 

34              

-                 

2013

20,202    

Capital 

26,367    

49              

-                 

2,566         
64              167            

31              

170            

2,566       
4,424         

363            
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations (continued)

$ '000

(g) Restrictions relating to Grants and Contributions

Certain grants & contributions are obtained by Council on condition
that they be spent in a specified manner:

Unexpended at the Close of the Previous Reporting Period

add: Grants & contributions recognised in the current period but not yet spent:

less: Grants & contributions recognised in a previous reporting period now spent:

Net Increase (Decrease) in Restricted Assets during the Period

Unexpended and held as Restricted Assets

Comprising:
  - Specific Purpose Unexpended Grants
  - Developer Contributions
  - Other Contributions

31,165       

24,720       

Actual 
2013

8,955         

Actual 

30,626       

(9,494)        (5,803)        

31,788     30,626     

1,162         

31,788       
1,125         

25,917       
4,975         

896            

30,626       

(539)           

6,965         

4,781         

2012
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Note 4. Expenses from Continuing Operations

$ '000

(a) Employee Benefits & On-Costs

Salaries and Wages
Travelling
Employee Leave Entitlements (ELE)
Superannuation
Workers' Compensation Insurance
Fringe Benefit Tax (FBT)
Payroll Tax
Training Costs (other than Salaries & Wages)

Other
Total Employee Costs
less: Capitalised Costs
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS EXPENSED

Number of "Equivalent Full Time" Employees at year end

(b) Borrowing Costs

(i) Interest Bearing Liability Costs
Interest on Loans
Total Interest Bearing Liability Costs Expensed

(ii) Other Borrowing Costs
Discount adjustments relating to managements in Provisions (other than ELE)
 - Remediation Liabilities
 - Fair Value of Interest Free Sewer Loan - Dept of Planning Loan (1)

Total Other Borrowing Costs
TOTAL BORROWING COSTS EXPENSED

(1) Council received an interest free loan from NSW Planning for $16,825,000 on 24/6/10 for Banora 
  Point Waste Water Treatment Plant. Council is obliged under accounting standards to 
  determine the fair value of the loan and to recognise the interest free benefit at inception.

872               
817               

791               

49,466          

-                    

4,984            
90                 

2012

380               436               
128               

Actual 

124               

37,352          

Actual 

133               

43,112      

1,571            

6,989            

13,339          
13,233          

26

52,746          

46,051      
(6,695)           

472               

39,389          

2013

4,289            

14,035      

751               

-                    

85                 

Notes

3,721            

(6,354)           

13,339          

672                

55                 

14,105      
696               

13,233          

659                

(55)                

825               

453               
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Note 4. Expenses from Continuing Operations (continued)

$ '000

(c) Materials & Contracts

Raw Materials & Consumables
Auditors Remuneration (1)

 - Legal Expenses: Planning & Development
 - Legal Expenses: Other
Operating Leases:
 - Operating Lease Rentals: Minimum Lease Payments (2)

TOTAL MATERIALS & CONTRACTS

1. Auditor Remuneration
    During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by
    the Council's Auditor (& the Auditors of other Consolidated Entities):

(i) Audit and Other Assurance Services
     - Audit & review of financial statements: Council's Auditor
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services

(iii) Other Services
     - Other Services
Remuneration for other services

Total Auditor Remuneration

2. Operating Lease Payments are attributable to:
Computer equipment

14                 

2012

96                 

149               

1,120            

1,120            

93                 

3                   
3                   

42,071          

14                 

298               

Notes 2013

107               

93                 

707               

93                 

Actual 

46,941      
707               

707               

107               

93                 

Actual 

96                 

45,698          

131               
298               

43,734      

1,120            
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Note 4. Expenses from Continuing Operations (continued)

$ '000

(d) Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment

Plant and Equipment
Office Equipment
Furniture & Fittings
Buildings - Non Specialised
Buildings - Specialised
Other Structures
Infrastructure:
  - Roads, Bridges & Footpaths
  - Stormwater Drainage
  - Water Supply Network
  - Sewerage Network
Asset Reinstatement Costs
Intangible Assets
TOTAL DEPRECIATION &
IMPAIRMENT COSTS EXPENSED

$ '000

(e) Other Expenses

Other Expenses for the year include the following:

Bad & Doubtful Debts
Caretakers Remuneration
Contributions/Levies to Other Levels of Government
 - Department of Lands Levy
 - Waste Levy
Councillors' Expenses (incl. Mayor)
Donations, Contributions & Assistance to other organisations (Section 356)

Electricity & Heating
Insurance
Street Lighting
Telephone & Communications
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

61                 

3,690            

Actual 

1,478            

1,870         

323            

4,640            

127            173            

2,310         

332               

2,978            

685               

82              

1,869         

Actual 

6,669         

459               

-                 

2,629         

354               

9,631         

173               

15,084       

137               

29              

14,924       

Actual 

1,480            

1,506            

13,647      

1,382            1,374            

115            

38,167    

971            

-                    

2,371         

8,118         

40,078    

2012

-                    

1,372            

5,677            

470               
956               

178               

2,588         

68              
436            

78              

6,635         

2012

Impairment Costs    

2013
Actual 

2013

-                 

2013

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 

Notes

-                 

-                 

-             

Notes

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-             

25

-                 

-                 

9 & 26

-                 
-                 

-                 

Actual 

-                 
-                 

1,116         

Depreciation/Amortisation 

-                 

-                 

29              

2012

15,735      

Actual 

-                 

-                 
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Note 5. Gains or Losses from the Disposal of Assets

$ '000

Property   (excl. Investment Property)
Proceeds from Disposal - Property
less: Carrying Amount of Property Assets Sold / Written Off
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

Plant & Equipment
Proceeds from Disposal - Plant & Equipment
less: Carrying Amount of P&E Assets Sold / Written Off
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

Infrastructure
Proceeds from Disposal - Infrastructure
less: Carrying Amount of Infrastructure Assets Sold / Written Off
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

Investment Properties
Proceeds from Disposal - Investment Properties
less: Carrying Amount of Investment Properties Sold / Written Off
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

Financial Assets*
Proceeds from Disposal / Redemptions / Maturities - Financial Assets
less: Carrying Amount of Financial Assets Sold / Redeemed / Matured
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

(5,747)           

1,888            

2012

(1,598)           

(1,790)           

-                    

(103)              

(5,747)           

156,000        

(5,570)       

(361)              
258               

-                    

290               

1,780            

(10)                

Actual 

(156,000)       
-                    

(6,353)           

1                   

(6,353)           

(170,654)       

(6,651)       

-                    

(90)                
(90)                

1,758            
(1,967)           

Actual 

-                    

Notes

170,654        

1                   

-                    

(209)              

2013
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Note 6a. - Cash Assets and Note 6b. - Investments

$ '000

Cash & Cash Equivalents (Note 6a)
Cash on Hand and at Bank
Cash-Equivalent Assets1

- Deposits at Call
- Short Term Deposits
- Short Term Money Market

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents

Investments (Note 6b)
- Long Term Deposits
- FRN's & Fixed Rate Bonds

Total Investments
TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH
EQUIVALENTS & INVESTMENTS

1 Those Investments where time to maturity (from date of purchase) is < 3 mths.

Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments were
classified at year end in accordance with
AASB 139 as follows:

Cash & Cash Equivalents
a. "At Fair Value through the Profit & Loss"

Investments
a. "At Fair Value through the Profit & Loss"
- "Held for Trading"
- "Designated at Fair Value on Initial Recognition"
b. "Held to Maturity"
c. "Loans & Receivables"
d. "Available for Sale"
Investments

Actual 

-                 

2012

-                 

37,000       

-                 

28,380       

-                 

-                 

-                 

Non Current 

-                 

65,380       

28,380       

65,380       

37,000       
-                 

66,781    

95,715       
-                 

90,677       

-                 

65,380    

3,190         3,000         

2013
Actual Actual 

19,275       

15,279       

Current 

-                 

806            

6(b-iii)

6(b-i)

6(b-iv)

90,677       28,000       

Notes

5,038         

-                 -                 

2013

38,781       

6(b-ii)

-                 

-                 

95,715       

114,990  

6(b-i)

19,275       

5,038         

28,000       

66,781       

-                 

9,500         

96,942       

3,056         

-                 

13,019       

Actual 

-                 

93,886       

-                 

Non Current 

-                 

3,056         

109,961  

-                 

38,781       

93,886       

13,019       

-                 

-                 
-                 
-                 

-                 

66,781       

2012

Current 

519            

96,942       
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Note 6b. Investments (continued)

$ '000

Note 6(b-i)
Reconciliation of Investments classified as
"At Fair Value through the Profit & Loss"
Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Revaluations (through the Income Statement)
Additions
Disposals (sales & redemptions)
Balance at End of Year

Comprising:
- NCD's, FRN's (with Maturities > 3 months)
- Other Long Term Financial Assets

Total

Note 6(b-ii)
Reconciliation of Investments
classified as "Held to Maturity"
Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Additions
Disposals (sales & redemptions)
Balance at End of Year

Comprising:
- Long Term Deposits
- Other Long Term Financial Assets

Total

Note 6(b-iii)
Reconciliation of Investments
classified as "Loans & Receivables"
Nil

Note 6(b-iv)
Reconciliation of Investments
classified as "Available for Sale"
Nil

28,380       

28,380       
3,056         

11,190       

37,000       

2012

Non Current 

37,000       

53,500       

-                 

28,000       

-                 

37,000       

5,038         

-                 
80,000       

(5,154)        

(62,500)      

5,038         

90,677       

38,781       

28,000       

93,886       

401            

Actual 

86,510       

38,781       

(2,000)        13,886       

(98,000)      

3,056         

39,000       

43,000       

(100,000)    

93,886       

105,376     

(50,000)      

28,380       

44,000       

-                 5,038         

93,886       

21,817       
(5,028)        

-                 

3,056         

3,056         

7,135         
1                

2013

Current 
Actual 

81,000       

96,791       

90,677       
9,677         

38,781       

4,024         

2013

(2,972)        
12,790       

Actual 

611            
28,380       

2,003         
(3,000)        

1                

Actual 

28,000       

Current 

2012

Non Current 
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Note 6c. Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments - Details

$ '000

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents
and Investments

attributable to:
External Restrictions (refer below)
Internal Restrictions   (refer below)
Unrestricted

$ '000

Details of Restrictions

External Restrictions - Included in Liabilities
Specific Purpose Unexpended Loans-Sewer (A)
Other - Security Deposits
External Restrictions - Included in Liabilities

External Restrictions - Other
Developer Contributions - General (D)
RMS (formerly RTA) Contributions (E)
Specific Purpose Contributions
Specific Purpose Unexpended Grants (F)
Water Supplies (G)
Water Supplies - Capital Upgrade - CRR (G)
Water Supplies - Asset Replacement - ARR (G)
Sewerage Services (G)
Sewerage Services - Capital Upgrade - CRR (G)
Sewerage Services - Asset Replacement - ARR (G)
Sewerage Services - Banora Point Laboratory (G)
Domestic Waste Management (G)
Caravan Park Cash Assets (J)
Special Rate - Koala Beach (K)
External Restrictions - Other
Total External Restrictions

A Loan moneys which must be applied for the purposes for which the loans were raised. 
D Development contributions which are not yet expended for the provision of services and amenities in accordance

with contributions plans (refer Note 17). 
E RMS Contributions which are not yet expended for the provision of services and amenities in accordance with

those contributions. 
F Grants which are not yet expended for the purposes for which the grants were obtained.  (refer Note 1) 
G Water, Sewerage, Domestic Waste Management (DWM) & other Special Rates/Levies/Charges are externally

restricted assets and must be applied for the purposes for which they were raised.
J Caravan park cash assets relates to externally restricted cash assets of Tweed Coast Holiday Parks
K Special rate cash assets yet to be expended with these conditions

506            

-                 521            

109,961     

65,380       

2013 2012
Actual 

2013
Actual 

114,990  

65,380       
-                 

Non Current 

2012

Current 

64,004       

65,380    

2013 Closing Transfers from 
Balance 

74              

6,771         

1,150         
10,412       15,711       

-                 
(430)           

(805)           

(393)           

230            

10,075       

25,917       

(4)               

(5,574)        

-                 

(4,581)        

(22,769)      
120,373     

37,140       

16,694       
3,916         

1,992         

2,091         

15,926       

130,785     

-                 1,076         

-                 

Restrictions 

64,349       

Current 

41,474       
4,138         

(83)             

3,483         

2,137         

509            

66,781       

Opening 

14,635       

Balance 

66,781       

66,781    

47,503       

Non Current 

109,961  

Actual 

-                 

Transfers to 

-                 
-                 

-                 

(5,373)        

Actual 

114,990     

-                 

74              

24,720       

-                 

783            

194            

34,379       

5,576         

342            164            

-                 

1,692         6,805         

1,284         

114,018     
240            73              

12              

946            
9,221         

1,996         
13,125       

4,781         

-                 

(46)             

(3,473)        

(2,007)        

805            
6,234         

23,825       

14,980       

129,729     
23,751       

9,262         

-                 
390            

(5,373)        

4,975         

Restrictions 

(17,396)      
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Note 6c. Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments - Details (continued)

$ '000

Internal Restrictions
Employees Leave Entitlement
Unexpended Loans
Unexpended Grants
Asset Management Reserve - Office Ext.
Community Facilities
Land Sales - Cemetery Asset Management
Murwillumbah Community Centre
Software & Equipment - Asset management
Sports fields - Asset management
Swimming Pools Asset management
Waterways Asset Management
Civic Centre Asset management
Museum Asset Management
Land Development
Workers Comp. Cont. Reserve
Non- DWM Management 
Access Funding
Agenda 21
Art Gallery Construction
Beach Vehicle Licence Income
Car Parking
Catchment Water Quality
Coastal Management Planning
Haulage Fees
Plant Operations
Revolving Energy Fund
Road Land Sale
Sewerage Management Facilities
04/05 Rate Rise
7 Year Plan
Works Carried Forward
Environmental Enforcement Levy
SES Vehicle Replacement
Museum Donations
Frangela Park Maintenance
Cemeteries Perpetual Maintenance
Total Internal Restrictions

TOTAL RESTRICTIONS

51              

4                
1,801         -                 7,105         

298            14              

60              
(6)               294            

(2)               392            

-                 312            
53              7                -                 60              

225            767            

232            39              (51)             

(1)               

1,528         

220            
58              24              -                 82              
58              

4,340         
(395)           307            

(245)           145            

7                

(71)             921            

3                -                 -                 3                
20              -                 -                 20              

(358)           
6,773         6,907         

43              
176            

3                

2                (2)               41              
145            64              

-                 
42              -                 218            

1,423         105            -                 

5,123         

Closing 
Restrictions Balance 

-                 

209            

5                (133)           
58              

(10,352)      
8,762         

164            
5,930         

47,503       

10,328       

4                

46              

45              

1                
(55)             

-                 

(8,918)        

-                 

-                 
-                 

5                

-                 

(30,747)      

(35)             

-                 

-                 

8,835         

709            
6,060         

(258)           

2013

60,601     

89              
5                

Restrictions 
Transfers to 

-                 

(35)             

(5,485)        

-                 

(4,918)        

-                 

58              
62              

41              

5,304         

Opening 

4,414         

191            

28              

178,288   (53,516)    

1,063         

10              
151            

171,203   

339            

4                

702            

6,013         

249            

-                 

-                 

40              

98              
754            

41,474       

11,167       

4                

9,753         

Balance 

2                43              

18              

5                

-                 

3                

376            

110            

1                

-                 
-                 7                

3,525         

41              2                

36,776       

8                

Transfers from 

(30)             

-                 
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Note 7. Receivables

$ '000

Purpose
Rates & Annual Charges
Interest & Extra Charges
User Charges & Fees
Accrued Revenues
  - Interest on Investments
Government Grants & Subsidies
Deferred Debtors
Net GST Receivable
Total

less: Provision for Impairment
Doubtful Debts
Total Provision for Impairment - Receivables

TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES

Externally Restricted Receivables
Water Supply
 - Specific Purpose Grants
 - Rates & Availability Charges
 - Other
Sewerage Services
 - Specific Purpose Grants
 - Rates & Availability Charges
 - Other
Domestic Waste Management
Tweed Coast Holiday Parks
Total External Restrictions
Internally Restricted Receivables
Nil
Unrestricted Receivables
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES

Notes on Debtors above:
(i)   Rates & Annual Charges Outstanding are secured against the property.

(ii)  Doubtful Rates Debtors are provided for where the value of the property is less than the debt outstanding.
      An allowance for other doubtful debts is made when there is objective evidence that a receivable is impaired.

(iii) Interest was charged on overdue rates & charges at 10.00% (2012 11.00%).
Generally all other receivables are non interest bearing.

(iv) Please refer to Note 15 for issues concerning Credit Risk and Fair Value disclosures.

342            
4,750         

11,165       

2013
Non Current Current 

315            

22,071    

2,109         

12,699       

Notes

106            

1,997         

-                 

-                 

6                

Current 

-                 

616            

-                 (202)           -                 

3,102         

1,487         

2012

2,802         
-                 2,321         

90              

22,071    

109            

-                 

1,204         114            

1,437         

21,908    

21,908    

-                 

1,551         11,551       

-                 

1,584         
193            

1,325         

Non Current 

-                 

(263)           

-                 

2,987      

22,334       

10,357       

170            

1,117         
-                 

434            

-                 

3,102      

174            

1,551         
3,102      

467            

227            

372            

(202)           

-                 8,045         

995            

(263)           

-                 

-                 1,412         

508            

-                 

-                 78              -                 

-                 

75              

-                 

-                 

2,987      

22,110       2,987         

-                 10,825       
296            

4,460         

7,457         
285            

4,139         

492            

404            

170            

9,372         2,817         
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 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 8. Inventories & Other Assets

$ '000

Inventories
Stores & Materials
Total Inventories

Other Assets
Prepayments
Total Other Assets

TOTAL INVENTORIES / OTHER ASSETS

Externally Restricted Assets

Water
Prepayments
Total Water

Sewerage
Prepayments
Total Sewerage

Tweed Coast Holiday Parks
Prepayments
Total Other

Total Externally Restricted Assets
Total Internally Restricted Assets
Total Unrestricted Assets
TOTAL INVENTORIES & OTHER ASSETS

23              

1,507         

123            
123            

-                 
163            

1,507         

17              

-                 
-                 

-                 

-                 

1,667         

Current 

2,314         
2,151         

2012
Non Current 

23              

-                 

807            

-                 

17              

20              

-                 

-                 

-                 

3,928         

-                 

121            

-                 

-                 

1,667         

2013

121            

-             2,314      

20              

-                 
-                 

-                 

-                 

Current Non Current 

-                 

Notes

807            

3,928      

-                 
-                 

-                 

-                 

167            

26              

2,261         

-                 

-                 

3,761         
-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-             

2,261         

-                 

-                 

26              



Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 9a. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

At At Carrying At At Carrying

$ '000 Cost Fair Value Dep'n Impairment Value Cost Fair Value Dep'n Impairment Value

 Capital Work in Progress -              24,263    -              -              24,263    16,882    -              -              (16,051)   -              (365)        -              -              -              -              24,729    -              -              24,729    
 Plant & Equipment -              33,712    14,919    -              18,793    4,732      (1,966)     (2,629)     220         -              (10)          -              -              3             -              33,893    14,750    -              19,143    
 Office Equipment -              1,332      1,070      -              262         -              -              (82)          -              -              -              -              -              -              -              1,327      1,147      -              180         
 Furniture & Fittings -              2,046      1,445      -              601         100         -              (127)        -              -              -              -              -              -              -              2,146      1,572      -              574         
 Land:
   -  Operational Land -              460,956  -              -              460,956  37           -              -              5             (1,146)     -              -              (17,449)   -              -              442,403  -              -              442,403  
   -  Community Land -              156,290  -              -              156,290  1,802      -              -              -              (258)        -              -              -              -              -              157,834  -              -              157,834  
   -  Land under Roads (pre 1/7/08) -              41,867    -              -              41,867    -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              41,867    -              -              41,867    
   -  Land under Roads (post 30/6/08) -              1,248      -              -              1,248      116         -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              1,364      -              -              1,364      
 Buildings - Non Specialised -              110,733  15,040    -              95,693    2,475      -              (1,116)     2,599      2,018      965         (17)          -              3,168      -              117,129  11,344    -              105,785  
 Buildings - Specialised -              7,263      536         -              6,727      -              -              (29)          -              (366)        -              (38)          -              261         -              6,978      423         -              6,555      
 Other Structures -              31,208    9,942      -              21,266    590         -              (1,870)     295         3,625      -              -              -              -              -              35,697    11,791    -              23,906    
 Infrastructure:
   -  Roads, Bridges, Footpaths -              671,232  141,584  -              529,648  12,762    (3,329)     (15,084)   1,572      (946)        -              -              -              71,381    -              775,329  179,325  -              596,004  
   -  Bulk Earthworks (non-depreciable) -              120,468  -              -              120,468  1,931      (1,493)     -              -              (145)        -              -              -              18,322    -              139,083  -              -              139,083  
   -  Stormwater Drainage -              171,192  51,162    -              120,030  3,943      (8)            (2,371)     464         3             -              -              -              10,697    -              186,384  53,626    -              132,758  
   -  Water Supply Network -              562,756  136,771  -              425,985  1,557      (585)        (6,635)     1,533      (130)        -              -              -              10,513    -              578,810  146,572  -              432,238  
   -  Sewerage Network -              686,159  171,324  -              514,835  9,210      (939)        (9,631)     9,363      36           (965)        -              -              12,345    -              718,855  184,601  -              534,254  
 Other Assets:
   -  Artworks -              3,182      -              -              3,182      290         -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              3,472      -              -              3,472      
Reinstatement, Rehabilitation & 
Restoration Assets (refer Note 26)
   - Tip Asset -              1,718      1,590      -              128         -              -              (51)          -              -              -              -              -              -              -              2,203      2,126      -              77           
   - Quarry Asset -              533         468         -              65           -              -              (17)          -              -              -              -              -              -              -              48           -              -              48           
TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE,
PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIP.

Additions to Depreciable Land Improvements, Buildings, Other Structures & Infrastructure Assets are made up of Asset Renewals ($12,185) and New Assets ($35,224).
Renewals are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed to the acquisition of new assets).
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as at 30/6/2012
Asset Movements during the Reporting Period

as at 30/6/2013

Asset 
Additions

WDV
of Asset 

Disposals

Depreciation 
Expense

Revaluation 
Decrements

to Equity 
(ARR)

Revaluation 
Increments
to Equity 

(ARR)
AccumulatedAccumulated

-                3,088,158 545,851    -                2,542,307 

Tfrs 
from/(to) Inv. 

Properties

WIP
Transfers

Adjustments
& Transfers

Other
Movements
(details….)

2,691        (375)          -                56,427      (8,320)       (39,642)     126,690    2,662,274 (55)            (17,449)     -                3,269,551 607,277    -                
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Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 9b. Externally Restricted Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

Note 9c. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment - Current Year Impairments

Council has recognised no impairment losses during the reporting period nor reversed any prior period losses.

355           -               

-               
-               

116           

182           

-               

-               

-               
-               

42,797      

344         

-               
-               

136,771    

171,324    514,835  686,159    

562,756    

603,934    

10,169      

425,985  

5,414      

570,920  172,168    

270           

43,463    

1             87             

-               23             2,708      

743,088    -               

3,354      

2,731        

466,992  

-               

136,942    

42,797    

86             

-               
182         -               

206         
94             

847           
10,169    

641           
22           

-               5,414        

-               

-               

-               

445           

137           

7,950        

5,414      

445         

6,563      

96             

-               10,547      

1,140,248  

-               
-               

14,513      

2,501        
-               641         

3,354        3,354      

1,459,905  319,657     

-               

96,922    

836         
41           

5,414        -               

3,337        

89,037    

-               

1,180      395           
86           

-               537,101  

91             
2              

3,216      

182,859    

-               -               

-               

-               
-             

2             

-               

Cost

641           

3              

86           86             
3,307        

4              1             
-               

89,037      

-               

33,974    

-             

33,543      

-             
23             

44           79             

33,974      

23             23             

-               

At

Actual
2012

-               

A/Dep &

45             
6,535        

-               40           85             
-               

-               

-               

-               
-               

20             

Impairm'tFair Value

4,116      -               
35             

4,116        -               

Carrying 
Value

-             
20             

-               
20             

33,543    -               

1,575        

433,285  

87             

238           

475,456  

578,203    

Actual

At A/Dep &At
2013

-             

Cost

-               

-               

-               

20             

4              

6,174        

1,378      

144,918    

1,378        

-             

-               

11           

At

6,535      

145,404    

717           

-               
-               

86             

620,860    

-               

1,061        

87             

43,463      

Carrying 
ValueImpairm'tFair Value

23             

355         

238         

116           

-               
-               

-               

5,904      

105           

588,439  

3,345        
137           

-               

10,990      

3,354        

718,781    181,680    

-               
111           26           

2,604        741         
-               

18,686      10,411    
79,615    

Actual 

-               
-               

   - Capital WIP
 Caravan Parks

-               

 Total Sewerage Services

 Land

   - Plant & Equipment

1,497,936  

-               

 Domestic Waste Management

 Infrastructure

-               

 Buildings

 Other Assets

-               

-               

-               

-               

-               

-                  - Operational Land'

-               

$ '000

 Class of Asset

 Water Supply

 Furniture & Fittings

 WIP

 Infrastructure

 Office Equipment

   - Operational Land

 Plant & Equipment

 Land

 Furniture & Fittings

   - Operational Land -               

 Plant & Equipment

-               

-               

-               

 Sewerage Services

   - Community Land

 Office Equipment

 WIP
-               

 Total Water Supply

 Other Structures

-             

-               

-             339,253     

   - Community Land

 Land

 Buildings

   - Office Equipment -               

771,298    

-               

 Total DWM

   - Operational Land 79,615      

102,424    

TOTAL RESTRICTED I,PP&E

Buildings
 Total Other Restrictions

-               

107,469    
8,275        

1,158,683  

Actual 

91,434    
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Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 10a. Payables, Borrowings & Provisions

$ '000

Payables
Goods & Services - operating expenditure
Payments Received In Advance
Accrued Expenses:
 - Borrowings
 - Salaries & Wages
 - Other Expenditure Accruals
Security Bonds, Deposits & Retentions
Total Payables

Borrowings
Loans - Secured 1

Total Borrowings

Provisions
Employee Benefits;
Annual Leave
Sick Leave
Long Service Leave
Sub Total - Aggregate Employee Benefits
Asset Remediation/Restoration (Future Works)

Total Provisions

Total Payables, Borrowings & Provisions

(i) Liabilities relating to Restricted Assets

Externally Restricted Assets
Water
Sewer
Other
Other - Holiday Parks
Liabilities relating to externally restricted assets

Internally Restricted Assets
Nil

Total Liabilities relating to restricted assets
Total Liabilities relating to Unrestricted Assets
TOTAL PAYABLES, BORROWINGS & PROVISIONS

1. Loans are secured over the General Rating Income of Council
   Disclosures on Liability Interest Rate Risk Exposures, Fair Value Disclosures & Security can be found in Note 15.

912            

-                 

9,576         
3,029         

187,733  

67,057       

Non Current 

4,051         
-                 

590            

9,028         

37,727    
28,699       

8,561         

Current 

-                 
518            

8,845         

538            

Notes Non Current 

-                 

2012

-                 

-                 
-                 

486            

182,028     9,024         

486            

-                 
-                 23              

-                 

8,561         

101,643     

-                 

9,028         101,643     

38,550    

1,076         

86,349       

947            

460            

9,024         7,653         

10,835       

35,654       4,402         

1                

5,008         

460            

181,458     7,653         

26

13,353       

3,266         

21              

2013

-                 

702            

Non Current 

-                 

Current 

13,756       

868            

6,074         

Non Current 

10              341            

4,470         

37,727    

16,721       15,770       

16,711            

3,580         
2,272         

-                 

Current 

1,521         

38,550    

1,562         

187,992  

2,026         

65,989       

82,671       
187,733  

-                 

256            
4,307              

38,005       

5,219         

-                 

2012

105,062     

105,062     

4,912         

9,570         523            
15,429            

2013

1,081         

1,150         

29,989       

187,992  

4,993              

Current 

-                 

181,458     182,028     
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 10a. Payables, Borrowings & Provisions (continued)

$ '000

(ii) Current Liabilities not anticipated to be settled within the next 12 months

The following Liabilities, even though classified as current, are not expected
to be settled in the next 12 months.

Provisions - Employees Benefits
Payables - Security Bonds, Deposits & Retentions

Note 10b. Description of and movements in Provisions

a. Employees Leave Entitlements & On-Costs represents those benefits accrued and payable and an estimate of those
that will become payable in the future as a result of past service.

b. Asset Remediation, Reinstatement & Restoration Provisions represent the Present Value estimate of future costs 
Council will incur in order to remove, restore & remediate assets &/or activities as a result of past operations.

1,091            
(4,430)           

5,338            

TOTAL 20,989          (87)                

Annual Leave

32                 1,253            -                    Asset Remediation

(3,023)           
Sick Leave 828               

4,912            
4,998            

3,119            

Long Service Leave 9,826            

Class of Provision Decrease due to 
Payments

Opening
Balance

as at 1/7/12

2012

2,451            

2013

Additional 
Provisions

-                    
-                    

10,000       

-                    

10,220       

Actual
2013

220            

-                    
(87)                

-                    

6,430            

(488)              
(919)              

22,795          

Remeasurement 
effects due to 

Discounting

(107)              

Actual

220            

11,358          

5,008            

Closing
Balance

as at 30/6/13

10,444       

10,224       

2012

(107)              

Unused 
amounts 
reversed

-                    
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 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 11. Statement of Cash Flows - Additional Information

$ '000

(a) Reconciliation of Cash Assets
Total Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets
Less Bank Overdraft
BALANCE as per the STATEMENT of CASH FLOWS

(b) Reconciliation of Net Operating Result
     to Cash provided from Operating Activities

Net Operating Result from Income Statement
Adjust for non cash items:
Depreciation & Amortisation
Net Losses/(Gains) on Disposal of Assets
Non Cash Capital Grants and Contributions
  - Investments classified as "At Fair Value" or "Held for Trading"
  - Fair Value Adjustments - Financial Instruments
Amortisation of Premiums, Discounts & Prior Period Fair Valuations
  - Interest Exp. on Interest Free Loans received by Council (previously Fair Valued
Unwinding of Discount Rates on Reinstatement Provisions
Share of Net (Profits) or Losses of Associates/Joint Ventures

+/- Movement in Operating Assets and Liabilities & Other Cash Items:
Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for Doubtful Debts
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued Interest Payable
Increase/(Decrease) in other accrued Expenses Payable
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Leave Entitlements
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Provisions
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM/(USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES from the STATEMENT of CASH FLOWS

(7)                  

(15)                

Actual 
2012

Actual 

55                 

108               

61                 

(515)              

(1)                  

-                    

13,019          

-                    

817               

-                    

6,651            

12,132          

323               

(612)              

2013

19,275          

40,078          

6a

860               

19,275          

19,468          

13,019          

Notes

-                    

(1,227)           

(8,601)           

751               

10

(731)              

53,174          

-                    

5,570            

(20)                -                    

(238)              
137               

1,968            

(3,974)           

20                 

(410)              

38,167          

(402)              

(55)                

44,420          

175               

(107)              

754               

(13,547)         
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Note 11. Statement of Cash Flows - Additional Information (continued)

$ '000

(c) Non-Cash Investing & Financing Activities

Art Gallery
Development Contributions - General
Development Contributions - Water
Development Contributions - Sewerage
Total Non-Cash Investing & Financing Activities

(d) Financing Arrangements

(i) Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the
     following lines of credit:

Bank Overdraft Facilities (1)

Credit Cards / Purchase Cards
Total Financing Arrangements

Amounts utilised as at Balance Date:
- Credit Cards / Purchase Cards
Total Financing Arrangements Utilised

1. The Bank overdraft facility may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.

   Interest rates on overdrafts are Interest Rates on Loans & Other Payables are disclosed in Note 15.

(ii) Secured Loan Liabilities

Loans are secured by a mortgage over future years Rate Revenue only.

27                 

8,042            

Actual 

1,000            

27                 24                 

60                 
1,300            

1,000            

1,060            

280               

24                 

1,671            

300               

404               

Notes

1,729            

Actual 

269               

8,601            

2013 2012

3,565            

6,188            

13,547          
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Note 12. Commitments for Expenditure

$ '000

(a) Capital Commitments (exclusive of GST)

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Property, Plant & Equipment
Buildings
Plant & Equipment
Other
Total Commitments

These expenditures are payable as follows:
Within the next year
Later than one year and not later than 5 years
Total Payable

Sources for Funding of Capital Commitments:
Unrestricted General Funds
Section 94 Contributions
Unexpended Grants
Unexpended Loans
Unrestricted Water Funds
Unrestricted Sewerage Funds
Total Sources of Funding

(b) Finance Lease Commitments

Nil

(c) Operating Lease Commitments (Non Cancellable)

a. Commitments under Non Cancellable Operating Leases at the
             Reporting date, but not recognised as Liabilities are payable:

Within the next year
Later than one year and not later than 5 years
Total Non Cancellable Operating Lease Commitments

b. Non Cancellable Operating Leases include the following assets:
Computer equipment
Contingent Rentals may be payable depending on the condition of items or usage during the lease term.

Conditions relating to Operating Leases:
- All Operating Lease Agreements are secured only against the Leased Asset.
- No Lease Agreements impose any financial restrictions on Council regarding future debt etc.

(d) Investment Property Commitments

Nil

1,142            

5,568            

Actual 
2013

10,645          

1,086            

3,765            

18,264          

15,198          

13,198          

18,264          

4,751            -                    

480               

899               
607               

10,379          

840               

535               
419               

15,198          

13,555          

1,295            

4,709            

2012

1,054            

14,635          

Notes

3,629            
2,471            -                    
4,755            -                    

2,000            

-                    

2,051            

Actual 

18,264          

15,198          
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Note 13a(i). Statement of Performance Measurement - Indicators (Consolidated)

$ '000

Local Government Industry Indicators - Consolidated

1. Unrestricted Current Ratio
Current Assets less all External Restrictions (1)

Current Liabilities less Specific Purpose Liabilities (2,3)

2. Debt Service Ratio
Debt Service Cost
Income from Continuing Operations
(excl. Capital Items & Specific Purpose Grants/Contributions)

3. Rates & Annual Charges
    Coverage Ratio
Rates & Annual Charges
Income from Continuing Operations

4. Rates, Annual Charges, Interest &
    Extra Charges Outstanding Percentage
Rates, Annual & Extra Charges Outstanding
Rates, Annual & Extra Charges Collectible

5. Building & Infrastructure Renewals Ratio
Asset Renewals(4)

Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment

Notes

(1) Refer Notes 6-8 inclusive.
   Also excludes any Real Estate & Land for resale not expected to be sold in the next 12 months
(2) Refer to Note 10(a).
(3) Refer to Note 10(a)(ii) - excludes all payables & provisions not expected to be paid in the next 12 months (incl. ELE).
(4) Asset Renewals represent the replacement &/or refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent capacity/performance
     

 as opposed to the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that increases capacity/performance.
     

 Asset Renewals include building and infrastructure assets only.

2011

62,509      

8.08%

36.53%

3.38 : 1

47.02%

18,479      

44.41%

13.81%
145,965    

22,091      

6,558        

85,683      
181,623    

34,866      

2013
Amounts

93,181      

12,185      

Prior Periods

7.04%

34.95%

15.13%

7.28%

2013

2.77

14.05%

Indicator

53.14%

47.18%

3.07

2012
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Note 13a(ii). Local Government Industry Indicators - Graphs (Consolidated)

2012/13 Ratio      34.95%

Increased expenditure on debt recovery.

Fluctuates due to value and volume of 
renewal construction each year.

Purpose of Rates & 
Annual Charges 
Coverage Ratio

2012/13 Ratio      15.13%
Purpose of Debt 

Service Ratio

To assess the impact 
of uncollected rates 
and annual charges 
on Council's liquidity 
and the adequacy of 

recovery efforts.

To assess the degree 
of Council's 

dependence upon 
revenue from rates 
and annual charges 
and to assess the 

security of Council's 
income.

To assess the rate at 
which these assets 
are being renewed 

relative to the rate at 
which they are 
depreciating.

2012/13 Ratio      7.04%

Commentary on 2012/13 Result

Ratio increased because of a relative 
decline in other income.

2012/13 Ratio      3.38 : 1

This ratio is inflated by the inclusion of a 
payout of a matured renewal loan in early 
2012/13. Without this the ratio would be 

14.02%.

2012/13 Ratio      47.18%

Commentary on 2012/13 Result

To assess the impact 
of loan principal & 

interest repayments 
on the discretionary 
revenue of Council.

Commentary on 2012/13 Result

Remains at an acceptable ratio.

Purpose of Rates & 
Annual Charges 

Outstanding Ratio

Commentary on 2012/13 Result

Commentary on 2012/13 ResultPurpose of 
Unrestricted Current 

Ratio

To assess the 
adequacy of working 
capital and its ability 
to satisfy obligations 
in the short term for 

the unrestricted 
activities of Council.

Purpose of Asset 
Renewals Ratio
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3.07  3.38  
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3. Rates & Annual Charges Coverage Ratio 
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Note 13b. Statement of Performance Measurement - Indicators (by Fund)

$ '000

Local Government Industry Indicators - by Fund

1. Unrestricted Current Ratio
Current Assets less all External Restrictions (1)

Current Liabilities less Specific Purpose Liabilities (2,3)

2. Debt Service Ratio
Debt Service Cost
Income from Continuing Operations
(excl. Capital Items & Specific Purpose Grants/Contributions)

3. Rates & Annual Charges
    Coverage Ratio
Rates & Annual Charges
Income from Continuing Operations

4. Rates, Annual Charges, Interest &
    Extra Charges Outstanding Percentage
Rates, Annual & Extra Charges Outstanding
Rates, Annual & Extra Charges Collectible

5. Building & Infrastructure Renewals Ratio
Asset Renewals (Building & Infrastructure assets)
Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment

Notes

(1) General Fund refers to all of Council's activities except for its Water & Sewer activities which are listed separately.

prior period:

68.97%

11.30%

8.30%

2013

29.62% 24.13%

3.38 : 1

7.20%

7.82% 7.46%prior period:

8.97 : 1

prior period:

Sewer

prior period:

6.76%

7.86%

6.59%

45.34%

2013

9.81 : 1

17.02%

20.01 : 1

60.04%

50.80%32.10%

46.68%

20.55%

47.65%

3.07 : 1

prior period:

13.58 : 1

Water General1

2013

8.11%

16.70%

36.38%

8.56%25.86%
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Note 14. Investment Properties

$ '000

(a) Investment Properties at Fair value

Investment Properties on Hand

Reconciliation of Annual Movement:
Opening Balance
- Disposals during Year
- Transfers from/(to) Owner Occupied (Note 9)
- Other Movements
CLOSING BALANCE - INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(b) Valuation Basis

The basis of valuation of Investment Properties is Fair Value, being the amounts for which the properties could
be exchanged between willing parties in arms length transaction, based on current prices in an active market
for similar properties in the same location and condition and subject to similar leases.

The 2013 revaluations were based on Independent Assessments made by:
APV Valuers and Asset Management

(c) Leasing Arrangements

Details of leased Investment Properties are as follows;

Future Minimum Lease Payments receivable under
non-cancellable Investment Property Operating Leases
not recognised in the Financial Statements are due:
Within 1 year
Total Minimum Lease Payments Receivable

(d) Investment Property Income & Expenditure - summary

Rental Income from Investment Properties:
- Minimum Lease Payments
Direct Operating Expenses on Investment Properties:
- that generated rental income
Net Revenue Contribution from Investment Properties
Total Income attributable to Investment Properties

(e) Restricted Investment Properties

Water Fund
Sewer Fund
Total Restricted Investment Properties

2012

(6)               

31              

35              

(28)             

86              110            

3                

750            

(361)           

29              3                

-                 

2013

(90)             

(16)             
-                 

35              

1,327      

1,327         

31              

31              

1,327         

Actual 

35              

1,276         

746            

29              

836            856            

55              

Actual 

1,688         

1,276      

Notes
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Note 15. Financial Risk Management

$ '000

Risk Management

Council's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including (1) price risk, (2) credit risk, (3) liquidity risk
and (4) interest rate risk.

The Council's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign
currency risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by Council's Finance Section under policies approved by the Council.

A comparison by category of the carrying amounts and fair values of Council's Financial Assets & Financial
Liabilities recognised in the financial statements is presented below.

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
 - "Held for Trading"
 - "Held to Maturity"
Receivables
Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Payables
Loans / Advances
Total Financial Liabilities

Fair Value is determined as follows:

- Cash & Cash Equivalents, Receivables, Payables - are estimated to be the carrying value which approximates mkt value.

- Borrowings & Held to Maturity Investments - are based upon estimated future cash flows discounted by the current
  market interest rates applicable to assets & liabilities with similar risk profiles, unless quoted market prices are available.

- Financial Assets classified (i) "at fair value through profit & loss" or (ii) Available for Sale - are based upon quoted
  market prices (in active markets for identical investments) at the reporting date or independent valuation.

13,019      13,019      

200,351   206,829   

2012

43,819     

200,351   

217,224   
200,960    

10,261     

206,666   

118,677   

199,658   202,265   212,173   

11,213      
189,111   

43,819     

24,895     

2013

130,886    

2013

25,010      

31,436      

11,213      

Carrying Value     

206,963   
10,547     

25,058     
130,886    111,000   

25,010      

191,052    

26,952     19,275     

2012
Fair Value            

31,436      
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Note 15. Financial Risk Management (continued)

$ '000

(a) Fair Value Measurements

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated in accordance with Accounting
Standards for either recognition and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, requires the disclosure of how fair valuations have been arrived at
for all financial assets and financial liabilities that have been measured at fair value.

Arriving at fair values for financial assets & liabilities can be broken up into 3 distinct measurement hierarchies:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
              either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) 
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The following table presents the financial assets and financial liabilities that have been measured & recognised
at fair values: 

2013
Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Investments
- "Held for Trading"
- "Held to Maturity"
Total Financial Assets
2012

2013 `
Financial Liabilities
Loans & Payables
Total Financial Liabilities
2012

31,436      200,351    

-              

217,224   

43,819      

217,224    

43,819      

Level 2

212,173    

111,000    
206,666   

26,952     
24,895     

-                
-                

-                
24,895      
26,952      

-                111,000   

212,173    

-              

TotalLevel 3Level 1

-              

217,224   -                -              
-              

162,847   

-              

43,819     

217,224   

168,915    
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Note 15. Financial Risk Management (continued)

$ '000

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents, Financial assets 'at fair value through the Profit and Loss'
     "Available-for-sale" financial assets and "Held-to-maturity" Investments

Council's objective is to maximise its return on cash & investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of
liquidity and preserving capital.

Council has an Investment Policy which complies with the LGA and Minister's Investment Order. 
This Policy is regularly reviewed by Council and it's staff and an Investment Report is tabled before
Council on a monthly basis setting out the portfolio breakup and its performance.

The major risk associated with Investments is price risk - the risk that the capital value of Investments may
fluctuate due to changes in market prices, whether there changes are caused by factors specific to individual
financial instruments or their issuers or are caused by factors affecting similar instruments traded in a market.

Cash & Investments are also subject to interest rate risk - the risk that movements in interest rates could affect
returns and income.

A further risk associated with Cash & Investments is credit risk - the risk that the investment counterparty) will
not complete their obligations particular to a financial instrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council - be it
of a capital or income nature.

Council manages these risks (amongst other measures) by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing
investments with high credit ratings or capital guarantees.

The following represents a summary of the sensitivity of Council's Income Statement and Accumulated Surplus
(for the reporting period) due to a change in either the price of a financial asset or the interest rates applicable.

It is assumed that the change in interest rates would have been constant throughout the reporting period. 

2013
Possible impact of a 10% movement in Market Values
Possible impact of a 1% movement in Interest Rates

2012
Possible impact of a 10% movement in Market Values
Possible impact of a 1% movement in Interest Rates

(4,382)        

3,144         

Equity 

1,657         

1,818         

(1,657)        

4,382         
Profit 

(4,382)        

Increase of Values/Rates

(1,657)        

1,818         

Decrease of Values/Rates
Profit 

4,382         

(3,144)        (3,144)        

(1,818)        

1,657         

(1,818)        

Equity 

3,144         



Financial Statements 2013

page 64

Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 15. Financial Risk Management (continued)

$ '000

(c) Receivables

Council's major receivables comprise (i) Rates & Annual charges and (ii) User Charges & Fees.

The major risk associated with these receivables is credit risk - the risk that debts due and payable to Council
may not be repaid in full.

Council manages this risk by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent debt recovery procedures.
It also encourages ratepayers to pay their rates by the due date through incentives.

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by Council having  a charge over the land
relating to the debts - that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest
on overdue rates & annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers,
specific industry sectors and/or regions.

The level of outstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly and benchmarks are set and monitored for
acceptable collection performance.

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on most
non-rate debtors.

There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

A profile of Council's receivables credit risk at balance date follows:

(i) Ageing of Receivables
Current (not yet overdue)
Overdue

(ii) Movement in Provision for Impairment
     of Receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year
+ new provisions recognised during the year
- amounts already provided for & written off this year
- amounts provided for but recovered during the year
Balance at the end of the year

-                 

2012

Receivables 
Annual 

Charges 

65              

202            

2013
Rates & 
Annual 

2013

100%

Other 

0%

2012

22%
78%

263            

149            
202            
76              

(12)             (1)               
(14)             

2012

Charges 
0% 78%

2013

Other 
Rates & 

100% 22%

Receivables 
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Note 15. Financial Risk Management (continued)

$ '000

(d) Payables & Borrowings

Payables & Borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk - the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand to
meet payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an
adequate cash buffer.

Payment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) also be extended & overdraft facilities utilised as required.

The contractual undiscounted cash outflows (i.e.. principal and interest) of Council's Payables & Borrowings are
set out in the Liquidity Table below:

$ '000

Trade/Other Payables
Loans & Advances
Total Financial Liabilities

Trade/Other Payables
Loans & Advances
Total Financial Liabilities

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk - the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely
affect funding costs & debt servicing requirements. Council manages this risk through the diversification of
borrowing types, maturities & interest rate structures.

The following interest rates were applicable
to Council's Borrowings at balance date:

Trade/Other Payables
Loans & Advances - Fixed Interest Rate
Loans & Advances - Variable Interest Rate

355,796 

191,052 

177,592     

Interest Rate
11,213       

6.7%

Average

11,213  

10,547  10,547  

11,213  

199,658 

-            

> 5 Yrs

2012

3-4 Yrs2-3 Yrs 4-5 Yrs
Cash

ValuesOutflows

2013

1-2 Yrs

Subject

maturity

-            

460       8,925    -            

19,962  19,768  19,631  

254,841 

20,558  

Total
payable in:to no

≤ 1 Year

-            

Actual

-            

1,076    31,761  20,976  

-            

20,490  22,110  -            

486       9,651    

21,018  1,162    29,961  19,631  19,962  

20,011  

Value
Average

Interest Rate
Carrying

19,222  

19,222  

10,547       

202,265 261,111 

13,460       

0.0%

19,415  

2013

19,415  

1,162    

1,076    

19,768  

-            

21,036  

Value

2012
Carrying

373,572 

362,359 20,011  261,111 

8.5%

366,343 

254,841 189,111 

28,386       
6.8%160,725     

199,658     

0.0%

-            -            

Carrying

202,265     
8.5%
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$ '000

Council's Original Financial Budget for 12/13 was adopted by the Council on 26 June 2012.

While the Income Statement included in this General Purpose Financial Report must disclose the Original
Budget adopted by Council, the Local Government Act requires Council to review its Financial Budget on a
Quarterly Basis, so that it is able to manage the various variations between actuals versus budget that
invariably occur throughout the year.

This Note sets out the details of MATERIAL VARIATIONS between Council's Original Budget and its Actual
results for the year as per the Income Statement - even though such variations may have been adjusted for
during each Quarterly Budget Review.

Note that for Variations* of Budget to Actual :
Material Variations represent those variances that amount to 10% or more of the original budgeted figure.
F = Favourable Budget Variation, U = Unfavourable Budget Variation

$ '000

REVENUES
Rates & Annual Charges

User Charges & Fees

Interest & Investment Revenue
Higher level of funds invested. In addition, Council adopts a conservative approach to budgeting for interest revenue,
and does not budget for non-cash items such as fair value adjustments

Other Revenues
Higher anticipated revenue from rent and fines. In addition, there was substantial revenue from the sale of small
plant items

Operating Grants & Contributions
Grants & contributions were received that were not anticipated in the budget, notably Waste & Sustainability grant,
Affordable Housing grant, and storm & flood damage grants.

Capital Grants & Contributions
Dedicated assets are not included in the budget

34,749          

6,089            

1,854            

F

560          

37,177          

80%

F

2,414            

17,516     7,698            

10,933          

7%

16,215          F

25,214          

3,987       20,202          

F228%

30%

2,428       

25%

F

4,844       

---------- Variance* ----------

F85,683          85,185          1%498          

2013
Budget

2013
Actual

2013
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Note 16. Material Budget Variations (continued)

$ '000

EXPENSES
Employee Benefits & On-Costs

Borrowing Costs

Materials & Contracts

Depreciation & Amortisation

Other Expenses

Net Losses from Disposal of Assets

Budget Variations relating to Council's Cash Flow Statement include:
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
User charges exceeded budget by $6m, grants & contributions by $11m, and investment revenues by $4m

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Some loan funding not sought ($0.6m), also the redemption of a renewal loan ($1.6m) which was expected to 
occur in 2011/12 did not occur until 2012/13

(434)              

U(44,226)         

(2,258)     

15,735          

-                    6,651            

14,877          

U

(6%)

(39,663)         (4,563)     

520.3%

11.5%

(2,692)           U

(6,651)     

73.3%22,483     F30,691          

46,900          

13,589          

Budget

14,035          

45,737          

46,941          

40,078          

53,174          

46,051          

2013

U

39,644          U

(858)        

20132013

(434)        

---------- Variance* ----------

(1%)

U(0%)

Actual

(446)        U

(41)          

(3%)

(1%)

(314)        U
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Note 17. Statement of Developer Contributions

$ '000

Council recovers contributions, raises levies & enters into planning agreements on development works that are subject to a development consent issued by Council.
All contributions must be spent/utilised for the specific purpose they were levied and any interest applicable to unspent funds must be attributed to remaining funds.

The following tables detail the receipt, interest and use of the above contributions & levies and the value of all remaining funds which are "restricted" in their future use.

SUMMARY OF CONTRIBUTIONS & LEVIES

Drainage
Roads
Traffic Facilities
Parking
Open Space
Community Facilities
Path/Cycleways
Street Trees
Other

received during the Year
Interest Expenditure
earned during

1,103       
57            

(635)        

27            

-              

2,269       

10,286     

1,968       
54            

Year

3              
432          (2,786)     

(92)          
in Year

450          

(5,567)     
1,114       

286          

PURPOSE Opening
Balance

-              

32            
-              

7,137       564          

6              (10)          
-              

(457)        

Contributions

-              618          
Non Cash

35            

-              
19            

-              

(7)            

11            

-              
39            -              

1,103       

Cash

5              

-              
-              

1,915       
6              

323          

1,461       

-              

349          

2,133       

-              

(5,567)     

-              

-              

2,514        
136          

27,308      -              

138          

2,572       

Held as

63            
1,459       

-              

-              

2,549       

Internal

94            
(1,095)     

-              

-              

116          (122)        
(370)        

-              

-              129          

24,025     3,061       

3,061       

-              

24,720     

695          

203          

2,249       

5,310       2,133       

-              Total S94 Revenue Under Plans

Total Contributions

-              

(5,574)     

page 68

24,025     

S94 not under Plans

444,037       

-                

22,622     

22,622     

723          

S94 Contributions - under a Plan

S64 Contributions

917          

Financial S
tatem

ents 2013

-                   

-              25,917     (154,280) -              

Exp

still

62,786      
14,884      

9,847       

FutureRestricted
(to)/from

-              

558          (14,829)     

(53,170)     

(119)          70             

6,955       

income

303,835    
14,507      

Asset

-              
-              

Borrowing

-              

outstanding

(171,422)      

-                   

due/(payable)

723              -                   

-                   

CumulativeProjections

982              

(2,500)       152              

-                   

(27,243)     

(485,104)   

16,343         

16,571         

-                

-                

(38,697)     18,133      

-                

(621,662)      

136              
-                   
-                   

(155,003)      

444,037   (621,662) 

-                

InternalOver or

-                   

-                   

Borrowings

14                

(under)

-                   

-                   

-                   

Funding

(18,015)        

236              
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Note 17. Statement of Developer Contributions (continued)

$ '000

S94 CONTRIBUTIONS - UNDER A PLAN

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 1

Open Space

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 2

Drainage

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 3

Community Facilities

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 4

Roads

Year
earned

(to)/from
3,946        

Expenditure

(481)          

during

Internal
during

Expenditure

969              

-                

(4,079)          

Exp

-                
outstanding

-                
Total

Total 10,205      

Cash
PURPOSE

Balance

Total

-                

-                

39             

Contributions

(481)          

(2,786)       

Internal

(2,786)       
1,915        -                

in Year

-                

Interest

Non Cash

Interest
Borrowing

-                
in Year

Contributions

during

-                9,762        

-                

-                

in Year

428           

Year
(36)            

-                

-                

Cash

428           

Balance

received during the Year

-                

4,200        

Opening

542           

1,915        

196           

2               

10,205      

Opening

39             2               

Balance

Contributions

Non Cash
4,200        196           

-                25             -                

received during the Year

-                

Non Cash

31             

542           
Balance

Interest

Cash

Contributions
earned
in Year

earned

-                

Non Cash
Opening

25             

PURPOSE

-                

-                

income

Projections

-                   
-                

Future still

-                5               
5               

Total

income
Future still

Funding

outstanding

Opening
Cash

received during the Year

1               

Over or

567           

PURPOSE

Held as
Restricted

Funding

303,835    (485,104)   

earned

PURPOSE
Expenditure Exp

5               

(to)/from

Expenditure

(36)            

Borrowing
Asset

Asset
Restricted

9,762        

(under)

(171,507)   

168           
outstanding Funding

-                   

received during the Year

31             

Year (to)/from Asset

Interest
still

3,946        

Year

-                

Borrowing

during

(485,104)      303,835       

Projections

5                  

Exp
Borrowings

-                   

-                
Funding

Internal

(to)/from

567           (400)             

Held as

1                  

-                   

Exp

Over or

(under)

(4,079)       836           

Cumulative

Borrowings

Borrowingsstill

Future

Asset

Cumulative

(under)
due/(payable)

income

Internal

due/(payable)

Cumulative
Internal

Future

Restricted

Held as

(400)          

Over orInternal

969           

Borrowing

Held as

-                

Projections

outstandingincome
Restricted

-                   

-                

Internal

Borrowings

-                

-                   

(under)

due/(payable)

Cumulative

Over or
Projections

836              

168              

(171,507)      

Internal

due/(payable)

-                

Financial S
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Note 17. Statement of Developer Contributions (continued)

$ '000

S94 CONTRIBUTIONS - UNDER A PLAN

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 5

Open Space

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 6

Street Trees

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 7

Drainage
Open Space

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 11

Community Facilities (Libraries)

Future

outstanding

Over or

14,506      
(3,977)       

-                

Internal

-                
(1)              432           

Expenditure

Year (to)/from

Future
Funding

Exp
(under)still

Fundingoutstanding
(under)

income

68             

18,478         

5,611        

136           

Asset

136              -                   

Over or

(6,134)       

Borrowing
(to)/from

Restricted Future

Projections
Exp
stillBorrowing

Held as

Fundingincome

Held as

income

Projections

still
ExpExpenditureInterest

received during the Year

in Year

-                
-                

(101)          870           

Cash
Restricted still

Over or

Non Cash

Projections

Balance
OpeningPURPOSE

Opening

870           
-                

830           

-                

Total

11             

Future
Exp

(under)PURPOSE

129           

830           

Contributions
Borrowing

136           

5,611           

-                

4               

87             

Cash

Expenditure
earned

41             

Internal

136           

-                

Asset

Restricted

Cash
-                

Internal

-                

Contributions

20             

received during the Year

(101)          
Year

earned
Non Cash

(to)/from

Interest

during

20             

Non Cash

(10)            

20             

Contributions

-                

Interest

Interest

-                
(92)            

during
Expenditure

(10)            

(67)            

Held as

Non Cash

-                

Contributions

495              

income

Projections

Asset
Restricted

1,453        

Held as

-                
(18,406)        

(38,886)     
(38,886)        

3,972        427           

(to)/from

423           

1,453        10,479         

earned

-                

received during the Year

68             

during
in Year

(93)            

87             

(14,429)     

-                   

Year
Borrowing

(67)            

-                22             9               

(9)              

-                

68             

outstanding

(26,954)     10,479      -                
(26,954)        

PURPOSE

Total

PURPOSE

Balance

2               

-                
6               

earned
in Year

received during the Year

485           

11             

5               
Cash

page 70

Balance
Opening

Total 1,365        

129           

page xx

Total

76             

Opening

409           

Balance

1,365        

during

(6,134)          

Year
-                

41             

6               

Internal

in Year

Borrowings
Fundingoutstanding

Over or
(under)

Asset

Financial  

Borrowings

Cumulative

Internal
Cumulative

307              
307           

-                   

due/(payable)
Borrowings

-                   

-                   

Internal
Cumulative

-                

due/(payable)

-                

due/(payable)

-                
-                

Borrowings

due/(payable)

Internal

Internal
Cumulative

-                
-                   
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 17. Statement of Developer Contributions (continued)

$ '000

S94 CONTRIBUTIONS - UNDER A PLAN

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 12

Traffic Facilities - Bus Shelters (Other)

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 13

Other (Cemeteries)

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 14

Roads(Mebbin Springs)

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 15

Community Facilities

Total

PURPOSE

Expenditure
during
Year

-                

earned

Interest

in Year

Yearin Year

earned

(2)              

Expenditure

(2)              

-                

(2)              

Expenditure

Opening

Cash

54             
CashBalance

Opening

81             

6               54             

Non Cash

received during the Year
Contributions

received during the Year
Interest

in Year

-                

Cash

stillBorrowing
income

Expenditure

Exp

14                

Held as

income

-                

Projections

Funding

Projections

Restricted
Held as

63             
outstanding

70             (119)          
Asset

-                
Year (to)/from

-                
in Year
earned

6               

Balance

Interest

Contributions

Non Cash

Balance

13             

-                
Non Cash

-                

received during the Year

13             -                

during

3               
-                

Future
income(to)/from

319           

81             

Opening

Total

PURPOSE

PURPOSE Opening

-                

Contributions

-                

PURPOSE

(40)            

Held as

Year
earned

Asset

Restricted

-                   

Future

2,125        

Borrowing

(15)            

-                

(119)          

during

458           

Restricted

85             

Borrowing

-                

Internal

19             

-                
4               

Borrowing

Internal

-                

during

Funding
(under)

(under)
outstanding

Exp

Projections
Over orInternal

(31)            

Future

-                85             

(31)            

-                

63             

Future

(119)             

Asset

70                

-                
Asset

-                

(to)/from

Held as
Restricted

Internal

458           

(to)/from
339           
339              

-                
(119)             

(under)
Funding

Exp Over or

-                
-                   85                

Over or

outstanding
still

-                   

(under)
income

(15)            

Exp

3               

received during the Year

319           

(40)            

-                
Non Cash

page 71

4               

page xx

Total

135           

CashBalance
-                135           

Total 19             

Contributions

(2)              

Interest

-                

Borrowings
due/(payable)

Internal

-                   

Cumulative

outstanding

492           

Internal

due/(payable)

(1,602)       

still Borrowings

85             

Financial  

Funding

-                

-                
492              (1,602)          -                   

Over or Internal

Cumulative

-                   

due/(payable)

Internal

Projections

2,125           

still Borrowings

due/(payable)

14             

Cumulative

Borrowings

-                

Cumulative

-                
-                   
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 17. Statement of Developer Contributions (continued)

$ '000

S94 CONTRIBUTIONS - UNDER A PLAN

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 16

Other (Surf Lifesaving)

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 18

Other (Council Admin Fees)

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 19

Open Space
Community Facilities
Path/Cycleways

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 20

Open Space

Restricted

826           

Balance

328           
328           

received during the Year

186           

-                

21             

PURPOSE
Balance
Opening

Opening

(387)          
546           

92             
Total

Total

PURPOSE

251           

1               
1               

Cash

Opening

-                

-                

Non Cash
-                

347           
16             

85             
-                

income

8,406        

-                

Contributions

-                

-                

347           

Asset

Non Cash

-                96             
10             

(21)            

received during the Year

outstandingincome

Over or

6,701        

96             

(under)

still

Projections

income
Future

Asset
still

during

(to)/from

-                

Expenditure Internal

-                

Held as

Held as

633           
-                
-                

Funding

-                   1                  

-                

25,218         (25,425)        

-                

(163)          

4               

Borrowing

(under)

outstanding

Asset

(25,425)     

(to)/from
Restricted

Held as Exp
still

Projections

Borrowing
Internal

Exp

(216)          

15,203         

(under)

-                

(216)             
131           

(under)
Funding

Over orExp

earned Future

-                -                

Restricted

Year

25,218      

Projections

income outstanding

4               

Total

Balance

Interest
earned

earned

Non Cash
received during the Year

4               

page xx

Cash

Total

in Year
PURPOSE

in YearBalance

Opening

Interest

(1)              

Cash
during
Year

Internal

-                

Future

(to)/from

-                

(1)              

Interest

(454)          

Asset

-                

-                -                

16             

PURPOSE

826           

Expenditure

27             

in Year

Contributions

Non Cash

(454)          -                

64             

received during the Year

(4)              

43             
601           

Contributions Expenditure

-                

186           

Restricted

-                

-                   

Borrowings

Borrowings

7,773        

Funding

Over or

-                

-                

-                
-                   

due/(payable)

-                

-                

due/(payable)

Internal

Cumulative
Internal

Cumulative

due/(payable)

Cumulative

due/(payable)

Internal

Borrowings

Borrowings

Internal

-                

-                   

-                

Cumulative

Funding

Expenditure
during

Financia
  

394           
394              

43             
601           

131              -                   

-                

(to)/fromYear
Borrowing

Held as
still

Over or
Projections

(167)          

(550)          8,316        (1,065)       

-                179           16,089         (1,065)          

Borrowingduring
outstanding

Contributions Interest

in Year
earned

Year
Future

Internal

Cash

Exp

1               1               -                -                -                
-                   1               -                   -                -                
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 17. Statement of Developer Contributions (continued)

$ '000

S94 CONTRIBUTIONS - UNDER A PLAN

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 21

Open Space

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 22

Path/Cycleways (Shire Wide Cycleways)

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 23

Parking (Shire Wide Car parking)

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 25

Open Space (Salt Open Space)

Interest

Non Cash

94             

received during the Year

83             

earned RestrictedBorrowing

(to)/from

Internal

earned

46             

OpeningPURPOSE
Balance

PURPOSE Opening

28             Total

Opening

PURPOSE

PURPOSE

Total 1,968        

Opening

Balance

Total
907           

Balance

Cash

15             

Cash in Year

Contributions

32             

earned

907           

Non Cash
-                28             

Balance

-                
in Year

Non Cash

-                

1,968        

358           

(635)          

outstanding

29             

Expenditure

-                

still

42             

Restricted
Internal

Expenditure

Asset

(to)/from

outstanding

29                

14,884         

Future

56                

Over or

Funding
still

income

(136)          

Asset

Borrowing

Year
earned
Interest

Interest

during

Expenditure

Contributions

-                

income

39             
39             2,514           

-                

received during the Year

32             

15             

Non Cash
received during the Year

during

-                

-                

83             

Contributions

-                

Contributions

Internal

Cash
1               -                

-                

Internal
received during the Year

94             

(to)/from AssetYear

99                987              (136)             

outstanding

still
Internal

Borrowings
due/(payable)

16,343         

Cumulative
Internal

Projections

Future

Cumulative

Cumulative

Financial  

-                

-                

due/(payable)
Borrowings

Cumulative

-                

Internal

Borrowings

-                   

-                   

due/(payable)

Internal

Exp

Funding

(under)
FundingAsset

Borrowings
Exp

due/(payable)

Over orHeld as
Future

Projections

29             -                -                -                
in Year incomeYear

Borrowing
(to)/from

during Restricted
Interest

Over or

Year

-                -                   1               -                   -                29             

(under)
Held as

in Year

page xx

Total 358           

incomeCash

56             -                -                
(370)          

during
Expenditure

(2,500)       
(2,500)          

still
Exp

Future

Projections

(370)          42             

Held as
(under)

2,514        

(635)          -                -                1,459        16,343      
-                

14,884      
-                   1,459        -                   

Projections

-                1,024        
outstanding

987           

Borrowing
Funding

(12)            99             

Over or
(under)

Held as Exp
Restricted

-                46             1,024        (12)            -                   -                
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 17. Statement of Developer Contributions (continued)

$ '000

S94 CONTRIBUTIONS - UNDER A PLAN

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 26

Open Space (Shirewide)

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 27

Open Space

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 28

Open Space

379           
379           

4               

Cash

Interest

Expenditure

in Year
earned

Restricted
Internal

Internal

Restricted
Asset

-                

PURPOSE

PURPOSE
Balance

Opening

996           

PURPOSE

Total

Total

Balance

Total 93             

60             

Contributions

Non Cash

-                996           
Non Cash

4               

earned

60             

93             -                

Non Cash in Year
Opening

-                

during Borrowing

41             

(330)          1,105        

Over or
Future still (under)

-                

income outstanding

Expenditure

Held asInternal

Contributions
received during the Year

(to)/from
earned

Contributions

Held as

2               

-                -                -                

(to)/from

-                

(to)/from
Borrowing still (under)

1,105        

in Year

41             

Asset

Projections

Funding

Exp

Asset

97             

(40,537)     

-                   

Year

Over or

Funding

97             

4,413        

-                -                

Internal
Borrowings

-                   

-                   

due/(payable)

-                

-                   

Cumulative

Cumulative

Internal
Opening

Interest
Restricted

YearBalance

Exp

(330)          

received during the Year

Projections Cumulative

43,845         (40,537)        4,413           -                

Borrowings
due/(payable)income outstandingCash

Futureduring
Held as

43,845      

97             -                -                -                

Projections
Exp Over or

-                

Expenditure Internal
(under)Future still

-                   97                

due/(payable)income
Borrowing

Year
received during the Year

Funding

Interest

Cash
Borrowingsduring

-                

20             
outstanding

-                (7)              -                -                26             -                41             
-                   -                   41                20             26             -                (7)              2               
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 17. Statement of Developer Contributions (continued)

$ '000

S94 CONTRIBUTIONS - NOT UNDER A PLAN

Drainage
Traffic Facilities
Open Space
Community Facilities
Footpath

(7)              -                -                

Financial S
tatem

ents 2013

(7)              
76             

35             -                723              -                   -                   
-                

-                

-                

-                

Asset Funding
received during the Year

Non Cash

Contributions
earned

Year (to)/from

Interest

Cash

-                

Opening
Balance

-                

Total 695           

during

page 75

PURPOSE

251           -                

-                
-                -                

92             
-                263           -                

-                

Borrowing
in Year

18             
-                

275           
-                

1               
76             

286           

Held asInternal
Projections

Expenditure

-                
12             

-                

-                1               -                1               
-                

286           
-                -                

-                

-                
97             

outstanding
still
Exp

income

5               

723           

-                

-                
-                

76             

(under)Future

263           

Over or

-                

Restricted

-                
97             -                

-                
-                

Cumulative
Internal

due/(payable)
Borrowings

-                   

-                
-                
-                

-                
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 18. Contingencies & Other Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised

$ '000

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for (iv) Other Guarantees
recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but
their knowledge & disclosure is considered relevant Council has provided no other Guarantees other than
to the users of Council's Financial Report. those listed above.

2. Other Liabilities
LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED:

(ii) S94 Plans
1. Guarantees

Council levies Section 94/94A Contributions upon
(i) Defined Benefit Superannuation various development across the Council area through
     Contribution Plans the required Contributions Plans.

Council participates in an employer sponsored As part of these Plans, Council has received funds
Defined Benefit Superannuation Scheme, and makes for which it will be required to expend the monies in
contributions as determined by the Superannuation accordance with those Plans.
Scheme's Trustees.

As well, these Plans indicate proposed future
Member Councils bear responsibility of ensuring there expenditure to be undertaken by Council, which will
are sufficient funds available to pay out the required be funded by making levies and receipting funds in
benefits as they fall due. future years or where a shortfall exists by the use of

Council's General Funds.
The Schemes most recent full actuarial review
indicated that the Net Assets of the Scheme were These future expenses do not yet qualify as liabilities
not sufficient to meet the accrued benefits of the as of the Reporting Date, but represent Councils
Schemes Defined Benefit member category with intention to spend funds in the manner and timing
member Councils required to make significantly set out in those Plans.
higher contributions in future years.

(ii) Richmond - Tweed Regional Library
The Local Government Superannuation Scheme
however is unable to provide Council with an accurate Council together with other local government
estimate of its share of the net deficit. Accordingly, authorities to operate a regional facility
Council has not recorded a net liability of $3,073,394 known as the Richmond-Tweed Regional Library.
for its Defined Benefit Scheme obligations in 
accordance with AASB 119 was at 30 June 2013. Annually, Councils contribute to fund its activities

based upon a formula. In the event that Council wishes
Future contributions made to the defined benefit to withdraw from the arrangement, Council will receive 
scheme to rectify the net deficit position will be it's attributable share of assets and liabilities.
recognised as an expense when they become
payable - similar to the accounting for Defined
Contributions Plans.
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 18. Contingencies & Other Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised (continued)

$ '000

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED (continued):

2. Other Liabilities (continued)

(iii) Legal Issues

Council can defend actions in Land & Environment 
Court. It is not practical to estimate the amount, if any,
for which the Council could be liable thereof.

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED:

(i) Infringement Notices/Fines

Fines & Penalty Income, the result of Council issuing
Infringement Notices is followed up and collected by
the Infringement Processing Bureau.

Council's Revenue Recognition policy for such income
is to account for it as revenue on receipt.

Accordingly, at Year End, there is a potential asset
due to Council representing issued but unpaid 
Infringement Notices.

Due to the limited information available on the status,
value and duration of outstanding Notices, Council is
unable to determine the value of outstanding income.

Note 19. Controlled Entities, Associated Entities & Interests in Joint Ventures

Council has no material interest in any Controlled Entities, Associated Entities or Joint Ventures for
financial statement accounting and disclosure purposes.
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 20. Equity - Retained Earnings and Revaluation Reserves

$ '000

(a) Retained Earnings

Movements in Retained Earnings were as follows:
Balance at beginning of Year (from previous years audited accounts)

a. Correction of Prior Period Errors
c. Net Operating Result for the Year
Balance at End of the Reporting Period

(b) Reserves

(i) Reserves are represented by:

- Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Reserve
Total

(ii) Reconciliation of movements in Reserves:

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Reserve
- Opening Balance
- Revaluations for the year
- Other movements (disclose here…)

- Balance at End of Year

TOTAL VALUE OF RESERVES

(iii) Nature & Purpose of Reserves

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Reserve
- The Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation
   Reserve is used to record increments/decrements of Non
  Current Asset values due to their revaluation.

19,468          

1,207,322     1,211,450     

109,241        
(866)              

1,423,413     
1,315,038  

12,132          
4,861            

Actual 

-                    
1,315,038     

1,423,413  

1,423,413     

1,291,552     

1,423,413  

(23,596)         

2012

1,315,038     

1,315,038     

1,315,038  

Notes

20 (c)

2013
Actual 

1,207,322 

9(a)

1,224,315 

23,486          
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 20. Equity - Retained Earnings and Revaluation Reserves (continued)

$ '000

(c) Correction of Error/s relating to a Previous Reporting Period

Correction of prior period errors in the current year:
Upon review of Council's current asset records, a number of asset classes
had minor adjustments to prior period retained earnings arising from revised
control assessments and revaluation processes.
* Buildings
* Other Structures
* Other Classes

Correction of errors as disclosed in last year's financial statements:

Due to improved auditing and record keeping processes, Council has 
identified a number of assets not previously included in Council's asset 
records as well as assets included in Council's records more than once.  
Council has assessed these assets based on valuations, unit rates and
useful lives of like assets as determined in the most recent revaluation
process.

* Buildings
* Transport
* Land
* Water & Sewer Infrastructure
* Other Structures
     

In accordance with AASB 108 - Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, the above Prior Period Errors
have been recognised retrospectively.

These amounted to the following Equity Adjustments:

- Adjustments to Opening Equity - 1/7/11
  (relating to adjustments for the 30/6/11 reporting year end and prior periods)

- Adjustments to Closing Equity - 30/6/12
  (relating to adjustments for the 30/6/12 year end)

Total Prior Period Adjustments - Prior Period Errors

(d) Voluntary Changes in Accounting Policies

     Council did not make any voluntary changes to accounting policies during the year.

(24,473)         

4,861            

70                 

2013

808               

2012

4,861            

-                    

Notes
Actual Actual 

(23,596)         

(771)              
3,614            
2,018            

-                    

(23,596)         
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Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 21. Financial Result & Financial Position by Fund

Income Statement by Fund
$ '000

Continuing Operations
Income from Continuing Operations
Rates & Annual Charges
User Charges & Fees
Interest & Investment Revenue
Other Revenues
Grants & Contributions provided for Operating Purposes
Grants & Contributions provided for Capital Purposes
Total Income from Continuing Operations

Expenses from Continuing Operations
Employee Benefits & on-costs
Borrowing Costs
Materials & Contracts
Depreciation & Amortisation
Impairment
Other Expenses
Interest & Investment Losses
Net Losses from the Disposal of Assets
Share of interests in Joint Ventures & Associates
using the Equity Method
Total Expenses from Continuing Operations
Operating Result from Continuing Operations

Discontinued Operations

Net Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued Operations
Net Operating Result for the Year

Net Operating Result attributable to each Council Fund
Net Operating Result attributable to Non-controlling Interests

Net Operating Result for the year before Grants
and Contributions provided for Capital Purposes

1 General Fund refers to all Council's activities other than Water & Sewer.
   NB. All amounts disclosed above are Gross - that is, they include internal charges & recoveries made between the Funds.

-              

114,242   

11,519     

31,650     

12,332 

939          
-              

2013

-              

36,897     

-              

30,802     

-              
12,332 2,316   

-              

6,641       

1,348       316          

2,190       
24,247     

-              -              

-                

9,742       
-              

2,972       

126,574   

21,245     60,311     

Water

Actual 

23,670     

Actual 

5,379       

1,524       

360          373          

5,309       
3,338       

Actual 

4,127       

19,244     

(6,912)       

-              
26,763     

5,127       

12,332     

2,517       

2,316       
-                

2,316   

-                (1,464)       

28,486     

-              

(4,706)       

-           

(2,516)     
-                

2,129       19,765     

3,845       

-              

5,318       

1,699       

-              
(2,516)  

-              

(2,516)  

8,650       

585          

-              
-           

6,666       

-              

2013
Actual 

20132013

15,283     

750          
19,469     

6,437       

3,780       

General1Sewer
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Notes to the Financial Statements
 as at 30 June 2013

Note 21. Financial Result & Financial Position by Fund (continued)

Statement of Financial Position by Fund
$ '000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Non-current assets classified as 'held for sale'
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Investments Accounted for using the equity method
Investment Property
Intangible Assets
Other
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Net Assets

EQUITY
Retained Earnings
Revaluation Reserves
Total Equity
1 General Fund refers to all Council's activities other than Water & Sewer.
   NB. All amounts disclosed above are Gross - that is, they include internal receivables & payables between the Funds.

-            

180,593   

65,989     
118,224    

Actual Actual 

-              
36,043     

-              

9,952       

-              
-              

2,713       

460          -              

40,065     

2,272       

65,989     

1,607,279 438,792    

380,954   258,199   
-            438,792    1,607,279 

220,703   

79,426     

85,960     36,043     
39,234      

823,019   

6,074       

601,657    

784,260   

8,000       

-              

3,872       

General1

11,831     

-              

-              

1,661,341 

30,847     

475,456    

640,891    -              

32,264     

1,725,503 

-              
3,191       

11,671     

807          

-              

-              

-              

478          

68,261      

Actual 

-              

-              
476,206    

1,204       

51            

1,068       

-              
-              

507,053    

-              

601,657    

2013

Water

16,721     

1,507       

64,162     

588,439    
-              

2,987       

-              

-              

-              

2013
Actual 

754          
440          

-              
86            

Sewer

-              

33,000     
7,393       

3,973       

2013

-              

58,781     

2013

1,598,379 

596,525    

-              

22,650     
8,146       

-              

-              

-              

750          
-              

-              

44,366     

0

-              

-              
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Note 22. "Held for Sale" Non Current Assets & Disposal Groups

$ '000

Council did not classify any material Non Current Assets or Disposal Groups as "Held for Sale".

Note 23. Events occurring after the Reporting Period

Events that occur between the end of the reporting period (ending 30 June 2013) and the date when the
financial statements are "authorised for issue" have been taken into account in preparing these statements.

Council has adopted the date of receipt of the Auditors' Report as the applicable "authorised for issue" date
relating to these General Purpose Financial Statements.

Accordingly, the "authorised for issue" date is 17/10/13.

Events that occur after the Reporting Period represent one of two types:

(i) Events that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the Reporting Period

These financial statements (and the figures therein) incorporate all "adjusting events" that provided evidence of
conditions that existed at 30 June 2013.

(ii) Events that provide evidence of conditions that arose after the Reporting Period

These financial statements (& figures therein) do not incorporate any "non-adjusting events" that have occurred
after 30 June 2013 and which are only indicative of conditions that arose after 30 June 2013.

Council is unaware of any material or significant "non-adjusting events" that should be disclosed.

Note 24. Discontinued Operations

Council has not classified any of its Operations as "Discontinued".
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Note 25. Intangible Assets

$ '000

Intangible Assets represent identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.

Intangible Assets are as follows;

Opening Values:
Gross Book Value (1/7/12)

Accumulated Amortisation (1/7/12)

Accumulated Impairment (1/7/12)

Net Book Value - Opening Balance

Movements for the year
- Purchases

- Amortisation charges

Closing Values:
Gross Book Value (30/6/13)

Accumulated Amortisation (30/6/13)

Accumulated Impairment (30/6/13)

TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS - NET BOOK VALUE 1

1. The Net Book Value of Intangible Assets represent:

- Software

-                 

2,865         3,325         

730            

438            

Amount 

(323)           

Amount 

2,427         

460            

(2,135)        

2013

754         

-                 

754            
754            

730            

(436)           

2,865         

730            

2012

(2,571)        

730         

-                 

Carrying 

Actual 

615            

(1,812)        

Carrying 

Actual 

(2,135)        

-                 
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Note 26. Reinstatement, Rehabilitation & Restoration Liabilities

$ '000

Council has legal/public obligations to restore, rehabilitate and reinstate the following assets/operations:

Asset/Operation

Tips
Quarries
Kingscliff Sewerage Treatment Plant
Balance at End of the Reporting Period

Under AASB 116 - Property, Plant & Equipment, where the use of an asset results in the obligation to dismantle
or remove the asset and restore the site on which the asset stands, an estimate of such costs is required to be
included in the cost of the asset.

An equivalent liability must be recognised under AASB 137 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets.

The provision has been calculated by determining the present value of the future expenditures expected to be
incurred. The discount rate used is the risk free borrowing rate applicable to Council.

Reconciliation of movement in Provision for year:

Balance at beginning of year
Amounts capitalised to new or existing assets:
Amortisation of discount (expensed to borrowing costs)

Expenditure incurred attributable to Provisions
Total - Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration provision

Amount of Expected Reimbursements
Of the above Provisions for Reinstatement, Rehabilitation and Restoration works, those applicable to Garbage
Services & Waste Management are able to be funded through future charges incorporated within Council's
Annual Domestic Waste Management Charge.

10(a)

107               -                    
1,091        

654               

2013

2013

Estimated

2012restoration

432               2020

year of NPV of Provision       

492               
659               

1,253        

2020

1,091         1,253         
(107)              (410)              

55                 (55)                

1,253            1,608            



Financial Statements 2013

page 85

Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 27. Council Information & Contact Details

Principal Place of Business:
Civic & Cultural Centre Tumbulgum Road
Murwillumbah NSW 2484

Contact Details
Mailing Address: Opening Hours:
PO Box 816 8.30 am - 4.15 pm Monday to Friday
Murwillumbah NSW 2484 Closed Public Holidays

Telephone: 1300 292 872 Internet: www.tsc.nsw.gov.au
Facsimile: 02 6670 2429 Email: tsc@council.nsw.gov.au

Officers Elected Members
GENERAL MANAGER MAYOR
Troy Green Barry Longland

RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER COUNCILLORS
Michael Chorlton Barry Longland - Mayor

Michael Armstrong - Deputy Mayor
PUBLIC OFFICER Gary Bagnall
Neil Baldwin Carolyn Byrne

Katie Milne
AUDITORS Warren Polglase
Thomas Noble & Russell Phil Youngblutt
Chartered Accountants
PO Box 106 
Lismore NSW 2480

Other Information
ABN: 90 178 732 496

http://www.tsc.nsw.gov.au/
mailto:tsc@council.nsw.gov.au
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Tweed Shire Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Contents

1. Statement by Councillors & Management

2. Special Purpose Financial Statements:

Income Statement - Water Supply Business Activity
Income Statement - Sewerage Business Activity
Income Statement - Other Business Activities

Statement of Financial Position - Water Supply Business Activity
Statement of Financial Position - Sewerage Business Activity
Statement of Financial Position - Other Business Activities

3. Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements

4. Auditor's Report

Background

These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared for the use by both Council and the Division of
Local Government in fulfilling their requirements under National Competition Policy.

The principle of competitive neutrality is based on the concept of a "level playing field" between persons/entities
competing in a market place, particularly between private and public sector competitors.

Essentially, the principle is that government businesses, whether Commonwealth, State or Local, should operate
without net competitive advantages over other businesses as a result of their public ownership.

For Council, the principle of competitive neutrality & public reporting applies only to declared business activities.

These include (a) those activities classified by the Australian Bureau of Statistics as business activities being
water supply, sewerage services, abattoirs, gas production and reticulation and (b) those activities with a turnover
of over $2 million that Council has formally declared as a Business Activity (defined as Category 1 activities).

In preparing these financial statements for Council's self classified Category 1 businesses and ABS defined
activities, councils must (a) adopt a corporatisation model and (b) apply full cost attribution including  tax equivalent
regime payments & debt guarantee fees (where the business benefits from councils borrowing position by
comparison with commercial rates).

6

Page

3
4
5

2

(iv)

9

8
7

(i)

(ii)

18

(iii)
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Statement by Councillors and Management
 made pursuant to the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

The attached Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:

 The NSW Government Policy Statement “Application of National Competition Policy to
Local Government”.

 The Division of Local Government Guidelines “Pricing & Costing for Council Businesses - 
A Guide to Competitive Neutrality”.

 The Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

 The NSW Office of Water (Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water) Guidelines - 
"Best Practice Management of Water and Sewerage".

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these Financial Statements:

 Present fairly the Operating Result and Financial Position for each of Council's declared Business
Activities for the year, and

 Accord with Council’s accounting and other records.

We are not aware of any matter that would render these Statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 17 October 2013.

Barry Longland Michael Armstrong 
MAYOR COUNCILLOR

Troy Green Michael Chorlton 
ACTING GENERAL MANAGER RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
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Tweed Shire Council

Income Statement of Council's Water Supply Business Activity
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$ '000

Income from continuing operations
Access charges
User charges
Fees
Interest
Grants and contributions provided for non capital purposes
Profit from the sale of assets
Other income
Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs
Borrowing costs
Materials and contracts
Depreciation and impairment
Water purchase charges
Loss on sale of assets
Calculated taxation equivalents
Debt guarantee fee (if applicable)
Other expenses
Total expenses from continuing operations
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations before capital amounts

Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations after capital amounts

Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations
Surplus (deficit) from ALL Operations before tax
less: Corporate Taxation Equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital]

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

plus Opening Retained Profits
plus/less: Prior Period Adjustments
plus Adjustments for amounts unpaid:
- Taxation equivalent payments
- Debt guarantee fees
- Corporate taxation equivalent
less:
- Tax Equivalent Dividend paid
- Surplus dividend paid
Closing Retained Profits

Return on Capital %
Subsidy from Council

Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax
less: Capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes
Potential Dividend calculated from surplus

(5,717)              

2,190               
(3,527)              

-                       
(3,527)              

-                       

-                         
-                         

Actual 
2013 

-                         

(104)                   

180,593             

-0.1%
N/A

(3,527)              

183,213             

(3,527)                
(747)                   

Actual 
2012 

4,127               
15,283             

-                       
1,524               

373                  
-                       

750                  
22,057             

3,845               
5,318               
8,650               
6,666               

-                       
585                  
676                  
335                  

1,699               
27,774             

676                    
335                    

-                         

(103)                   
-                         

183,213             

-0.5%
N/A

(4,087)                
(1,707)                

-                         
-                         

340                  
1,470               

26,744             
(7,218)              

3,131               
(4,087)              

-                       
(4,087)              

-                       

(4,087)              

186,534             
(128)                   

657                    
340                    

3,784               
13,032             

-                       
1,635               

375                  
-                       

700                  
19,526             

3,903               
4,906               
7,519               
6,699               

-                       
1,250               

657                  
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Tweed Shire Council

Income Statement of Council's Sewerage Business Activity
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$ '000

Income from continuing operations
Access charges
User charges
Liquid Trade Waste charges
Fees
Interest
Grants and contributions provided for non capital purposes
Profit from the sale of assets
Other income
Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs
Borrowing costs
Materials and contracts
Depreciation and impairment
Loss on sale of assets
Calculated taxation equivalents
Debt guarantee fee (if applicable)
Other expenses
Total expenses from continuing operations
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations before capital amounts

Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations after capital amounts

Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations
Surplus (deficit) from ALL Operations before tax
less: Corporate Taxation Equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital]

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

plus Opening Retained Profits
plus/less: Prior Period Adjustments
plus Adjustments for amounts unpaid:
- Taxation equivalent payments
- Debt guarantee fees
- Corporate taxation equivalent
less:
- Tax Equivalent Dividend paid
- Surplus dividend paid
Closing Retained Profits

Return on Capital %
Subsidy from Council

Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax
less: Capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes
Potential Dividend calculated from surplus

223                    
-                         

(98)                     
-                         

21,245             
-                       

1,999               
130                  

2,972               

223                  
1,991               

28,895             
(2,621)              

6,652               
4,031               

0.2%
N/A

-                       
4,031               

-                       

4,031               

213,689             
(203)                   

218,486             

19,769             
-                       

Actual 
2012 

1,506               

Actual 
2013 

60                    
3,645               

363                  360                  
-                       

316                  
27,022             

-                       
931                  

5,258               
3,496               
6,504               
8,232               
2,347               

4,031                 
(5,898)                

-                         
-                         

5,309               
3,338               
6,641               
9,742               

939                  
859                  

3,780               
1,263               

859                    
194                    

-                         

(99)                     

-                       
1,263               

-                       

1,263               

218,486             

-                         

26,274             

844                  

844                    

-                         
220,703             

0.1%
N/A

1,263                 
(2,974)                

-                         

194                  
2,517               

29,539             
(2,517)              
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Tweed Shire Council

Income Statement of Council's Other Business Activities
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$ '000

Income from continuing operations
Access charges
User charges
Fees
Interest
Grants and contributions provided for non capital purposes
Profit from the sale of assets
Other income
Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs
Borrowing costs
Materials and contracts
Depreciation and impairment
Loss on sale of assets
Calculated taxation equivalents
Debt guarantee fee (if applicable)
Other expenses
Total expenses from continuing operations
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations before capital amounts

Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations after capital amounts

Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations
Surplus (deficit) from ALL Operations before tax
less: Corporate Taxation Equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital]

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

plus Opening Retained Profits
plus/less: Prior Period Adjustments
plus/less: Other Adjustments (details here...)
plus Adjustments for amounts unpaid:
- Taxation equivalent payments
- Debt guarantee fees
- Corporate taxation equivalent
add:
- Subsidy Paid/Contribution To Operations
less:
- TER dividend paid
- Dividend paid
Closing Retained Profits

Return on Capital %
Subsidy from Council

-             -             -             

6,656    

Actual 

3,002    

-            

3,195    
889       896       

1,517    

3,565    

-            

1,489    
-            

2,921      

(350)       (1,073)    

0.2%

3,011    

728       

-            

1,489    1,517    

44         38         
-            -            

276       

-            
-            
-            

0.6%

Holiday Parks Commercial Waste

25,477  

-             

-             

2,602      

24,448  

1,913    

2013 
Actual 

2012 
Actual Actual 

2012 2013 

1,701    

-            

-            

-            
-            

-            

9           130       
4,712    

-            

-            

-            

-            

-            
7,116    

638       
-            
-            

434       

711       

1,604    

5,054    

-            
-            

641       

1,908    

1,517    

252       

-            

17         

91         

474       

-            

477       

214       

1,576    1,765    
-            

3           -            -            

591       
-            

-            

1,780    2,252    
94         

7,644    
2,981    

7,858    

158         

526       

-            
526       

-             

526       
-            

24,448    

1,576      
-             

8,188    

368       

(158)      

7,662    
3,180    

-            

-             

150       

-            
214       

214       
(64)        

-             

-             

447         
-             -             

44           

-             

1,062    

-             

1,765      

-             -             

-             
455         

-             

64           

-             

-             -             

38           

7,243      8,798      22,819    

1,042    

43.9%

10,331  

39.7%
-             

8,798    

-             

1,489    
(455)      (447)      

Category 1 Category 1
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Tweed Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position - Council's Water Supply Business Activity
 as at 30 June 2013

$ '000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Investments accounted for using equity method
Investment property
Other
Total non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Bank Overdraft
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserves
Council equity interest
Non-controlling interest
TOTAL EQUITY

497,377           

1,204               

-                       

-                       -                       

1,068               
-                       -                       

1,521               2,272               

1,021               

68,261             

65,989             
-                       

428,799      
68,578             

Actual 
2012 

Actual 
2013 

507,053           

500                  

-                       
466,118           

67,057             

65,989             

180,593           

67,057             

-                       

51                    67                    

-                       21                    
-                       -                       

-                       
746                  

476,206           
-                       -                       

466,939           

750                  

475,456           

22,650             22,000             
8,146               8,350               

30,847             

-                       

-                       -                       
30,438             

-                       
-                       75                    

-                       

428,799           

428,799      

258,199           

438,792      

438,792           
-                       

438,792      

245,585           
183,214           

-                       

-                       -                       
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Tweed Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position - Council's Sewerage Business Activity
 as at 30 June 2013

$ '000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Investments accounted for using equity method
Investment property
Other
Total non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Bank Overdraft
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserves
Council equity interest
Non-controlling equity interest
TOTAL EQUITY

1,294               

-                       

478                  

626,189           

-                       

583,782      

-                       1,367               

596,525           572,084           
-                       -                       

-                       

-                       8,000               

-                       
-                       26                    

3,973               2,560               
33,000             

2012 

7,393               

2013 

-                       

Actual Actual 

1,519               

-                       

-                       

-                       

39,234             

2,713               3,108               

-                       

-                       
3,191               4,402               

50,000             

44,366             54,105             

-                       -                       

640,891           

-                       

220,703           

-                       

38,005             
-                       

380,954           365,296           
601,657           

36,043             

583,782      

583,782           

-                       

42,407             
36,043             38,005             

218,486           

601,657      

601,657      

-                       -                       

86                    110                  

588,439           570,607           
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Tweed Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position - Council's Other Business Activities
 as at 30 June 2013

$ '000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Investments accounted for using equity method
Investment property
Other
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Bank Overdraft
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Other Liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserves
Council equity interest
Non-controlling equity interest
TOTAL EQUITY

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 
91,435       

-                 

-                 

-                 

16,139       
-                 

-                 

332            
-                 

Actual 
2013 

280            94              

8,211         

7,105         

121            
-                 

15,607       

256            

79,990       

-                 

495            
9,849      

-                 

314            

-                 
-                 
-                 
-                 

495            

10,344       

-                 

Actual 

10              
-                 

-                 

181            

5,304         

3,494         

-                 

-                 

-                 
1,770         

96,921       91,435       
107,574     

-                 

243            

14,886       

81              
-                 

359            

24,448       

75              

109,560  105,467  

174            

-                 

3,494         

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 

-                 

6,850         

3,759         

-                 

123            

-                 

-                 

-                 

96,921       

112,528     

-                 -                 -                 

-                 

3,759         
-                 -                 

11,611    

1,051         

Holiday Parks

-                 

-                 

2,026         

-                 

-                 

Category 1

-                 

Actual 

15,646       
90              

Commercial Waste

Category 1

1,546         

2013 

1,106         

2012 

-                 

Actual 
2012 

9,849         

109,560  

11,970       

25,477       

105,467  
-                 

85,112       

-                 

105,467     109,560     
-                 

75              

11,611       
-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

2,968         

-                 

2,107         

1,280         

11,611    

81              

2,893         

2,650         

320            

8,798         10,331       

-                 

29              

320            

39              

-                 
-                 

9,849      
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These fina ncial statem ents a re a Sp ecial Pu rpose 
Financial Sta tements (SP FS) pre pared for use by 
Council and the Division of Local Government. 
 
For the purposes of these statements, the Council is 
not a reporting not-for-profit entity. 
 
The figu res prese nted in the se special pu rpose 
financial stat ements, u nless otherwise stated, hav e 
been prepared in accordance with: 
 
 the recogniti on and me asurement criteria of  

relevant Australian Accounting Standards, 
 

 other auth oritative pro nouncements of the  
Australian A ccounting Standards Board (AASB) 
and 

 
 Australian Accounting Interpretations. 

 
The di sclosures in th ese sp ecial pu rpose fina ncial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with: 
 
 the Local Government Act and Regulation, and 
 
 the Lo cal Government Cod e of Accounting 

Practice and Financial Reporting. 
 
The statements a re also  pre pared o n an  a ccruals 
basis, ba sed on hi storic costs and  do not take into  
account cha nging mon ey values n or current value s 
of non-cu rrent assets (except whe re spe cifically 
stated). 
 
Certain taxes and  other co sts (app ropriately 
described) h ave bee n im puted for th e purp oses of 
the National Competition Policy. 
 
 
National Competition Policy 
 
Council h as adopted th e prin ciple o f ‘competitive  
neutrality’ to  its busi ness activities a s part of the 
national competition poli cy which i s b eing a pplied 
throughout Australia at all levels of government. 
 
The fram ework for it s ap plication is set out in the 
June 1996 Government Policy statement on th e 
“Application of National Competition Policy to Local 
Government”. 
 
The “Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses A 
Guide to Competitive Neutrality” issued by the  
Division of L ocal Government in July 1997 has also 
been adopted. 

The pri cing and co sting guideli nes outline the 
process fo r identifying and alloca ting co sts to 
activities an d provid e a  stand ard of discl osure 
requirements. The se di sclosures a re reflected in  
Council’s p ricing and/or finan cial repo rting systems 
and in clude taxation equiv alents; council sub sidies; 
return on investments (rate of return); and dividends 
paid. 
 
 
Declared Business Activities 
 
In accord ance with Pricing and Costing for Council 
Businesses - A Guide to Competitive Neutrality, 
Council ha s declared that the followin g are to be 
considered as business activities: 
 
Category 1 
 
(where gross operating turnover is over $2 million) 
 
a. Tweed Water 

Supply of water 
 
b. Tweed Sewerage 

Sewerage Services 
 
c. Tweed Coast Holiday Parks 

Holiday/Caravan parks 
 
d. Commercial Waste 

Non-domestic waste collection and disposal 
 
Category 2 
 
(where gross operating turnover is less than $2 million) 
 
Nil 
 
 
Monetary Amounts 
 
Amounts shown in th e fin ancial state ments are i n 
Australian currency and rounded to the  nearest one 
thousand dollars, with the exception of some figures 
disclosed i n Note 2 (Water Sup ply Best Pra ctice 
Management Disclo sures) and Note 3 (Sewera ge 
Best Practice Management Disclosures). 
 
As required by the NSW Office of Water (Department 
of Primary Industries) the amounts shown in Notes 2 
and Note 3 are disclosed in whole dollars. 
 
 



 

  SPFS 2013_ 

 
 
Tweed Shire Council 
 
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements 
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 
 
Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 

 
  page 11 
 

(i) Taxation Equivalent Charges 
 
Council is lia ble to pay v arious taxe s and fin ancial 
duties in un dertaking its b usiness activ ities. Whe re 
this is the  ca se, they are di sclosed in th ese 
statements as a cost of o perations just like all  other 
costs. 
 
However, where Council is exempt from paying taxes 
which a re gene rally paid by  private sector 
businesses (su ch a s income tax), equivalent tax  
payments have been applied to all Coun cil 
nominated b usiness a ctivities and a re reflected in  
these financial statements. 
 
For th e p urposes of disclo sing com parative 
information relevant to t he private se ctor equivalent, 
the following taxation equivalents have been  applied 
to all council nominated business activities (this does 
not include council’s non-business activities): 
 
Notional Rate Applied % 
 
Corporate Income Tax Rate – 30% 
 
Land Tax  – The firs t $406,000 o f combined land  
values attracts 0%. From $406,001 to $2,482,000 the 
rate is 1.6% + $10 0. Fo r the re maining co mbined 
land valu e that exce eds $2,482,0 00, a premium  
marginal rate of 2.0% applies. 
 
Payroll Tax – 5.45% on the value of taxable sala ries 
and wages in excess of $689,000. 
 
In accordan ce with the g uidelines fo r Best Pra ctice 
Management of Wate r Supply and  Sewerage, a 
payment for the amount calculated as the annual tax 
equivalent ch arges (excl uding income tax) must be 
paid f rom Water Su pply and Se werage Bu siness 
activities. 
 
The payment of taxation equivalent charges, referred 
in the Be st Practice M anagement of Water Sup ply 
and Sewerage Guides to as a “Dividend for Taxation 
equivalent”, may be applied for any purpose allowed 
under the Local Government Act, 1993. 
 
Achievement of sub stantial complia nce ag ainst th e 
guidelines fo r Best Practi ce Ma nagement of Wate r 
Supply and  Sewerage is not a p rerequisite fo r th e 
payment of the tax equiv alent charges; however the 
payment must not exceed $3 per assessment. 
 
 

Income Tax 
 
An incom e tax equivalent  has b een a pplied o n the  
profits of each reported Business Activity. 
 
Whilst incom e tax is not  a specifi c cost for the 
purpose of pricing a good or service, it needs to  be 
taken into account of in terms of ass essing the rate 
of return required on capital invested. 
 
Accordingly, the return on capital invested is set at a  
pre-tax level  gain/(lo ss) from ordin ary activities 
before capital amounts) a s wo uld be applied by a 
private sector competitor – that is, it should include a 
provision equivalent to the corporate income tax rate, 
currently 30%. 
 
Income Tax  is only applied where a po sitive 
gain/(loss) from ordin ary activities before capital  
amounts has been achieved. 
 
Since this taxation equivalent is notional - that is, it is 
payable to t he “Cou ncil” as the  owne r of bu siness 
operations, it represents an intern al p ayment and 
has no effect on th e o perations of  the coun cil. 
Accordingly, there  is n o ne ed fo r disclo sure of 
internal charges in Co uncil's G eneral Purpo se 
Financial Statements. 
 
The rate a pplied of 30% is the equival ent company 
tax rate prevalent a s at bal ance date. No 
adjustments have been made for variations that have 
occurred during the year. 
 
 
Local Government Rates and Charges 
 
A cal culation of the eq uivalent rate s and charges 
payable o n all Categ ory 1 busi nesses ha s b een 
applied to all  land a ssets owned or exclusively used  
by the Business Activity. 
 
 
Loan and Debt Guarantee Fees 
 
The de bt gu arantee fee i s de signed to ensure tha t 
council business a ctivities f ace “true” comm ercial 
borrowing costs in lin e with private se ctor 
competitors.  
 
In ord er to calculate a debt gua rantee fee, coun cil 
has dete rmined what the  differential borrowing rate 
would have  been between the commercial rate  and 
the council’s borrowing rate for its business activities. 
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(ii) Subsidies 
 
Government policy re quires that subsidies provided  
to cust omers and the fu nding of tho se sub sidies 
must be explicitly disclosed. 
 
Subsidies occur where council provides services on 
a les s t han co st re covery ba sis. T his o ption i s 
exercised on a rang e of se rvices in ord er for cou ncil 
to meet its community service obligations. 
 
Accordingly, Subsi dies disclosed (in rel ation t o 
National Competition Policy) rep resents the 
difference be tween reven ue g enerated from  ‘rate  of  
return’ pricing and revenue generated from prices set 
by the council in any given financial year. 
 
The overall effect of subsidies is contained within the 
Income Stat ement of each rep orted Busin ess 
Activity. 
 
 
(iii) Return on Investments (Rate of Return) 
 
The Policy statement re quires that cou ncils with  
Category 1  busi nesses “wo uld b e expecte d to 
generate a return on capital funds em ployed that i s 
comparable to rates of return for privat e businesses 
operating in a similar field”. 
 
Such fu nds are subsequently availabl e for m eeting 
commitments or financ ing future inves tment 
strategies. 
 
The Rate of Return on  Capital i s cal culated a s 
follows: 
 
 
Operating Result bef ore Capital Income + I nterest 
Expense 
 

Written Down Value of I,PPandE as at 30 June 
 
As a minimum, business activities should generate a 
return equal to the Commonwealth 10 year bond rate 
which is 3.77% at 30/6/13. 
 
The actual rate of return  achieved by each Business 
Activity is discl osed at t he foot of each re spective 
Income Statement. 
 
 
 
 

(iv) Dividends 
 
Council is n ot required to pay dividends to eithe r 
itself (as o wner of a range  of busine sses) or to any 
external entities. 
 
Local Government Wate r Supply an d Sewe rage 
Businesses are permitted to pay a n annual dividend 
from its water supply or sewerage business surplus. 
 
The divide nd, calculat ed and a pproved in 
accordance with the Best Practi ce Management 
Guidelines, must not exceed either: 
 
(i) 50% of this surplus in any one year, or 
 
(ii) the numbe r of water sup ply or sewe rage 

assessments at 30 Ju ne 2013 multiplied by $30 
(less the payment for tax equivalent ch arges, not  
exceeding $3 per assessment). 

 
In accordan ce with the g uidelines fo r Best Pra ctice 
Management of Wate r Supply and  Sewerage, a 
Dividend Pay ment form, Statement of  Com pliance, 
Unqualified I ndependent Financial Audit Report and 
Compliance Audit Rep ort are req uired to b e 
submitted to the NSW Office of Water prior to making 
the dividen d and only a fter it ha s a pproved the  
payment. 
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 2. Water Supply Business
              Best Practice Management disclosure requirements

Dollars Amounts shown below are in WHOLE DOLLARS (unless otherwise indicated)

1. Calculation and Payment of Tax-Equivalents
[All Local Government Local Water Utilities must pay this dividend for tax-equivalents]

Calculated Tax Equivalents

No of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment

Amounts payable for Tax Equivalents [lesser of (i) and (ii)]

Amounts actually paid for Tax Equivalents

2. Dividend from Surplus
50% of Surplus before Dividends
[Calculated in accordance with Best Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines]

No. of assessments multiplied by $30/assessment, less tax equivalent
charges/assessment

Cumulative surplus before Dividends for the 3 years to 30 June 2013, less the
cumulative dividends paid for the 2 years to 30 June 2012 & 30 June 2011

2013 Surplus 2012 Surplus 2011 Surplus
2012 Dividend 2011 Dividend

Maximum dividend from surplus [least of (i), (ii) and (iii) above]

Dividend actually paid from surplus [refer below for required pre-dividend payment Criteria]

3. Required outcomes for 6 Criteria
[To be eligible for the payment of a "Dividend from Surplus", ALL the Criteria below need a "YES"]

Completion of Strategic Business Plan (including Financial Plan)

Full Cost Recovery, without significant cross subsidies
[Refer Item 2(a) in Table 1 on page 22 of the Best Practice Guidelines]

- Complying charges [Item 2(b) in Table 1]

- DSP with Commercial Developer Charges [Item 2(e) in Table 1]

- If Dual Water Supplies, Complying Charges [Item 2(g) in Table 1]

Sound Water Conservation and Demand Management implemented

Sound Drought Management implemented

Complete Performance Reporting Form (by 15 September each year)

a. Integrated Water Cycle Management Evaluation

b. Complete and implement Integrated Water Cycle Management Strategy

(iv)

(iii)

(i)

(iv)

(iii)

(iii)

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(v)

(i)

-                   
(4,274,000)   (5,794,000)   

YES

YES

-                   
(884,000)      

(iv) YES

YES

YES

(ii)

YES

YES

1,011,000        

104,037           

n/a

2013 

-                       

-                       

936,333           

(10,952,000)     

104,037           

104,037           

YES

YES(v)

(vi)

YES
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 2. Water Supply Business
              Best Practice Management disclosure requirements (continued)

Dollars Amounts shown below are in WHOLE DOLLARS (unless otherwise indicated)

National Water Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators

Total Revenue (Water)
Total Income (w13) - Grants for the Acquisition of Assets (w11a) - Interest Income (w9)
- Aboriginal Communities W&S Program Income (w10a)

Revenue from Residential Usage Charges (Water)
Income from Residential Usage Charges (w6b) x 100 divided by the sum of
[Income from Residential Usage Charges (w6a) + Income from Residential
Access Charges (w6b)]

Written Down Replacement Cost of Fixed Assets (Water)
Written down current cost of system assets (w47)

Operating Cost (OMA) (Water)
Management Expenses (w1) + Operational & Maintenance Expenses (w2)

Capital Expenditure (Water)
Acquisition of fixed assets (w16)

Economic Real Rate of Return (Water)
[Total Income (w13) - Interest Income (w9) - Grants for acquisition of assets (w11a) -
Operating Costs (NWI F11) - Current Cost Depreciation (w3)] x 100 divided by
[Written Down Current Cost of System Assets (w47) + Plant & Equipment (w33b)]

Capital Works Grants (Water)
Grants for the Acquisition of Assets (w11a)

Notes: 1. References to w (e.g. w12) refer to item numbers within Special Schedules No. 3 & 4 of
Council's Annual Financial Statements.

2. The NWI Performance Indicators are based upon the National Performance Framework
Handbook for Urban Performance Reporting Indicators & Definitions.

$'000NWI F9

2013 

22,815             

NWI F4 %

475,415           

$'000

74.93%

NWI F1

NWI F26 -                       $'000

NWI F11

NWI F17 %

NWI F14 $'000

0.55%

5,230               

13,525             $'000
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 3. Sewerage Business
              Best Practice Management disclosure requirements

Dollars Amounts shown below are in WHOLE DOLLARS (unless otherwise indicated)

1. Calculation and Payment of Tax-Equivalents
[All Local Government Local Water Utilities must pay this dividend for tax-equivalents]

Calculated Tax Equivalents

No of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment

Amounts payable for Tax Equivalents [lesser of (i) and (ii)]

Amounts actually paid for Tax Equivalents

2. Dividend from Surplus

50% of Surplus before Dividends
[Calculated in accordance with Best Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines]

No. of assessments x ($30 less tax equivalent charges per assessment)

Cumulative surplus before dividends for the 3 years to 30 June 2013, less the
cumulative dividends paid for the 2 years to 30 June 2012 & 30 June 2011

2013 Surplus 2012 Surplus 2011 Surplus
2012 Dividend 2011 Dividend

Maximum dividend from surplus [least of (i), (ii) and (iii) above]

Dividend actually paid from surplus [refer below for required pre-dividend payment Criteria]

3. Required outcomes for 4 Criteria  
[To be eligible for the payment of a "Dividend from Surplus", ALL the Criteria below need a "YES"]

Completion of Strategic Business Plan (including Financial Plan)  

Pricing with full cost-recovery, without significant cross subsidies  
[Refer Item 2(a) in Table 1 on page 22 of the Best Practice Guidelines]

Complying charges Residential [Item 2(c) in Table 1]  
Non Residential [Item 2(c) in Table 1]  
Trade Waste [Item 2(d) in Table 1]  

DSP with Commercial Developer Charges [Item 2(e) in Table 1]  
Liquid Trade Waste Approvals & Policy [Item 2(f) in Table 1]  

Complete Performance Reporting Form (by 15 September each year)  

a. Integrated Water Cycle Management Evaluation  

b. Complete and implement Integrated Water Cycle Management Strategy  

(1,867,000)   
-                   

(v)

(iii)

(i)

(ii)

(a)
(b)

(iv)

-                   

(i)

(iv)

(iii)

(ii)

(iii)

(1,711,000)   

(i)

(ii) 892,296           

(1,182,000)   

(iv)

(c)

2013 

YES

n/a

YES

99,144             

99,144             

YES

YES

(4,760,000)       

YES

YES

1,053,000        

99,144             

YES

YES

YES

-                       

YES
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 3. Sewerage Business
              Best Practice Management disclosure requirements (continued)

Dollars Amounts shown below are in WHOLE DOLLARS (unless otherwise indicated)

National Water Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators

Total Revenue (Sewerage)
Total Income (s14) - Grants for Acquisition of Assets (s12a) - Interest Income (s10)
- Aboriginal Communities W&S Program Income (w10a)

Written Down Replacement Cost of Fixed Assets (Sewerage)
Written down current cost of system assets (s48)

Operating Cost (Sewerage)
Management Expenses (s1) + Operational & Maintenance Expenses (s2)

Capital Expenditure (Sewerage)
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (s17)

Economic Real Rate of Return (Sewerage)
[Total Income (s14) - Interest Income (s10) - Grants for acquisition of Assets (s12a)
- Operating cost (NWI F12) - Current cost depreciation (s3)] x 100 divided by
[Written down current cost (i.e.. WDCC) of System Assets (s48) + Plant & Equipment (s34b)]

Capital Works Grants (Sewerage)
Grants for the Acquisition of Assets (12a)

National Water Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators
Water & Sewer (combined)

Total Income (Water & Sewerage)
Total Income (w13 + s14) + Gain/Loss on disposal of assets (w14 + s15)
minus Grants for acquisition of assets (w11a + s12a) - Interest Income (w9 + s10)

Revenue from Community Service Obligations (Water & Sewerage)
Community Service Obligations (NWI F25) x 100 divided by Total Income (NWI F3)

Capital Expenditure (Water & Sewerage)
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (w16 + s17)

Economic Real Rate of Return (Water & Sewerage)
[Total Income (w13 + s14) - Interest Income (w9 + s10) - Grants for acquisition of assets
(w11a + s12a) - Operating Cost (NWI F11 + NWI F12) - Current cost depreciation (w3 + s3)] x 100
divided by [Written down replacement cost of fixed assets (NWI F9 + NWI F10)
+ Plant & equipment (w33b + s34b)]

Dividend (Water & Sewerage)
Dividend paid from surplus (2(v) of Note 2 + 2(v) of Note 3)

Dividend Payout Ratio (Water & Sewerage)
Dividend (NWI F20) x 100 divided by Net Profit after tax (NWI F24)

NWI F16 $'000

NWI F27

NWI F18

NWI F15 $'000

%

$'000

NWI F2

NWI F10

NWI F12

$'000

$'000

0.56%

13,284             

%

-                       $'000

0.00%

NWI F19

NWI F21

NWI F20

%

NWI F3 $'000 48,214             

NWI F8 % 1.52%

2013 

$'000

1,080               

588,095           

26,923             

0.57%

13,826             

8,054               
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Note 3. Sewerage Business
              Best Practice Management disclosure requirements (continued)

Dollars Amounts shown below are in WHOLE DOLLARS (unless otherwise indicated)

National Water Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators
Water & Sewer (combined)

Net Debt to Equity (Water & Sewerage)
Overdraft (w36 + s37) + Borrowings (w38 + s39) - Cash & Investments (w30 + s31)
x 100 divided by [Total Assets (w35 + s36) - Total Liabilities (w40 + s41)]

Interest Cover (Water & Sewerage)
Earnings before Interest & Tax (EBIT) divided by Net Interest

Earnings before Interest & Tax (EBIT):
Operating Result (w15a + s16a) + Interest expense (w4a + s4a) - Interest Income (w9 + s10)
- Gain/Loss on disposal of assets (w14 + s15) + Miscellaneous Expenses (w4b + w4c + s4b + s4c)

Net Interest:
Interest Expense (w4a + s4a) - Interest Income (w9 + s10)

Net Profit After Tax (Water & Sewerage)
Surplus before dividends (w15a + s16a) - Tax equivalents paid (Note 2-1(iv) + Note 3-1(iv))

Community Service Obligations (Water & Sewerage)
Grants for Pensioner Rebates (w11b + s12b)

Notes: 1. References to w (e.g. s12) refer to item numbers within Special Schedules No. 5 & 6 of
Council's Annual Financial Statements.

2. The NWI Performance Indicators are based upon the National Performance Framework Handbook
for Urban Performance Reporting Indicators & Definitions.

3.34%

2013 

733                  

2                      

(1,686)              

3,880               

$'000

5,980               

NWI F25 $'000

NWI F24

NWI F23

NWI F22 %
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Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedules
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Contents

Special Schedules1

Net Cost of Services

Statement of Long Term Debt (all purposes)

Statement of Internal Loans (Sect. 410(3) LGA 1993)

Water Supply - Income Statement
Water Supply - Statement of Financial Position

Sewerage Service - Income Statement
Sewerage Service - Statement of Financial Position

- Notes to Special Schedules No. 3 & 5

Condition of Public Works

Financial Projections

1 Special Purpose Schedules are not audited.

Background

These Special Schedules have been designed to meet the requirements of special purpose users such as;

the NSW Grants Commission
the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS),
the NSW Office of Water,
the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Water, and
the Division of Local Government (DLG).

The financial data is collected for various uses including;

the allocation of Financial Assistance Grants,
the incorporation of Local Government financial figures in national statistics,
the monitoring of loan approvals,
the allocation of borrowing rights, and
the monitoring of the financial activities of specific services.

- Special Schedule No. 5 11

Page
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Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 1 - Net Cost of Services
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$'000

Governance

Administration

Public Order and Safety

Beach Control
Enforcement of Local Govt. Regulations
Animal Control
Other
Total Public Order & Safety

Health

Environment
Noxious Plants and Insect/Vermin Control
Other Environmental Protection
Solid Waste Management
Street Cleaning
Drainage
Stormwater Management
Total Environment

Community Services and Education
Administration & Education
Social Protection (Welfare)
Aged Persons and Disabled
Children's Services
Total Community Services & Education

Housing and Community Amenities
Public Cemeteries
Public Conveniences
Street Lighting
Town Planning
Other Community Amenities
Total Housing and Community Amenities

Water Supplies

Sewerage Services

(389)                      

4,088                    
-                            

-                            

-                            
(3,374)                   

-                            

-                            

5,825                    

(1,296)                   
969                       

-                            

(581)                      

11                         

479                       

(7,068)                   

(897)                      

778                       
1,307                    

13                         

-                            

-                            

572                       

-                            

572                       
-                            

-                            
4,402                    

14,409                  

24,055                  
-                            

-                            

608                       

2,704                    

790                       

27                         
-                            

2,189                    

13                         
-                            

10,800                  

1,000                    

Net Cost.
of Services.

(530)                      
(456)                      
(661)                      

(3,778)                   

(3,453)                   
-                            

4,188                    -                            -                            (4,188)                   

(86)                        -                            
-                            

(11,876)                 

-                            

288                       

391                       

Function or Activity

29                         

Fire Service Levy, Fire Protection, 
Emergency Services

485                       

11                         

968                       
4,032                    

14,817                  

1,066                    

1,595                    

-                            (79)                        
(1,812)                   

-                            (1,230)                   

9                           

1,571                    

374                       
79                         

3,041                    

1,747                    

555                       

3,719                    

21,165                  

3,645                    

-                            

(1,966)                   

(432)                      
(790)                      

(3,064)                   
(816)                      

11                         

-                            

-                            

2,044                    4,010                    

-                            

968                       

1,807                    
22                         

22,875                  

152                       

27,170                  24,990                  

Expenses from. 
Continuing. 
Operations. Non Capital.

1,037                    

-                            

-                            
52                         

Capital.

Income from
continuing operations

507                       

341                       

1,479                    
2                           

18,497                  

1,220                    

20,030                  

4,853                    

396                       9                           

1,346                    
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Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 1 - Net Cost of Services (continued)
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$'000

Recreation and Culture
Public Libraries
Museums
Art Galleries
Community Centres and Halls
Performing Arts Venues
Other Performing Arts
Other Cultural Services
Sporting Grounds and Venues
Swimming Pools
Parks & Gardens (Lakes)
Other Sport and Recreation
Total Recreation and Culture

Fuel & Energy

Agriculture

Mining, Manufacturing and Construction
Building Control
Other Mining, Manufacturing & Construction
Total Mining, Manufacturing and Const.

Transport and Communication
Urban Roads (UR) - Local
Urban Roads - Regional
Sealed Rural Roads (SRR) - Local
Sealed Rural Roads (SRR) - Regional
Unsealed Rural Roads (URR) - Local
Unsealed Rural Roads (URR) - Regional
Bridges on UR - Local
Bridges on SRR - Local
Bridges on URR - Local
Bridges on Regional Roads
Parking Areas
Footpaths
Aerodromes
Other Transport & Communication
Total Transport and Communication

Economic Affairs
Camping Areas & Caravan Parks
Other Economic Affairs
Total Economic Affairs

Totals – Functions
General Purpose Revenues(2)

Share of interests - joint ventures &
associates using the equity method

NET OPERATING RESULT (1)

(1) As reported in the Income Statement (2) Includes: Rates & Annual Charges (incl. Ex Gratia, excl. Water & Sewer), Non Capital General Purpose Grants,
      Interest on Investments (excl. Ext. Restricted Assets) & Interest on overdue Rates & Annual Charges

(657)                      

(710)                      

(1,123)                   

50                         

(128)                      

-                            

Net Cost.
of Services.

(9)                          

(300)                      

(164)                      

(823)                      

2,135                    

(9,757)                   

-                            

(1,370)                   
(6,612)                   

2,416                    
469                       

-                            

(2,170)                   
(468)                      

754                       

63,650               

25,214               

477                       
(2,719)                   

-                            
(49)                        

12,132               

-                         

(51,518)              
5                           

1,539                    

(11,755)                 
(383)                      

(1,534)                   

-                            

(413)                      

(12)                        

-                            

32                         
(204)                      

(2,886)                   

-                            
(131)                      

-                            

(14,425)                 

545                       49                         

-                            

Capital.

-                            

267                       

-                            

-                            

460                       
640                       -                            

1,758                    
3,359                    

-                            
-                            

8,259                    1,248                    

1,741                    

1,292                    

569                       

4,145                    

-                            

2,415                    

1,592                    

705                       -                            
14,025                  123                       

1,343                    

-                            

Non Capital.

-                            

Expenses from. 
Continuing. 
Operations.

7,206                    

1,165                    
4,070                    

132                       

359                       

1                           
-                            

-                            

-                            

9                           

15                         

-                            

-                            

-                            

823                       

-                            
-                            

-                            

1,753                    18,951                  
1,396                    11                         

2,773                    

-                            -                            

Function or Activity

1,292                    

541                       

-                            

9,146                    

-                            

-                            -                            

-                            

-                            

646                       

-                            
-                            

25,214               

-                            

108                       

87                         

20                         
24                         

-                            

-                            
413                       

553                       

883                       
36                         

860                       636                       

657                       

49                         

-                            -                            

15,687                  

169,491             

-                         

31,136                  3,694                    

7,948                    
1,651                    

156,409             

7,953                    

7,836                    6,297                    

63,650               
169,491             

117                       

-                         

92,759               

1,184                    

246                       

353                       

Income from
continuing operations

280                       
-                            1                           



Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 2(a) - Statement of Long Term Debt (all purpose)
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$'000

Notes: Excludes (i) Internal Loans & (ii) Principal Inflows/Outflows relating to Loan Re-Financing.
           This Schedule is prepared using the face value of debt obligations, rather than fair value (which are reported in the GPFS).

Loans (by Source)
Commonwealth Government

Current

-              -              -              -              -              -              -              

Principal outstanding New 
Loans 
raised 
during 

the year

at beginning of the year

Classification of Debt
Current Non   

Current Total

-              

-              -              -              

-              -              -              

Debt redemption 
during the year

From 
Revenue

Sinking 
Funds

-              

9,272       
-              -              

13,339     
-              

13,339     
-              

182,773   
-              

1,682       

-              

-              

-              

S
pecial S

chedules 2013

Transfers 
to Sinking 

Funds

Principal outstanding
Interest 

applicable 
for Year TotalNon   

Current

at the end of the year

-              

-              

10,095     
-              -              

-              

-              -              -              -              

192,045   

11,777     
-              

7,590       172,678   180,268   
-              

-              -              
-              Other State Government 1,682       11,778     13,460     

-              -              
-              

-              -              -              -              

Treasury Corporation
1,683       

-              

-              -              

Public Subscription -              -              

-              -              -              
-              
-              

-              

Financial Institutions 7,342       173,935   181,277   -              6,060       

-              
-              

6,060       

-              

-              8,752       
-              -              -              

7,069       

9,024       185,713   Total Loans
-              

194,737   
Other

-              -              -              
Other Long Term Debt
Ratepayers Advances -              -              -              

-              
Government Advances -              
Finance Leases -              

-              
-              -              -              
-              

-              
-              

-              
-              -              -              

-              
-              -              

9,272       

-              -              -              

192,045   

-              -              -              

182,773   

-              

13,339     -              

-              

-              

-              
Deferred Payments

-              
-              

9,024       

-              

185,713   

-              -              -              -              

page 4

Total Long Term Debt -              -              

Total Debt

-              

194,737   

-              

6,060       8,752       



Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 2(b) - Statement of Internal Loans [Section 410(3) LGA 1993]
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$'000

Note: The summary of Internal Loans (above) represents the total of Council's Internal Loans categorised according to the borrower.

Totals

30/06/13 6.36%Records facility DWM 28/03/12

430,000           

430,000           430,000           

430,000           

-                    

Gas

Outstanding 
at end of year 

Date of
Borrower Lender Dates of

(Princ. & Int.) 

Total repaid 
during year 

Maturity Interest raised 
Rate of Originally 

(by purpose) (by purpose) Approval (years) 
Date RaisedMinister's

Totals 430,000                                                -                                                        430,000                                                

S
pecial S

chedules 2013

430,000                                                -                                                        430,000                                                

Amount Principal 
Term 

-                

page 5

Summary of Internal Loans

Details of Individual Internal Loans

Principal Outstanding 
(Principal & Interest) at end of year 

Sewer

Total repaid during the year Amount originally raised 

Other

Borrower (by purpose)

General
Water

Domestic Waste Management



Special Schedules 2013
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Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 3 - Water Supply Income Statement
 Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$'000

A Expenses and Income
Expenses

1. Management expenses
a. Administration
b. Engineering and Supervision

2. Operation and Maintenance expenses
- Dams & Weirs
a. Operation expenses
b. Maintenance expenses

- Mains
c. Operation expenses
d. Maintenance expenses

- Reservoirs
e. Operation expenses
f.  Maintenance expenses

- Pumping Stations
g. Operation expenses (excluding energy costs)
h. Energy costs
i.  Maintenance expenses

- Treatment
j.  Operation expenses (excluding chemical costs)
k. Chemical costs
l.  Maintenance expenses

- Other
m. Operation expenses
n.  Maintenance expenses
o.  Purchase of water

3. Depreciation expenses
a. System assets
b. Plant and equipment

4. Miscellaneous expenses
a. Interest expenses
b. Revaluation Decrements
c. Other expenses
d. Impairment - System assets
e. Impairment - Plant and equipment
f. Aboriginal Communities Water & Sewerage Program
g. Tax Equivalents Dividends (actually paid)

5. Total expenses

-                       -                       
1,215               

-                       
-                       

-                       

6                      
6,645               6,693               

736                  
-                       

4,773               
-                       

4,854               

20                    

104                  

913                  756                  

27                    

707                  685                  

34                    
1,209               1,340               

65                    

1,315               

140                  

103                  129                  
1,040               

74                    

211                  

1,267               

290                  

1,284               

880                  934                  

55                    

170                  192                  

203                  90                    

-                       -                       

3,742               
1,774               1,635               

231                  231                  

2013 

-                       

4,110               

Actuals 
2012 

-                       

26,282             24,600             

Actuals 



Special Schedules 2013
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Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 3 - Water Supply Income Statement (continued)
 Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$'000

Income

6. Residential charges
a. Access (including rates)
b. Usage charges

7. Non-residential charges
a. Access (including rates)
b. Usage charges

8. Extra charges

9. Interest income

10. Other income
10a. Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program

11. Grants
a. Grants for acquisition of assets
b. Grants for pensioner rebates
c. Other grants

12. Contributions
a. Developer charges
b. Developer provided assets
c. Other contributions

13. Total income

14. Gain (or loss) on disposal of assets

15. Operating Result

15a. Operating Result (less grants for acquisition of assets)

1,432               1,557               

343                  

(3,192)              

1,424               
1,671               

701                  

-                       
373                  375                  

404                  

-                       

-                       

3,443               

2,606               

10,426             

2013 
Actuals 

-                       

-                       -                       

Actuals 

(2,620)              

435                  

751                  

(2,620)              

(585)                 

1,442               

24,247             

4,250               

(3,192)              

92                    

11,033             
3,692               

78                    

341                  

2012 

22,658             

(1,250)              

36                    



Special Schedules 2013
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Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 3 - Water Supply Income Statement (continued)
 Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$'000

B Capital transactions
Non-operating expenditures

16. Acquisition of Fixed Assets
a. New Assets for Improved Standards
b. New Assets for Growth
c. Renewals
d. Plant and equipment
e. Buildings

17. Repayment of debt
a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases

18. Transfer to sinking fund

19. Totals

Non-operating funds employed

20. Proceeds from disposal of assets

21. Borrowing utilised
a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases

22. Transfer from sinking fund

23. Totals

C Rates and charges

24. Number of assessments
a. Residential (occupied)
b. Residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot)
c. Non-residential (occupied)
d. Non-residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot)

25. Number of ETs for which developer charges were received

26. Total amount of pensioner rebates (actual dollars)

7                      36                    

-                       -                       

2012 

4,028               

2013 

-                       

-                       -                       

1,379               174                  
31,019             

1,892               

Actuals 

-                       

32,675             

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       -                       

-                       

-                       

940                  

-                       

7,145               

1,316               

6,258               

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       -                       

-                       

-                       

Actuals 

1,021               

2,141               
2,022               

1,861               
207                  

1,675               
155                  

573          ET-              ET

549,815$         682,414$         
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Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 3 - Water Supply Cross Subsidies
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$'000

D Best practice annual charges and developer charges*

27. Annual charges
a. Does Council have best-practice water supply annual charges
    and usage charges*?

If Yes, go to 28a.
If No, please report if council has removed land value from access
charges (ie rates)?

NB. Such charges for both residential customers and non-residential
customers comply with section 3.2 of Water Supply, Sewerage and
Trade Waste Pricing Guidelines, NSW Office of Water, December,
2002. Such charges do not involve significant cross subsidies.

b. Cross-subsidy from residential customers using less than
     allowance (page 25 of Guidelines)

c. Cross-subsidy to non-residential customers (page 24 of Guidelines)

d. Cross-subsidy to large connections in unmetered supplies
     (page 26 of Guidelines)

28. Developer charges
a. Has council completed a water supply Development Servicing**
    Plan?

b. Total cross-subsidy in water supply developer charges for
    2012/13 (page 47 of Guidelines)

** In accordance with page 9 of Developer Charges Guidelines for
Water Supply, Sewerage and Stormwater, NSW Office of Water,
December, 2002.

29. Disclosure of cross-subsidies
Total of cross-subsidies (27b +27c + 27d + 28b)

*  Councils which have not yet implemented best practice water supply
   pricing should disclose cross-subsidies in items 27b, 27c and 27d above.

However, disclosure of cross-subsidies is not required where a Council
has implemented best practice pricing and is phasing in such pricing over
a period of 3 years.

-                   

Yes

AmountNo

Yes

Yes
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Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 4 - Water Supply Statement of Financial Position
 Includes INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 as at 30 June 2013

$'000

ASSETS
30. Cash and investments

a. Developer charges
b. Special purpose grants
c. Accrued leave
d. Unexpended loans
e. Sinking fund
f. Other

31. Receivables
a. Specific purpose grants
b. Rates and Availability Charges
c. User Charges
d. Other

32. Inventories

33. Property, plant and equipment
a. System assets
b. Plant and equipment

34. Other assets

35. Total assets

LIABILITIES
36. Bank overdraft
37. Creditors
38. Borrowings

a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases

39. Provisions
a. Tax equivalents
b. Dividend
c. Other

40. Total liabilities

41. NET ASSETS COMMITTED

EQUITY
42. Accumulated surplus
43 Asset revaluation reserve

44. TOTAL EQUITY

Note to system assets:
45. Current replacement cost of system assets
46. Accumulated current cost depreciation of system assets
47. Written down current cost of system assets

-                       

410,217           28,575             

2,272               65,989             

-                       

-                       
-                       

-                       

-                       

180,592           

475,415             

620,775             
(145,360)            

258,200           

438,792           

438,792           

68,261             

-                       

-                       
-                       

-                       

285                  

-                       
-                       

404                  

-                       

-                       -                       
-                       
-                       

-                       
65,989             67,057             1,068               

1,204               

-                       

476,206           

-                       

-                       
-                       

-                       

30,847             

475,415           

-                       

-                       

-                       1,204               

285                  

471                  

-                       

22,701             -                       
-                       -                       

6,986               

Non Current 

-                       

-                       -                       
-                       -                       

-                       

Actuals 
Current 

-                       -                       

Actuals 

-                       -                       

404                  

-                       -                       

-                       

Actuals 
Total 

-                       

750                  750                  

475,415           

22,701             

6,986               
471                  

507,053           

41                    41                    

-                       
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Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 5 - Sewerage Service Income Statement
 Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$'000

A Expenses and Income
Expenses

1. Management expenses
a. Administration
b. Engineering and Supervision

2. Operation and Maintenance expenses
- Mains
a. Operation expenses
b. Maintenance expenses

- Pumping Stations
c. Operation expenses (excluding energy costs)
d. Energy costs
e. Maintenance expenses

- Treatment
f. Operation expenses (excl. chemical, energy, effluent & biosolids management costs)

g. Chemical costs
h. Energy costs
i.  Effluent Management
j.  Biosolids Management
k. Maintenance expenses

- Other
l.    Operation expenses
m. Maintenance expenses

3. Depreciation expenses
a. System assets
b. Plant and equipment

4. Miscellaneous expenses
a. Interest expenses
b. Revaluation Decrements
c. Other expenses
d. Impairment - System assets
e. Impairment - Plant and equipment
f. Aboriginal Communities Water & Sewerage Program
d. Tax Equivalents Dividends (actually paid)

5. Total expenses

Actuals 
2013 

Actuals 
2012 

56                    

9,631               

3,257               3,570               
1,414               1,324               

628                  

1,280               
1                      1                      

577                  

1,016               

27,646             25,611             

630                  
-                       -                       

99                    -                       

351                  

641                  

3,338               3,496               

-                       -                       

-                       

103                  

-                       
-                       -                       

203                  155                  

663                  
736                  887                  

55                    

697                  

438                  
1,339               

1,210               

8,128               
111                  

57                    

841                  
1,369               

1,681               

577                  

1,004               

1,604               

89                    
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Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 5 - Sewerage Income Statement (continued)
 Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$'000

Income

6. Residential charges (including rates)

7. Non-residential charges
a. Access (including rates)
b. Usage charges

8. Trade Waste Charges
a. Annual Fees
b. Usage charges
c. Excess mass charges
d. Re-inspection fees

9. Extra charges

10. Interest income

11. Other income
11a. Aboriginal Communities Water & Sewerage Program

12. Grants
a. Grants for acquisition of assets
b. Grants for pensioner rebates
c. Other grants

13. Contributions
a. Developer charges
b. Developer provided assets
c. Other contributions

14. Total income

15. Gain (or loss) on disposal of assets

16. Operating Result

16a. Operating Result (less grants for acquisition of assets)

2,799               3,458               

1,932               1,506               

173                  187                  

-                       -                       
-                       -                       

1,729               

(2,347)              

3,565               

2,217               4,999               

1,137               

-                       272                  

360                  363                  
1,080               2,061               

30,802             32,957             

(939)                 

2,938               

806                  754                  

611                  962                  
-                       -                       

-                       -                       

60                    

-                       
1,731               988                  

67                    

-                       

18,781             

Actuals 

19,514             

Actuals 
2012 2013 
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Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 5 - Sewerage Income Statement (continued)
 Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$'000

B Capital transactions
Non-operating expenditures

17. Acquisition of Fixed Assets
a. New Assets for Improved Standards
b. New Assets for Growth
c. Renewals
d. Plant and equipment
e. Buildings

18. Repayment of debt
a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases

19. Transfer to sinking fund

20. Totals

Non-operating funds employed

21. Proceeds from disposal of assets

22. Borrowing utilised
a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases

23. Transfer from sinking fund

24. Totals

C Rates and charges

25. Number of assessments
a. Residential (occupied)
b. Residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot)
c. Non-residential (occupied)
d. Non-residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot)

26. Number of ETs for which developer charges were received

27. Total amount of pensioner rebates (actual dollars)

29,780             
3,107               658                  

892                  

4,055               

14                    

2,909               
-                       

33,361             11,269             

160                  

526          ET

660,610$         

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       
3,001               

-                       -                       

Actuals Actuals 
2013 2012 

1,402               

-                       
18,660             

1,195               
1,584               

-                       

-                       

29,722             

20,062             

5,373               
-                       

-                       

658,402$         

5,373               

1,615               

-                       

150                  

-                       

125                  

-              ET

31,158             

214                  -                       
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Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 5 - Sewerage Cross Subsidies
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

$'000

D Best practice annual charges and developer charges*

28. Annual charges
a. Does Council have best-practice sewerage annual charges,
    usage charges and trade waste fees & charges*?

If Yes, go to 29a.
If No, please report if council has removed land value from access
charges (ie rates)?

NB. Such charges for both residential customers and non-residential
customers comply with section 4.2 & 4.3 of the Water Supply,
Sewerage and Trade Waste Pricing Guidelines, NSW Office of
Water, December, 2002. Such charges do not involve significant
cross subsidies.

b. Cross-subsidy to non-residential customers (page 45 of Guidelines)

c. Cross-subsidy to trade waste discharges (page 46 of Guidelines)

29. Developer charges
a. Has council completed a sewerage Development Servicing**
    Plan?

b. Total cross-subsidy in sewerage developer charges for
    2012/13 (page 47 of Guidelines)

** In accordance with page 9 of Developer Charges Guidelines for
Water Supply, Sewerage and Stormwater, NSW Office of Water,
December, 2002.

30. Disclosure of cross-subsidies
Total of cross-subsidies (28b + 28c + 29b)

*  Councils which have not yet implemented best practice sewer pricing &
   liquid waste prising should disclose cross-subsidies in items 28b and 28c
   above.

However, disclosure of cross-subsidies is not required where a Council
has implemented best practice sewerage and liquid waste pricing and
is phasing in such pricing over a period of 3 years.

-                       

Amount

Yes

Yes No

Yes
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Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 6 - Sewerage Service Statement of Financial Position
 Includes INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 as at 30 June 2013

$'000

ASSETS
31. Cash and investments

a. Developer charges
b. Special purpose grants
c. Accrued leave
d. Unexpended loans
e. Sinking fund
f. Other

32. Receivables
a. Specific purpose grants
b. Rates and Availability Charges
c. User Charges
d. Other

33. Inventories

34. Property, plant and equipment
a. System assets
b. Plant and equipment

35. Other assets

36. Total Assets

LIABILITIES
37. Bank overdraft
38. Creditors
39. Borrowings

a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases

40. Provisions
a. Tax equivalents
b. Dividend
c. Other

41. Total Liabilities

42. NET ASSETS COMMITTED

EQUITY
42. Accumulated surplus
44. Asset revaluation reserve

45. TOTAL EQUITY

Note to system assets:
46. Current replacement cost of system assets
47. Accumulated current cost depreciation of system assets
48. Written down current cost of system assets

-                       
-                       344                  

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       9,262               
-                       

39,132             

1,412               

Actuals Actuals 

-                       
-                       -                       

-                       
-                       

Non Current Current 

31,132             8,000               
-                       

9,262               

434                  -                       

Total 

-                       

-                       

Actuals 

-                       

498                  -                       
1,611               -                       

434                  
-                       

-                       

1,412               

35,654             

588,095           

44,366             

17                    

-                       
-                       

220,703           

588,095             

770,237             
(182,142)            

380,954           

601,657           

560,871           

344                  

498                  

478                  

103                  

640,891           

588,095           

596,525           

1,611               

-                       
-                       

38,756             

-                       

-                       

-                       

40,786             

86                    

478                  

-                       

-                       
-                       

-                       -                       

-                       

3,580               35,654             

-                       

-                       
-                       

601,657           

39,234             

-                       
-                       
-                       

3,102               

-                       
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Tweed Shire Council

Notes to Special Schedule No.'s 3 & 5
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Administration (1) Engineering and supervision (1)

(item 1a of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprises the following: (item 1b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprises the following:

•  Administration staff: • Engineering staff:
− Salaries and allowance − Salaries and allowance
− Travelling expenses − Travelling expenses
− Accrual of leave entitlements − Accrual of leave entitlements
− Employment overheads. − Employment overheads.

• Meter reading. • Other technical and supervision staff:
− Salaries and allowance

• Bad and doubtful debts. − Travelling expenses
− Accrual of leave entitlements

• Other administrative/corporate support services. − Employment overheads.

Operational expenses   (item 2 of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprise the day to day operational expenses
excluding maintenance expenses.

Maintenance expenses   (item 2 of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprise the day to day repair and maintenance
expenses. (Refer to Section 5 of the Local Government Asset Accounting Manual regarding capitalisation
principles and the distinction between capital and maintenance expenditure).

Other expenses   (item 4c of Special Schedules 3 and 5) includes all expenses not recorded elsewhere.

Revaluation decrements   (item 4b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) is to be used when I,PP&E decreases in FV.

Impairment Losses   (item 4d & 4e of Special Schedules 3 and 5) are to be used when the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount (refer to page D-31).

Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program   (item 4f of Special Schedules 3 and 5) is to be
used when operation and maintenance work has been undertaken on behalf of the Aboriginal Communities
Water and Sewerage Program. Similarly, income for item 11a of Special Schedule 3 and item 12a of Special
Schedule 5 are for services provided to the Aboriginal Communities Water and Sewerage Program and is not
part of Council’s water supply and sewerage revenue.

Residential charges   

(2) (items 6a, 6b and item 6 of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) include all income
from residential charges. Item 6 of Schedule 3 should be separated into 6a Access Charges (including rates if
applicable) and 6b Usage Charges.

Non-residential charges   

(2) (items 7a, 7b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) include all income from non-residential
charges separated into 7a Access Charges (including rates if applicable) and 7b Usage Charges.

Trade waste charges   (item 8 of Special Schedule 5) include all income from trade waste charges separated
into 8a Annual Fees, 8b Usage Charges and 8c Excess Mass Charges and 8d Re-inspection Fees.

Other income   (items 10 and 11 of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) include all income not recorded
elsewhere.

Other contributions   (items 12c and 13c of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) incl. capital contributions
for water supply or sewerage services received by Council under Section 565 of the Local Government Act.

Notes:
(1) Administration and engineering costs for the development of capital works projects should be reported as part of the
    capital cost of the project and not as part of the recurrent expenditure (ie. in item 16 for water supply and item 17 for
    sewerage, and not in items 1a and 1b).

(2) To enable accurate reporting of residential revenue from usage charges, it is essential for councils to accurately
    separate their residential (item 6) charges and non-residential (item 7) charges.



Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 7 - Condition of Public Works
 as at 30 June 2013

$'000
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Other Structures Assets not included in Buildings
23,906       11,791     

1,870      35,697       
300          226         120         

-            15,084    

16,915       284         
2.50%

1.00%

1,145      

5.00%

2.00%

1,839      
458         
898         

35,697       

167         

1.25%

1,870      -            

0.4-1%

ASSET CLASS

Buildings

Sealed RoadsPublic Roads

sub total

sub total

Art Gallery

5,438      

Sealed Roads Sub-Structure

Museum
Council Houses

0.80%

0.60%

Expense 

Asset Category

Amenities/Toilets

Council Offices

10           
0.66%

Council Halls

Library
Childcare Centre(s)

per Note 1

(%)
Valuation 

Rate
Dep'n.

0.5-1%

Council Works Depot

0.5-1%

1.50%

0.5-1.5%

26,643       
4,603         

Other 60,616       
124,107     

satisfactory
Cost 

Accum.
Depreciation
Amortisation

& 
Impairment

Dep'n 

712         

204         

-            

22,962       3,681       

4             
2             7,643         

300          

64           
5             

per Note 4

4,645         

($) 

37           

bring up to a

Condition#. condition / Maintenance
Asset  

cost to

514          4,089         

984            
331          

400          

131          

Annual   Annual   Amount 
(WDV) 

639          

Current(3)

Maintenance

<<<<<<<<<<<< per Note 9 >>>>>>>>>>>>

Required(2)

Estimated

Carrying 

sub total

11,433    
Unsealed Roads

0.67%

Footpaths/Cycleways
Kerb and Gutter
Carparks

Bridges

Street Furniture

519,314     

5           5.00%
2.50% 6,852         1,912       

5,753       
8,764         

125,816     

8,500       

3             146,845     

3             
2             

125,816     

41,835       
2,000       

47,588       

162,409     
27,782       3,470       

15,564     
24,312       

11,000     

143,638   
5,500       

375,676     
12,411       3             

3             

11,791     2             23,906       

2,369       

300          

55,860       
112,340     11,767     

4,756       

4,504       

9,033         0.40%

6,978         
37           
29           

5             
42           

1,543         

6,555         423          

8,631         
1,084         100          

2             

204          
200            

988          

8,702         

331            
4,006         

1,339         

3             
110          

1,109       

450          

2             
26           365         

104         95           
2             

standard (1)

51           

1             121         
25           

19           180         

223         

18           

65           

918         

22           

454         
217         

32           

120         

3,942      

237         

3             

2             

22,000     

51           

1,234      

625         

226         

5,987      
1,996      

4             

1,725      

-

876         
109         

814         

676         252         

10         
10,888    

138         
49,000     

2           
2             

1,340       
735,087     

1,345       
909,933     174,846   

5             



Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 7 - Condition of Public Works (continued)
 as at 30 June 2013

$'000

2             1,017      

S
pecial S

chedules 2013

NIL

829          2             

16,847       2             89           247         NIL
229,409     

766         
718,855     -            9,631      

15,313     197,639     
3,364      800          3,735      534,254     184,601   

0.67% 1,954      

3,692       
134,380   

20,539       
363,789     5,011      

411         
146,572   -            

1.52%

1.61%

1.43% 2,512      3             

81           
217         

2,626      

NIL
257         NIL60,294       

64           

cost toDep'n 

1,001      87,659       93,128       
2             2,202       

Rate

0.87%

per Note 1 per Note 4

37,676       
275         166         

(WDV) Cost 
Amount 

<<<<<<<<<<<< per Note 9 >>>>>>>>>>>>
NIL1             

Maintenance
Asset  

5,469       

($) (%)

ASSET CLASS Asset Category

Reservoirs
Water

Sewerage

Treatment Plants

sub total

Pump Stations

sub total
Pump Station
Pipeline

Dep'n.
Expense 

Maintenance
standard (1)

Estimated

Current(3)

satisfactory Annual   Annual   
Condition#.

Required(2)bring up to a

condition / 

Accum.
Depreciation
Amortisation

& 
Impairment

Carrying 

Valuation 

155         
0.22%

0.50%

3,377      

1,267      10,357     NIL67,289       

431,885     

800          

57           61,123       
39,878       

650          

1,197      
6,480      

578,457     6,635      

182,326     
3             284,639     

3,157      650          

1,365      2             
1,451      

77,646       
443,570     158,931   
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Treatment Works
Pipeline

Dams

1.45% 1,233      



Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 7 - Condition of Public Works (continued)
 as at 30 June 2013

$'000

Notes:
(1). Satisfactory refers to estimated cost to bring the asset to a satisfactory condition as deemed by Council. It does not include any planned enhancements to the existing asset.
(2). Required Annual Maintenance is what should be spent to maintain assets in a satisfactory standard.
(3). Current Annual Maintenance is what has been spent in the current year to maintain assets.

# Asset Condition "Key" - as per the DLG Integrated Planning & Reporting Manual

Excellent   - No work required (normal maintenance)
Good   - Only minor maintenance work required
Average   - Maintenance work required
Poor   - Renewal required
Very Poor   - Urgent renewal/upgrading required

Maintenance

13,693    

444         696         

standard (1)

Current(3)

Annual   

S
pecial S

chedules 2013

444         

Condition#. Maintenance

56,619     587,681   1,970,230  2,557,911  TOTAL - ALL ASSETS

-            

4

2

36,736    -            

1

132,758     sub total 2,371      58,104     190,862     

3

All Infrastructure 1.25%

condition / 

per Note 4
190,862     58,104     

<<<<<<<<<<<< per Note 9 >>>>>>>>>>>>
Drainage Works

Required(2)bring up to a

per Note 1
3             2,371      

Cost Valuation (WDV) 

132,758     

(%) Annual   Asset  satisfactory

Asset Category

3,500       

($) 
Rate

Amount 
Expense Carrying 

Accum.
Depreciation
Amortisation

& 
Impairment

Dep'n. Dep'n cost to
Estimated

696         
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ASSET CLASS

20,395    

5

3,500       



Tweed Shire Council

Special Schedule No. 8 - Financial Projections
 as at 30 June 2013

$'000

(i) OPERATING BUDGET
Income from continuing operations
Expenses from continuing operations

Operating Result from Continuing Operations

(ii) CAPITAL BUDGET
New Capital Works (2)

Replacement/Refurbishment of Existing Assets
Total Capital Budget

Funded by:
– Loans
– Asset sales
– Reserves
– Grants/Contributions
– Recurrent revenue
– Other

Notes:
(1) From 12/13 Income Statement.
(2) New Capital Works are major non-recurrent projects, eg new Leisure Centre, new Library, new Swimming pool etc.
(3) Financial projections should be in accordance with Council’s Integrated Planning and Reporting framework. 

16/17   
Forecast(3)Forecast(3) 

15/16   

172,748  165,494  181,375  

12/13
Forecast(3) 

14/15   13/14   
Forecast(3) Actual(1)

11,657    9,941     776        

169,491  158,393  

12,132  1,263    

13,561    8,250     -             9,808     

181,623  165,097  
164,231  

4,250     

6,704    9,150    

172,225  

6,253    

166,495  

25,218  18,191  5,026    

4,345     776        
-             

776        
-             -             

-             
4,250     

-             -             

776        776        

776        

10,584  

776        

776       

9,808     

776        
1,767    

10,584  25,218  18,191  
-             

5,026    776       
-             -             -             -             

-             
-             

9,537     -             
-             10,491    

845        -             
7,750     

-             -             

9,665     

-             

776        

1,767    

Forecast(3)

18/19   

203,032  
179,440  

23,592  

2,000     
776        

2,776    

776        
-             

2,000     
-             
-             
-             

2,776    

Forecast(3)

17/18   

190,958  
175,882  

15,076  

991        

19/20   

212,824  
184,938  

27,886  

3,728     
776        

4,504    
776        

1,761    

Forecast(3)

22/23  

249,759  
200,159  

49,600  

9,837     
5,296     

15,133  

799        

1,500     
-             

Forecast(3)

776        776        
-             

2,228     -             

Forecast(3)

20/21   

227,389  
190,416  

36,973  

985        

15,306  

776        
-             

6,800     
7,730     

-             

-             

985        
-             

Forecast(3)

S
pecial S

chedules 2013
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21/22   

239,865  
196,586  

43,279  

11,709    
3,597     

-             
15,306  

-             
1,761    4,504    

-             

-             
7,134     
7,200     

-             
-             

15,133  

-             
-             

991        
-             


	50 Attach 2 [TCS-CM] 2012-2013 Statutory Financial Reports-General Purpose Financial Statements
	GPFS - Front Cover
	GPFS - Table of Contents
	Understanding the Accounts
	Council Statement
	Primary Financial Reports
	Notes - Table of Contents
	Note 1
	Note 2a
	Note 2(b)
	Notes 3 to 8
	Note 9a
	Notes 9b to 16
	Note 17
	Notes 18 to 26
	Voluntary Notes 27 & 28

	50 Attach 3 [TCS-CM] 2012-2013 Statutory Financial Reports-Special Purpose Financial Statements
	SPFS - Front Cover
	SPFS - Table of Contents
	Council Statement
	Income Statements
	Balance Sheets
	Notes - Table of Contents
	Note 1
	Note 2
	Note 3

	50 Attach 4[TCS-CM] 2012-2013 Statutory Financial Reports-Special Schedules
	SS - Front Cover
	SS - Table of Contents
	Special Schedule 1
	Special Schedule 2a
	Special Schedule 2b
	Special Schedule 3
	Special Schedule 4
	Special Schedule 5
	Special Schedule 6
	Notes


